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C-11-276163-1 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor 	COURT MINUTES 
	 October 10, 2012 

C41-276163-1 
	State of Nevada 

vs 
Bennett Grimes 

October 10, 2012 	10:30 AM 	All Pending Motions 

HEARD BY: Leavitt, Michelle 	 COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 14D 

COURT CLERK: Susan Jovanovich 

RECORDER: Kerry Esparza 

REPORTER: 

PARTIES 
PRESENT: Botelho, Agnes M. 

Burns, J Patrick 
Grimes, Bennett 
Hillman, Ralph R. 
Hojjat, Nadia 
Public Defender 
State of Nevada 

Attorney 
Attorney 
Defendant 
Attorney 
Attorney 
Attorney 
Plaintiff 

JOURNAL ENTRIES 

- DEFENDANTS MOTION IN LIMINE TO PRECLUDE INTRODUCTION OF '1 EMPORARY 

PROTECTIVE ORDER AT TRIAL.. JURY TRIAL 

OUTSIDE PRESENCE OF JURY: Ms. Botelho advised State has not filed an Opposition to Deft's 

Motion, further noting she spoke with Mr. Hillman during file review, and State is in agreement to 

not bring in underlined facts of the temporary restraining order (TPO). Ms. Hojjat argued in support 

of Motion, stating defense is not seeking to have the fury hear about the TPO, as it is prejudicial. 

Following additional arguments, Court stated it is just an enhancement. Upon Court's inquiry, Mr. 

Botelho advised Deft, and alleged victim were married, but separated at time of alleged incident. 

Further arguments. Ms. Hojjat argued there is a dispute on facts of what Deft's intension was, while 

at the apartment. COURT ORDERED, Motion DENIED. Both parties stipulated that the facts that led 

up to the TPO will not be allowed to be presented to the Jury. 

SO NOUED. 
PRINT DATE: 03/20/2013 	 Page 21 of 35 	Minutes Date: 	September 20, 2011 
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C-11-276163-1 

PROSPECTIVE JURY PANEL PRESENT: Introductory statements by Court and by Counsel. Clerk 

called roll, Prospective Jury Panel sworn. Voir Dire commenced, 

Lunch recess. 

OUTSIDE PRESENCE OF PROSPECTIVE JURY PANEL: Court admonished Deft. to stand when jury 

members appear in the Courtroom, Mr. Hillman requested Court to remind the Jury members that 

trial attorneys are not permitted to speak to the members of the jury venire, during trial, as one of the 

Jury members was ignored by defense counsel, during the lunch break, while waiting for the 

elevators, Mr. Hilhnan stated that nothing happened, and he just wanted to make the Court aware. 

SO NO tED. Court stated it will be sure to remind the Jury members. 

PROSPECTIVE JURY PANEL PRESENT: Voir dire continues. CONFERENCE AT BENCH. During 

the conference, State made a Batson challenge. Further discussions at the Bench. JURY SELEC I'ED. 

Court thanked and excused the remaining jury panel members. Court instructed the Jury. Clerk read 

the Third Amended Information. Further instructions were given by the Court. 

OUTSIDE PRESENCE OF JURY: Court stated it amended the Third Amended Information, to reflect 

Steven B. Wolfson as the District Attorney, and not David Roger. Parties acknowledged and agreed. 

Court admonished Deft. to cooperate with directives from Court Services, and to not give Court 

Services staff members a hard time, due to not wanting to get up early in the mornings. Court stated 

it received notification from the jail, that Deft. complained about not wanting to get up early in the 

mornings for transport. Deft. acknowledged, 

Evening recess. TRIAL CONTINUES. 

CUSTODY 

10/11/12 10:30 A.M. TRIAL BY JURY 

PRINT DATE: 03/20/2013 
	 Page 22 of 35 	Minutes Date: 	September 20, 2011 
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Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES October 11, 2012 

C-11-276163-1 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

C-11-2761634 
	State of Nevada 

vs 
Bennett Grimes 

October 11, 2012 
	

10:30 AM 
	

Jury Trial 

HEARD BY: Leavitt, Michelle 	 COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 14D 

COURT CLERK: Susan Jovanovich 

RECORDER: Kerry Esparza 

REPORTER: 

PARTIES 
PRESENT: Batelho, Agnes M. 

Burns, J Patrick 
Grimes, Bennett 
Hillman, Ralph R. 
Hojjat, Nadia 
Public Defender 
State of Nevada 

Attorney 
Attorney 
Defendant 
Attorney 
Attorney 
Attorney 
Plaintiff 

JOURNAL ENTRIES 

- OUTSIDE PRESENCE OF JURY: Ms. Botelho placed a stipulation on the record, stating both parties 

agreed to not have bad acts presented in this case, without having a Petrocelli hearing, and no details 

of the TPO will be discussed during trial. SO NOTED. 

JURY PRESENT: Opening statements by Ms. Botelho and Ms, Hojjat. Testimony and Exhibits 

presented (See Worksheets.). 

OUTSIDE PRESENCE OF JURY: Colloquy regarding witness line up. Upon Court's inquiry, Mr. 

Hillman advised he will speak with Deft. further regarding the case, including his rights to testify, 

and this Court may canvass the Deft, tomorrow morning on those rights. SO NOTED. Ms. Botelho 

requested a Hernandez hearing. Following colloquy, Mr. Hillman provided stipulations made by 

parties regarding specific witnesses to not be called to testify, including the witness who took the 

DNA sample from Deft, through search warrant, as State will make representations to the Jury that a 

PRINT DATE: 03/20/2013 	 Page 23 of 35 	Minutes Date: 	September 20, 2011 
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C-11-276163-1 

DNA sample was taken in this case. SO NOTED. Deft, concurred on the stipulations. 

Evening recess. TRIAL CONTINUES. 

CUSTODY 

10/12/128:15 A.M. TRIAL BY JURY 

PRINT DATE: 03/20/2013 
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Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES October 12, 2012 

C-11-276163-1 
	

State of Nevada 
vs 
Bennett Grimes 

October 12, 2012 	8:15 AM 
	

Jury Trial 

C-11-276163-1 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

HEARD BY: Leavitt, Michelle 	 COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 14D 

COURT CLERK: Carol Foley 

RECORDER: Kerry Esparza 

REPORTER: 

PARTIES 
PRESENT: Botelho, Agnes M. 

Burns, J Patrick 
Grimes, Bennett 
Hillman, Ralph R. 
Hojjat, Nadia 
Public Defender 
State of Nevada 

Attorney 
Attorney 
Defendant 
Attorney 
Attorney 
Attorney 
Plaintiff 

JOURNAL ENTRIES 

- JURY PRESENT: Testimony and exhibits presented (see worksheets). 

OUTSIDE THE PRESENCE OF THE JURY: Witness excused from courtroom. Defense counsel 

summarized objection at conference at the bench regarding testimony of crime scene analyst 

regarding nature of wounds and notice objection. Arguments by counsel. Court noted it believes the 

testimony already came in from doctor at UMC. Discussion regarding notice. Court stated its findings 

and ORDERED, objection sustained. Jury will be told to disregard last question about defensive 

wounds and any response from the witness. 

JURY PRESENT; Court instructed the jury to disregard last question and any response. Further 

testimony and exhibits. 

Lunch recess. 
PRINT DATE: 03/20/2013 
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C-11-276163-1 

Court and counsel met in chambers to discuss jury instructions. 

OUTSIDE THE PRESENCE OF THE JURY: Court informed Deft, of his right not to testify. 

Mr. Hillman noted when Court and counsel were reviewing jury instructions and came across self-

defense proposed instruction Court indicated there was no evidence shown of that. Court asked Mr. 

Hillman to put on the record theory of how Ms. Grimes received wounds. Mr. Hillman and Ms. 

Hojjat advised what the argument would be. Court stated its findings regarding state of the record 

and advised it is not going to give self-defense instruction. 

• Court and counsel met in chambers to continue discussing jury instructions. 

Jury released for the weekend, to return Monday, 10/15 at 10:30 am. 

OUTSIDE PRESENCE OF JURY: Jury instructions settled on the record. 

CUSTODY 

CONTINUED TO: 10/15/12 10:30 AM 

PRINT DATE: 03/20/2013 
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Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES October 15, 2012 

C-11-276163-1 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

C-11-276163-1 
	

State of Nevada 
vs 
Bennett Grimes 

October 15, 2012 	10:30 AM 	Jury Trial 

HEARD BY: Leavitt, Michelle 

COURT CLERK: Susan Jovanovich 

RECORDER: Kerry Esparza 

REPORTER: 

COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 14D 

JOURNAL ENTRIES 

- JURY PRESENT: State and defense rested. Instructions To The Jury FILED IN OPEN COURT. 

Court instructed Jury on the law. Closing arguments by Mr. Burns, Mr. Hillman, and by Ms. Botelho. 

Court Marshal and Matron sworn by Clerk, and took charge of Jury. Alternate identified, and 

instructed by Court. At the hour of 11:52 a.m., Jury retired to deliberate. 

JURY DELIBERATING. 

2:55 P.M.--JURY PRESENT: Court reconvened with all parties present from before. JURY 

RETURNED VERDICTS as follows: COUNT 1- GUILTY OF ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A 

DEADLY WEAPON IN VIOLATION OF A TEMPORARY PROTECTIVE ORDER (F); COUNT 2 - 

GUILTY OF BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON IN VIOLATION OF A 

IEMPORARY PROTECTIVE ORDER (F); AND, COUNT 3- GUILTY OF BATI'ERY WITH USE OF A 

DEADLY WEAPON CONSTITUTING DOMESTIC VIOLENCE RESULTING IN SUBSTANTIAL 

PRINT DATE: 03/20/2013 	 Page 27 of 35 	Minutes Date: 	September 20, 2011 

PARTIES 
PRESENT: Botelho, Agnes M. 

Burns, J Patrick 
Grimes, Bennett 
Hillman, Ralph R. 
Hojjat, Nadia 
Public Defender 
State of Nevada 

Attorney 
Attorney 
Defendant 
Attorney 
Attorney 
Attorney 
Plaintiff 
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C-11-276163-1 

BODILY HARM IN VIOLATION OF A tEMPORARY PROI 	ECTIVE ORDER (F). 

Jury polled at request of Mr. Hillman Court thanked and excused the Jury from trial proceedings. 

OUTSIDE PRESENCE OF JURY: COURT ORDERED, current bail setting REVOKED; Deft. 

REMANDED into CUSTODY WITHOUT BAIL, FURTHER, matter REFERRED to Division of Parole 

and Probation (P&P), and SET for Sentencing. Court advised parties Juror Foreperson submitted a 

note to the Court Marshal for the Court, during deliberations, Court stated it did not respond to the 

note, as the Jury needed to review their Instructions on finding the answer, during their deliberations. 

Parties acknowledged, and made no objections. Court read the note as follows: "Does criminal intent 

have to be established before entering the structure, or can intent change during the chain of events, 

for the charge of burglary?" Court Exhibit 13 MARKED AND ADMITTED. Court adjourned. 

TRIAL ENDS. 

CUSTODY 

12/18/128:30 A.M. SENTENCING (JURY VERDICT) 
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C-11-276163-1 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES November 06, 2012 

C-11-276163-1 State of Nevada 
vs 
Bennett Grimes 

November 06, 2012 8:30 AM 

HEARD BY: Leavitt, Michelle 

COURT CLERK: Susan Jovanovich 

RECORDER: Kerry Esparza 

REPORTER: 

Motion for New Trial 

COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 14D 

PARTIES 
PRESENT: Cooper, Jonathan 

Grimes, Bennett 
Hillman, Ralph R. 
Public Defender 
State of Nevada 

Attorney 
Defendant 
Attorney 
Attorney 
Plaintiff 

JOURNAL ENTRIES 

- Matter submitted on the pleadings. COURT ORDERED, Motion DENIED. State to prepare the 

order. 

CUSTODY 

PRINT DA 1E: 03/20/2013 
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Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES December 18, 2012 

C-11-2761634 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

C-11-276163-1 
	State of Nevada 

vs 
Bennett Grimes 

December 18, 2012 8:30 AM 	Sentencing 

HEARD BY: Barker, David 
	 COURTROOM: R5C Courtroom 14D 

COURT CLERK: Susan Jovanovich 

RECORDER Kerry Esparza 

REPORTER: 

PARTIES 
PRESENT: Botelho, Agnes M. 

Diefenbach, Lauren R. 
Grimes, Bennett 
Public Defender 
State of Nevada 
Trippiedi, Hagar 

Deputy District Attorney 

Deputy Public Defender 
Defendant 

Plaintiff 
Deputy District Attorney 

JOURNAL ENTRIES 

Ms. Botelho not present. Ms. Diefenbach requested a continuance, further noting this case is assigned 

to Mr. Hillman and Ms. Hojiat, who handled trial proceedings. Following colloquy, Court TRAILED 

and RECALLED matter for all parties to appear, Ms. Botelho now present. Statements by counsel. 

At request of State, COURT ORDERED, victim impact statements will be given today. COURT 

FURTHER ORDERED, Deft's sentencing will be continued at a later date, for Judge Leavitt to handle 

the proceedings, as she heard the entire trial, and she knows the factual basis of the case. Court 

NOTED, Judge Leavitt can review the victim impact statements on JAYS video, prior to sentencing 

Deft. Earl Newman provided sworn statements. COURT ORDERED, matter CONTINUED. 

CUSTODY 

2/07/13 8:30 A.M. SENTENCING (JURY VERDICT) 
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C-11-276163-1 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor 
	COURT MINUTES 	February 07, 2013 

C-11-276163-1 
	

State of Nevada 
vs 
Bennett Grimes 

February 07, 2013 	8:30 AM 

HEARD BY: Leavitt, Michelle 

COURT CLERK: Susan Jovanovich 

RECORDER: Kerry Esparza 

REPORTER: 

Sentencing 

COURTROOM: RIC Courtroom 14D 

PARTIES 
PRESENT: Botelho, Agnes M. 

Burns, J. Patrick 
Grimes, Bennett 
Hojjat, Nadia 
Public Defender 
State of Nevada 

Deputy District Attorney 
Deputy District Attorney 
Defendant 
Deputy Public Defender 

Plaintiff 

JOURNAL ENTRIES 

Ms. Hojjat advised the Pre Sentence Investigation (PSI) report indicates P&P is recommending that 

Deft, receive large habitual treatment, and the PSI is incorrect, as Deft. is not qualified for large 

habitual treatment. Ms. Botelho responded State is only seeking small habitual criminal treatment. 

Deft. provided a written statement to the Court, for review, and inquired if the proposition 36 

halfway house program is available for him. Following colloquy between Court and Deft, Court 

stated it will not impose the program in this case. DEFT. GRIMES ADJUDGED GUILTY of COUNT 1 

- ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON IN VIOLATION OF A TEMPORARY 

PROTECTIVE ORDER (F); COUNT 2 - BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY 

WEAPON IN VIOLATION OF A TEMPORARY PROTECTIVE ORDER (F); and COUNT 3 - 

BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON CONSTITUTING DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 

RESULTING IN SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM IN VIOLATION OF A TEMPORARY 

PROTECTIVE ORDER (F). Ms. Botelho argued as to imposition of sentence, and requested small 

habitual criminal treatment be imposed, for use of deadly weapon enhancement, on Counts 2 and 3. 

State's Exhibits presented (See Worksheets.). Ms. Hojjat made no objections to the Exhibits. Court 

PRINT DATE: 02/07/2013 	 Page 1 of 2 	Minutes Date; 	February 07, 2013 
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C-11-2761634 

reviewed Deft's written statements. Ms. Hojjat objected to adjudication of Count 3, based on trial 

proceedings. Ms. Botelho argued in support of adjudication; and provided case law from Jackson vs, 

State, to the Court. Upon review, Court stated it needs more time to finish reviewing the supporting 

case law, before making a decision. COURT ORDERED, matter CONTINUED. Court provided a 

copy of the case law to Ms. Hojjat, CASE RECALLED. Ms. Hojjat requested to a transcript from trial, 

to verify if a record was made on dismissal of Count 3, as State may have agreed to it. Court advised 

counsel to request a CD recording of the trial from the Recorder, and listen to the trial proceedings, to 

verify. 

CUSTODY 

2/12/13 8:30 A.M. SENTENCING 
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C-11-276163-1 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor 
	COURT MINUTES 	February 12, 2013 

C-11-276163-1 
	

State of Nevada 
vs 
Bennett Grimes 

February 12, 2013 	8:30 AM 

HEARD BY: Leavitt, Michelle 

COURT CLERK: Susan Jovanovich 

RECORDER: Kerry Esparza 

REPORTER: 

Sentencing 

COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 14D 

PARTIES 
PRESENT: Botelho, Agnes M. 

Bums, J. Patrick 
Grimes, Bennett 
Hillman, Ralph R. 
Public Defender 
State of Nevada 

Deputy District Attorney 
Deputy District Attorney 
Defendant 
Deputy Public Defender 

Plaintiff 

JOURNAL ENTRIES 

Colloquy regarding case law from the Jackson matter, and discussions made during settlement of 

jury instructions at time of trial, on Count 3 merging. Arguments by counsel regarding law from 

various cases, including Strickland and Morales. Mr. Burns further argued quantum of punishment 

has not changed. Following further colloquy, Court stated it needs to sentence Deft, today, prior to 

any additional claims on appeal being filed with the Nevada Supreme Court. DEFT. GRIMES 

ADJUDGED GUILTY of COUNT 1- ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON IN 

VIOLATION OF A TEMPORARY PROTECTIVE ORDER (F); COUNT 2- BURGLARY WHILE IN 

POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON IN VIOLATION OF A TEMPORARY PROTECTIVE ORDER 

(F); and COUNT 3- BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON CONSTITUTING DOMESTIC 

VIOLENCE RESULTING IN SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM IN VIOLATION OF A TEMPORARY 

PROTECTIVE ORDER (F). Arguments by State. Statements by Deft. Arguments by counsel. 

COURT ORDERED, in addition to the $25.00 Administrative Assessment fee, and $150.00 DNA 

Analysis fee including testing to determine genetic markers, Deft. SENTENCED on COUNT 1 - to a 

MINIMUM of EIGHT (8) YEARS and a MAXIMUM of TWENTY (20) YEARS in the Nevada 
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Department of Corrections (NDC), plus a CONSECUTIVE TERM of a MINIMUM of FIVE (5) YEARS 

and a MAXIMUM of FIFTEEN (15) YEARS in the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC), for use 

of deadly weapon, and Court considered the factors outlined in NRS 193.165 Subsection 1; COUNT 2 

- DEFT. SENTENCED UNDER THE SMALL HABITUAL CRIMINAL STATUTE to a MINIMUM of 

EIGHT (8) YEARS and a MAXIMUM of TWENTY (20) YEARS in the Nevada Department of 

Corrections (NDC), COUNT 2 to run CONCURRENT to COUNT 1; and COUNT 3- DEFT. 

SENTENCED UNDER THE SMALL HABITUAL CRIMINAL STATUTE to a MINIMUM of EIGHT 

(8) YEARS and a MAXIMUM of TWENTY (20) YEARS in the Nevada Department of Corrections 

(NDC), COUNT 3 to run CONSECUTIVE to COUNT 2 and COUNT 1, with FIVE HUNDRED 

EIGHTY ONE (581) DAYS CREDIT FOR TIME SERVED. BOND, if any, EXONERATED. 

NDC 
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TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 20, 2011 

PROCEEDINGS 

THE COURT: State versus Bennett Grimes, C276163-1. 

MR. MORGAN: Good morning, Judge. Shawn Morgan for the State. 

THE COURT: The record shall reflect the presence of the Defendant in 

custody. 

MR. HILLMAN: Roger Hillman, Public Defender's office for Mr. Grimes. 

We're going to plead not guilty. 

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Grimes? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: You have a right to a trial within 60 days. Have you discussed 

this with your lawyer? It's called your speedy trial rights. 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 

THE COURT: And do you intend to waive or invoke your speedy trial rights? 

THE DEFENDANT: Invoke. 

THE COURT: Okay. The Defendant having invoked his speedy trial rights, 

the matter will be set as close to the 60-day mark as the Court's schedule permits. 

THE CLERK: Thank you. Your jury trial will be December the 13 th  at 1:30. 

The calendar call, December the 6 th  at 8:30, in Department 12. 

THE COURT: Okay, Mr. Grimes, you have previously been asked your full 

true name? No? What's your full true name? 

THE DEFENDANT: Bennett Goldeen [phonetic) Grimes, 

THE COURT: And how old are you? 

-2- 
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THE DEFENDANT: I'm 32. 

THE COURT: And how far did you go in school? 

THE DEFENDANT: Completed the certified diploma. Received a diploma. 

THE COURT: Okay. So do you read, write, and understand the English 

language? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 

THE COURT: You've been provided a copy of the Information that charges 

you in three counts with attempt murder with use of a deadly weapon in violation of 

a temporary protective order, burglary in violation of a temporary protective order, 

and battery with use of a deadly weapon constituting domestic violence resulting in 

substantial bodily harm in violation of a temporary protective order? 

THE DEFENDANT: No, I haven't received that. 

THE COURT: You remember your proceedings in Justice Court? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Do you remember those charges from Justice Court? 

THE DEFENDANT: Actually they added more charges that day, that last day, 

so this would probably be new, the first time I would get the updated paperwork. 

THE COURT: Okay. What were the charges in Justice Court? 

THE DEFENDANT: They weren't -- they didn't include the TP0s. 

THE COURT: I'm sorry — 

MR. HILLMAN: Right. They added the enhancement. 

THE COURT: Okay. But the attempt murder, the burglary, and the battery 

with use of a deadly weapon are charges that you recall? 

THE DEFENDANT: Domestic constituting -- yeah, yeah -- with a knife -- 

yeah. 

-3- 
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THE COURT: Okay. So you did read that? 

2  THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, I read that. 

THE COURT: Okay. State, in addition to the temporary protective order 

4 language, and I assume the date of the — date of the protective order, what else 

5 changed in the language? 

	

6 	MR. MORGAN: Judge, I added -- after the hearing, I added that the burglary, 

7  count two, was while in possession of a firearm and the correct spelling of the 

8  victim's name. 

	

9 	THE COURT: And the correct spelling of the alleged victim's name? 

	

lo 	MR. MORGAN: Yes. 

THE COURT: Okay. So, sir, you understand basically what the changes are. 

12 They changed the spelling of the alleged victim's name and so do you understand 

13 the charges against you? 

	

14 	THE DEFENDANT: No. He just said something about a firearm. 

	

15 	MR. HILLMAN: There is no firearm. It was a knife. 

	

16 	MR. MORGAN: Oh, excuse me. While -- 

	

17 	THE COURT: Deadly weapon. 

	

18 	MR. MORGAN: While in possession of a deadly weapon. 

	

19 	THE COURT: Okay. So do you understand the charges against you? 

	

20 	THE DEFENDANT: Urn -- it's -- 

	

21 	THE COURT: You're going to have a seat and 	recall the case. Read it all 

22 so that you're very comfortable. 

	

23 	THE DEFENDANT: No, I was going to ask you just one quick question. 

	

24 	THE COURT: What's your one quick question? 

	

25 	THE DEFENDANT: It said possession of a knife, but I didn't -- I didn't enter 

-4- 
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the premises with a knife. 

2 
	

THE COURT: Okay. Well that's something that your lawyer can file a writ on. 

	

3 
	

THE DEFENDANT: All right. 

	

4 
	

THE COURT: Right now is not a time to discuss the validity of the charges. 

	

5 
	

THE DEFENDANT: Right. 

	

6 
	

THE COURT: The time right now is to just discuss have you read 'em and do 

7 you understand them? That's all we talk about right now. 

	

8 
	

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, when can I file that writ? 

	

9 
	

THE COURT: Your lawyer will file that writ if he— after he talks to you and 

10 thinks it's appropriate to file. 

	

11 
	

THE DEFENDANT: Urn -- 

	

12 
	

THE COURT: So I'm going to go back to my original question. Do you 

13 understand the charges? 

	

14 
	

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 

	

15 
	

THE COURT: Okay. You're going to have a trial -- if your lawyer files a writ 

16 that will ruin your chances for a speedy trial. So that's something you have to talk 

17 about before he actually does it. 

	

18 
	

THE DEFENDANT: Right. 

	

19 
	

THE COURT: Thank you. 

	

20 
	

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you. 

	

21 
	

MR. HILLMAN: Thank you, Judge. 

22 /// 

23 /1/ 

24 /1/ 

25 /1/ 

-5- 

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT 

269 



MR. MORGAN: Thank you, Judge. 

(Whereupon, the proceedings concluded.) 
1 

2 

4 

5 

ATTEST: Pursuant to Rule 3C(d) of the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure, I 

certify that this is a rough draft transcript, expeditiously prepared, not proofread, 

corrected, or certified to be an accurate transcript. 

Kiara Schmidt, Court Recorder/Transcriber 
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THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2011 AT 8:45 A.M. 

2 

	

3 	THE COURT: State of Nevada versus Grimes. 

	

4 	MR. MORGAN: Yes. 

THE COURT: Case C276163. Mr. Grimes is present. He's in custody. 

6 Okay. Mr. Saxe do you have -- it appears this motion is moot 'cause the second 

7 amended Information -- I don't think you filed this motion, I think Mr. Hillman did but 

8 you're standing in for him. 

	

9 	MR. SAXE: Correct. 

	

10 	THE COURT: It appears to be moot because it appears it was a clerical error 

ii and the State has filed a second amended Information and it says deadly weapon, it 

12 does not say firearm. 

	

13 	MR. SAXE: Correct. 

	

14 	THE COURT: So, it's moot, and it's off calendar. 

	

15 	MR. MORGAN: Yes Judge. Shawn Morgan for the State. In speaking with 

16 Mr. Saxe, this is Mr. Hillman's case who's not going to be back from medical leave -- 

	

17 	THE COURT: Oh, yeah. 

	

18 	MR. MORGAN: -- in December; so at this time, I would ask the trial date be 

19 vacated and I spoke to your -- 

	

20 	THE COURT: He invoked. 

	

21 	MR. MORGAN: -- I spoke to your Clerk about a March 27 th  date. 

	

22 	MR. SAXE: Right, and he knows about the December situation. And I think 

23 that at this point Judge, a resetting in March, I think that Mr. Hillman and Mr. Morgan 

24 are going to get together hopefully, perhaps to negotiate it in the meantime. 

	

25 	THE COURT: Okay. You'll waive your right to be brought to trial within 60 

2 
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12 

.1 days Mr. Grimes? 

2 	THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

3 	THE COURT: Okay, having waived that right, it will be reset for trial in March. 

4 	THE COURT CLERK: Calendar Call March 20 th  at 8:30. Jury Trial March 27 t  

5 at 1:30. 

MR. MORGAN: Thank you Judge. 

7 	THE COURT: Thank you. 

8 	 [Proceedings concluded at 8:46 a.m.] 
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TUESDAY, MARCH 20, 2012 AT 9:14 A.M. 

THE COURT: State of Nevada versus Bennett Grimes, C276163. Present, in 

custody. It's on for calendar call. 

MR. IMLAY: That's Ms. Diefenbach, Your Honor. 

MS. DIEFENBACH: Sorry. 

THE COURT: Page 2, and it appears to be Mr. Hillman's case with the same 

issue. 

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: This is the one you were going to continue. 

MS. DlEFENBACH: Yes. 

Your Honor, we -- Shawn Morgan, the District Attorney, was in earlier 

and we chose a date. I believe the State has no opposition -- 

MR. SCHIFALACQUA: That's right. 

MS. DIEFENBACH: -- to our motion to continue. 

THE COURT: So the motion to continue is granted. Has he invoked? No, he 

waived. He waived the 60 day rule. So the trial date will be vacated. Motion to 

continue is granted and will be reset. 

MS. DIEFENBACH: And the new dates that we all chose, including your clerk 

of course, was June 12 th  for calendar call and June 19 th  for jury trial, if that's still fine 

with the Court? 

THE COURT: That's fine. 

2 
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7 

MS. DIEFENBACH: Excellent. Thank you. 

2 
	THE COURT: Thank you. 

3 
	 [Proceedings concluded at 9:15 a.m.] 
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1 	 LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, THURSDAY, JUNE 7, 2012, 8:59 A.M. 

	

2 	MR. HILLMAN: Judge, could we call Grimes, please? 

	

3 	THE COURT: What page? 

	

4 	MR. HILLMAN: It is on page five. 

	

5 	THE COURT: 2276163. 

	

6 	MR. HILLMAN: This is Ms. Hojjat's. She's going to argue the motions. 

7 Mr. Grimes did not come today, he refused to come. But I don't think we need him 

8 here to argue these motions. 

	

9 	THE COURT: Okay. Is this your client that keeps forgetting to come? Or 

10 that keeps not wanting to come? 

	

11 	MR. HILLMAN: This is a different client of mine that doesn't want to come to 

12 court. 

	

13 	THE COURT: Okay. All right. 

	

14 	MR. HILLMAN: I don't take it personal though. 

	

15 	THE COURT: Okay. Good. All right. Do you want to just start with the first 

16 request? 

	

17 	MS. HOJJAT: Yes. Good morning, Your Honor. Nadia Hojjat, number 

18 12401. We are requesting, well, actually, based on the State's response, to save -- 

	

19 	THE COURT: Well, I can just go through it, number one I'm going to grant to 

20 the extent they exist and it appears that the State's handed over everything that they 

21 do have so far. Number two, the State's indicated they have complied with that; do 

22 you agree? 

	

23 	MS. HOJJAT: Yes, Your Honor, based on the State's response. 

	

24 	THE COURT: Okay. It's granted. Number three, I will grant to the extent it 

25 exists. And again, the State says that they have complied with that; do you agree? 
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1 	MS. HOJJAT: Based on the State's response, we'll agree. 

	

2 	THE COURT: Okay. Number four, the State says they are not aware of any 

3 of this evidence; however, if they become of aware of it, they will provide it to you; 

4 and so that is granted as well. 

	

5 	MS. HOJJAT: Thank you. 

	

6 	THE COURT: Number five, the State, again, is not aware of any their 

7 witnesses that are informants; however, I'm assuming if the State does become 

8 aware of that, they'll provide it; is that correct? 

	

9 	MS. BOTELHO: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

10 	THE COURT: So that is granted. Number six, again, I would grant this 

11 normally. Again, the State says this doesn't exist. But to the extent that it exists, it's 

12 granted. Number seven, the State indicates that there is none known. This is a 

13 interesting request, I haven't seen this one before. But to the extent that it would 

14 exist, it is granted. 

	

15 	MS. HOJJAT: Thank you. 

	

16 	THE COURT: Number eight, the Court is going to grant this as to prior 

17 felonies or crimes that involved honesty, truthfulness, or untruthfulness; is there 

18 anything that you want to add? 

	

19 	MS. HOJJAT: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

20 	THE COURT: I don't think you're entitled to the juvenile records because 

21 they're sealed. 

	

22 	MS. HOJJAT: Your Honor -- 

	

23 	THE COURT: You're not entitled misdemeanors unless it goes to truthfulness 

24 or untruthfulness, but go ahead. 

	

25 	MS. HOJJAT: If I may, Your Honor, the reason we're requesting the full 
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I N.C.I.C. record is pursuant to the Brady line, Brady, Kyles, Giglio, the information 

2 doesn't necessarily have to be admissible at trial for us to be entitled to it. For 

3 example, for the reason that if, for example, the alleged victim gets up there and 

4 says, I've never hit anybody before and she has a misdemeanor battery charge, 

5 then that does suddenly become admissible even though prior to trial misdemeanor 

6 battery would not be admissible and it's not a crime of honesty or dishonesty. 

7 	THE COURT: Not necessary -- not necessarily, you'd have to live with her 

8 answer. If she said, I've never hit anybody, and you said, Have you ever been 

9 convicted of a misdemeanor battery, and she said, No, you'd be stuck with the 

10 answer no. You wouldn't be able to impeach her with her criminal record because 

11 you can't bring in extrinsic evidence. 

12 	MS. HOJJAT: And, Your Honor, at that point we would argue that it goes to 

13 bias. And pursuant to Lobato, bias is always not a collateral matter, it is a matter 

14 that we can impeach on. But so we would, we're not asking for -- we're basically 

15 just asking for the State to run an N.C.I.C., which we don't have access to, and to 

16 provide us with the results of that. And we think we're entitled to under Brady, 

17 Kyles, Giglio and their progeny. 

18 	THE COURT: I'm going to grant it and order that the State turn over any prior 

19 felonies or crimes that go to truthfulness or untruthfulness only. 

20 	MS. BOTELHO: Yes, Your Honor, thank you. 

21 	THE COURT: The rest of it is denied. Number nine, the State indicates that 

22 there is none. However, if any I mean, there is none now, none are going to come 

23 to light later, correct? 

24 	MS. BOTELHO: I'm not aware of any that should be coming in, Your Honor. 

25 	THE COURT: Okay. Number 10 is granted to the extent that it exists. And of 
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I course, number 11 you're entitled to all statements made by any of the witnesses in 

2 this case, so that's granted. 

3 	MS. HOJJAT: Thank you. And Your Honor, on that one -- 

4 	THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

5 	MS. HOJJAT: — I'm sorry, specifically what you're requesting on number 11 is 

6 that it's come to our attention through the preliminary hearing that the victim, in the 

7 seconds before this incident occurred, was texting people, and we believe that goes 

8 to her state of mind, that those texts could reveal what she was thinking, what she 

9 was planning on doing, and we believe -- we request that the State provide us with 

10 those text messages. 

11 	MS. BOTELHO: And, Your Honor -- 

12 	THE COURT: The victim was texting prior to -- 

13 	MS. HOJJAT: In the seconds before this incident happened, she specifically 

14 said that she was sending out texts to people. 

15 	THE COURT: The victim? 

16 	MS. HOJJAT: Yes. 

17 	THE COURT: Who was the victim of -- who was the alleged victim of attempt 

18 murder? 

19 	MS. HOJJAT: Yes, Your Honor. 

20 	THE COURT: And domestic violence and all that, her state of mind? 

21 	MS. HOJJAT: Your Honor, there is some question as to who the initial 

22 aggressor was in this case. 

23 	MS. BOTELHO: And Your Honor -- 

24 	THE COURT: You mean, like, if she's texting, I'm going to get the defendant, 

25 that type of thing? 
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1 	MS. HOJJAT: Possibly, we don't know what those texts say. 

2 	MS. BOTELHO: And, Your Honor, I'm appearing on behalf of Mr. Morgan 

3 who is the lead counsel on this particular case. I'm not aware of any subpoenas that 

4 we have issued for the victim's records, particularly the victim's text messages. If 

5 the defense finds it relevant and, you know, something they would like to present in 

6 their case in chief or something that they would like to have for impeachment or 

7 whatever else, whatever purpose they see fit, I would ask that the defense issue a 

8 subpoena and, you know, obtain that information. 

	

9 	MS. HOJJAT: And, Your Honor, it's our -- 

	

10 	THE COURT: It's really hard to get because do you know that's been 

11 interpreted as a phone call? Text messages have been interpreted as phone calls. 

12 It's like intercepting a phone call. And I don't know how long text messages are 

13 kept. Are you suggesting that the State's supposed to somehow go to a carrier of 

14 the victim and get those text messages? 

	

15 	MS. HOJJAT: And, Your Honor, given that these could be inconsistent 

16 statements by the victim, it's our position that pursuant to Brady, Kyles, Giglio, we 

17 were -- the State should have done that immediately when it became known that -- 

	

18 	THE COURT: The State -- 

	

19 	MS. HOJJAT: -- as soon as she mentioned that she was sending texts and 

20 that if they didn't and they're now lost, that would be a failure to collect. 

	

21 	MS. BOTELHO: Your Honor, if we had not subpoenaed them, that means we 

22 did not see any exculpatory or nature in the text messages. 

	

23 	THE COURT: Well, they're not -- they're not in your possession either. 

	

24 	MS. BOTELHO: And it's not in our possession, it's not something that we 

25 sought. If it's important to the defendant's case and the presentation of his case, we 
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1 would suggest that -- that they issue a subpoena. They would have to go through 

2 the same channels that the State would have to go to obtain that particular 

3 information. 

4 	THE COURT: Okay, 

5 	MS. HOJJAT: But, Your Honor, pursuant to federal law, that State has an 

6 obligation to seek out, it's not just to turn over inconsistent statements that are in 

7 their possession, they have an obligation to seek out this information. And when its 

8 been revealed 14 days after the incident happened that this information existed, 

9 they had an obligation to seek it out. If it's their position that it's no longer available, 

10 then that was a failure to collect. 

11 	THE COURT: I don't know if that's their position or not. 

12 	MS. HOJJAT: If it is still available, they have -- if it's not their position, then 

13 they have an obligation to seek it out and provide it to us if it's inconsistent. 

14 	THE COURT: Okay. I'm going to deny the request to have the State 

15 somehow subpoena the text messages, but the defense is free to attempt to get 

16 them. Number 12, that is granted. Number 13, that's granted to the extent it's 

17 required by statute only. Number 14 — 

18 	MS. HOJJAT: And number 14, given the State's response, we would not 

19 provide that information to the defendant, it would just be for our own investigative 

20 purposes for trial. 

21 	THE COURT: Okay. I've had this issue before, they can give all updated 

22 information except as to the victim. And if you want to speak to the victim, and, I 

23 mean, I've had this come up numerous times, we can set a date, time, and place 

24 where the victim will become available if is the victim he or she? 

25 	MS. BOTELHO: She. 
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21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1 	THE COURT: Where she can speak to you if she wants to. Okay? 

2 	MS. BOTELHO: Yes, Your Honor, thank you. 

3 	THE COURT: Number 15 is granted. And you can prepare the order. 

4 	MS. HOJJAT: I'm sorry, Your Honor, there's three more. 

5 	THE COURT: There's only 15. Oh, I'm sorry, that I went to -- I forgot the last 

6 page, number 16. 

MS. HOJJAT: And number 16, what we're specifically asking for is, I believe 

we do have -- 

THE COURT: The 9-1-1 calls? 

MS. HOJJAT: -- the 9-1-1 calls from the male, the victim's father, but we don't 

have the victim's actual 9-1-1 call. 

THE COURT: Okay. It's granted. 

MS. HOJJAT: Thank you. 

THE COURT: Number 17 is granted to the extent they exist. Number 18 is 

granted. 

MS. BOTELHO: Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Thank you. 

MS. HOJJAT: Thank you, Your Honor. 

MR. HILLMAN: Thanks, Judge. 

PROCEEDING CONCLUDED AT 9:09 A.M. 

ATTEST: Pursuant to Rule 3C(9) of the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure, I 

acknowledge that this is a rough draft transcript, expeditiously prepared, not 

proofread, corrected, or certified to be an accurate transcript, 

SARA RICHARDSON 
Court Recorder/Transcriber 
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I 	 LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, TUESDAY, JUNE 12, 2012, 9:20 A.M, 

	

2 	THE COURT: C276163. He's present, he's in custody, it's on for calendar 

3 call. Okay, it's my understanding Mr. Hillman's going to ask for a continuance in 

4 open court. 

	

5 	MR. HILLMAN: I have a written motion. Thank you. And we sent a copy to 

6 your J.E.A. yesterday, Judge, and the State. 

	

7 	THE COURT: What's the State's position? 

	

8 
	MR. MORGAN: Judge, the State would ask counsel to provide a specific and 

9 articulate reason for the need for the continuance. I think that just using -- 

	

10 
	THE COURT: More than his client wouldn't talk to him? 

	

11 
	MR. MORGAN: Well, I — he said that that was repaired, and really the issue 

12 that I read was outstanding discovery issues that need to be finalized and minor 

13 investigation to be completed. I just think that using the buzz word that they would 

14 be ineffective isn't a basis, shouldn't be a basis for a continuance without some 

15 specific reason. 

	

16 
	 Obviously, the State's position is at some point the victim needs closure 

17 in this case, Judge. She was stabbed 17 times in the face and chest and every time 

18 she looks in the mirror, she thinks of the victim of the defendant. And not only 

19 that, but she has to have the fear of this case hanging over her head every single 

20 day and, you know, continuance after continuance, I never opposed Mr. Hillman's 

21 prior continuances, but at some point -- 

	

22 
	THE COURT: How many times has it been continued? 

	

23 
	MR. MORGAN: Three or four, I believe. 

	

24 
	THE COURT: Okay, then you're going to probably have to give me — he's 

25 talking to you, right? 
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1 	MR. HILLMAN: Yes, we had broken down to the point on Friday where I 

2 thought I was going to have to withdraw and we would not be able to do this trial at 

3 all because it was to the point where my further representation of him would be 

4 detrimental to his interests. It was that bad. Ms. Hojjat in her -- 

	

5 	THE COURT: With you? 

	

6 	MR. HILLMAN: With me in her -- 

	

7 	THE COURT: Okay, and I'm telling you, if you can't get along with 

8 Mr. Hillman, I mean -- 

	

9 	MR. HILLMAN: Judge, could I interrupt for one second? 

	

10 	THE COURT: Sure. 

	

11 	MR. HILLMAN: And the problem that we have -- I came to understand some 

12 things about Mr. Grimes at that point in time. He just really doesn't understand what 

13 we're doing here. We finally got down to some very basic facts, he gave me some 

14 information -- 

	

15 	THE COURT: Okay. 

	

16 	MR. HILLMAN: -- that we need to follow up on, that we have not followed up, 

17 we're not going to be able to follow up on before next week. 

	

18 	THE COURT: Tell me what they are. 

	

19 	MR. HILLMAN: It has to do with medical investigation regarding a medical 

20 condition he has that may or may not come into play in our defense. Those records 

21 are down in Riverside, California. 

	

22 	THE COURT: What would they be relevant to? 

	

23 	MR. HILLMAN: They'd be relevant to his physical health. 

	

24 	THE COURT: To intent? 

	

25 	MR. HILLMAN: And to a potential -- a potential self-defense scenario in this 
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I particular case. I've talked with his -- 

	

2 	THE COURT: Okay. 

	

3 	MR. HILLMAN: 	subsequently, I've talked to his parents, if we cannot find 

4 the doctor that treated him, we may be able to find some other people who were 

5 aware that he was in a wheelchair for six months, that he is considered disabled, 

6 and that he was shot, which has an effect upon his mental bearing and an effect as 

7 to what happened in this particular case. 

There's also the issue of the -- the text messages that was brought up 

9 last week in the discovery motion, we'd still like to see if we can get those. In talking 

10 to our investigators, it's not going to be something that can be done in a couple of 

11 weeks. It generally takes, I believe they told me six weeks or so to get. And I 

12 understand that State's -- 

	

13 	THE COURT: But you think this -- 

	

14 	MR. HILLMAN: 	point of view, and I wouldn't -- and I understand the Court's 

15 point of view about continuances, we've had several continuances, part of that time 

16 when there was a continuance, I was out of the office and was unable to be in 

17 contact with Mr. Grimes. 

	

18 	THE COURT: Right. 

	

19 	MR. HILLMAN: And that's hindered our ability to get ready. But the bottom 

20 line is is we kind of had a meeting of the minds, finally, between Mr. Grimes and I, 

21 and I now understand why he has had the attitude that he's had. He's not 

22 disrespectful of me, he's just more frustrated than anything else. And he and 1 

23 were -- were like this for most of this case. We've worked through that now and we 

24 now I now understand what! need to do to adequately prepare for this case. And 

25 there are a few things left to do. 
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I 	THE COURT: Okay. 

	

2 	MR. MORGAN: I think in -- 

	

3 	THE COURT: But it goes to a self-defense issue? 

	

4 	MR. HILLMAN: We don't know if we're -- 

	

5 	THE COURT: Potentially? 

	

6 	MR. HILLMAN: — going to present a self-defense issue or not, but it's 

7 something that we do need to prepare for. 

	

8 	THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. MORGAN: I mean, obviously, this isn't — there's not going to be a 

10 penalty phase, so there's no mitigation evidence or -- 

	

11 	THE COURT: Right. 

	

12 	MR. MORGAN: — that Mr. Hillman described -- 

	

13 	THE COURT: That's why I asked him specifically what's it relevant for and he 

14 told me for a potential self-defense. Because I agree, I mean, that stuff sounds like 

15 mitigation. 

	

16 	MR. MORGAN: That's the State's position on that. As to the text messages, 

17 obviously, I mean, I'm sure this Court's well aware, I think the likelihood of having 

18 the substance of text messages going on a year ago is pretty much nonexistent, the 

19 likelihood of there being substance of text messages. 

	

20 	THE COURT: That's what I think, but -- 

	

21 	MR. MORGAN: So think that that's just a waste of time, personally. And the 

22 State would still object to the continuance. 

	

23 	MR. HILLMAN: And I had always hoped that we'd be able to eventually work 

24 this case out. But there's never been an offer made by the State either on this. 

	

25 	MR. MORGAN: And the State -- 
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1 	MR. HILLMAN: And that's -- 

	

2 	THE COURT: So, it's not going to happen. 

	

3 	MR HILLMAN: And they don't have to make an offer, I understand that. 

	

4 	THE COURT: Yeah, well, yeah, so it's not going to happen. 

	

5 	MR. HILLMAN: Right. 

	

6 	THE COURT: So it's going to go to trial. 

	

7 	MR. HILLMAN: And Mr. Bennett's looking at a lot of time if we lose. 

	

a 	THE COURT: Yeah, he is. 

	

9 	MR. HILLMAN: Andl-- and just personally, I'd feel better if -- if we did these 

10 things to kind of feel like we're prepared, and I don't think I can prepare an effective 

11 case for him at this point in time. 

	

12 	THE COURT: How much time do you need? 

	

13 	MR. HILLMAN: About 60 days would be good, 

	

14 	THE COURT: Okay, then I'll grant the motion to continue. And we'll reset it 

15 on the next stack. And you know, Mr. Grimes, that you have to continue to, you 

16 know, communicate with Mr. Hillman; you understand that, right? 

	

17 	THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 

	

18 	THE COURT: I mean, he's on your team. 

	

19 	THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am. 

	

20 	THE COURT: You got that? 

	

21 	THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do. 

	

22 	THE COURT: All right, because if you don't communicate with him, it doesn't 

23 mean I'm going to give you a new lawyer; do you understand that? You'll have to 

24 suffer that. 

	

25 	THE DEFENDANT: Correct. 
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1 	THE COURT: But it sounds like, from what Mr. Hillman told me, that you've 

2 gotten it all worked out, okay, and you're going to tell him where he has to go to get 

3 all this medical information, right? 

4 	THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am, Ill help him out. 

5 	THE COURT: Okay. If that's the case, that should be pretty easy. 

6 	MR. HILLMAN: I think so, we should have no problem getting this ready in 

7 60 days. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

THE CLERK: Calendar call August 21 at 8:30; jury trial August 28 at 1:30. 

MR. HILLMAN: Thank you, Judge. 

THE COURT: You're welcome. 

MR. MORGAN: Thank you, Judge. 

THE COURT: You're welcome. 

PROCEEDING CONCLUDED AT 9:28 A.M. 

ATTEST: Pursuant to Rule 3C(9) of the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure, I 

acknowledge that this is a rough draft transcript, expeditiously prepared, not 

proofread, corrected, or certified to be an accurate transcript. 

SARA RICHARDSON 
Court RecorderlTranscriber 
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1 	 THURSDAY, JULY 19, 2012 AT 8:47 A.M. 

THE COURT: State versus Bennett Grimes, C276163. 

MR. HILLMAN: This is date set for argument. He's present, in custody. 

THE COURT: It's my understanding you want an opportunity to file a reply? 

MR. HILLMAN: Yes -- 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. HILLMAN: — or at least review their opposition, which we received 

yesterday. 

THE COURT: Okay, a week? 

MR. HILLMAN: Whatever the Court's calendar will bear. We would like it on 

a Tuesday if possible. 

THE COURT: You would like it on a Tuesday. 

MR. HILLMAN: Yeah, Ms. Hojjat is going to argue this, has preliminary 

hearings on Thursdays. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

THE COURT CLERK: July 31, 8:30. 

MR. HILLMAN: Thank you. 

[Proceedings concluded at 8:47 a.m.] 
19 *** 

20 ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the 

21 audio/video proceedings with the sound recording in the above-entitled case to the 

best of my ability. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

THERESA SANCHEZ 
Court Recorder/Transcriber 

22 

23 

24 

25 

2 

293 



1 RTRAN 

?t,044.4444.--- 

CLERK OF THE COURT 

Electronically Filed 

04/26/2013 04:17:40 PM 

2 

3 

4 
	 DISTRICT COURT 

5 
	 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

THE STATE OF NEVADA, 	 ) 
) 

) 
) 
) 

BENNETT GRIMES, ) 
) 

Defendant. 	 ) 
	 ) 

6 

7 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

Plaintiff, 

VS. 

CASE #: C276163-1 

DEPT. Xll 

BEFORE THE HONORABLE MICHELLE LEAVITT, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

14 

15 
	 TUESDAY, JULY 31, 2012 

16 
	 RECORDER'S TRANSCRIPT RE: 

DEFENDANTS MOTION TO DISMISS FOR FAILURE TO GATHER EVIDENCE 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

APPEARANCES: 

For the State: 

For the Defendant: 

SHAWN A. MORGAN, ESQ. 
Deputy District Attorney 

LAUREN R. DIEFENBACH, ESQ. 

Deputy Public Defender 

24 RECORDED BY: KERRY ESPARZA, COURT RECORDER 

25 

294 



TUESDAY, JULY 31 1  2012 AT 9:08 A.M. 

THE COURT: State versus Bennett Grimes, 0276163. 

MS. DIEFENBACH: Your Honor this is on for a motion and I believe -- 

THE COURT: He's present. He's in custody. 

MS. DIEFENBACH: -- that it was Mr. Hillman's case but his co-counsel, 

Nadia Hojjat, is supposed to be here to argue it and I don't see her yet. If we can 

trail that she should be here. 

THE COURT: Sure. 

(Matter trailed & recalled, 11:42 a.m.) 

THE COURT: State versus Bennett Grimes, 0276163. He's present. He's in 

custody. 

MR. MORGAN: Good morning. Shawn Morgan for the State. in speaking 

with Ms. Hojjat, the defense would like to have Mr. Hillman here to argue the motion 

and both -- 

THE COURT: Right. I was already informed of that. 

MR. MORGAN: -- okay. Parties are requesting next Tuesday if that's all right 

with the Court? 

THE COURT: Okay. It's not going to be able to be. What was the date, the 

7th , right? 

MS. DIEFENBACH: Is August 7th  doable? 

THE COURT: [Conferring with Clerk] Whatever that day that I just said, the 

9th . August 9th . 

MS. DIEFENBACH: It will have to be August 9 th . All right. 

MR. MORGAN: Thank you, Your Honor. 
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MS. D1EFENBACH: Thank you. 

2 	 [Proceedings concluded at 11:42 a.m.] 
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I 	LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, TUESDAY, AUGUST 14, 2012, 9:50 A.M. 

2 	THE COURT: State of Nevada versus Bennett Grimes, C276163. He's 

3 present. He is in custody. It's on for defendant's motion to dismiss for failure to 

4 gather evidence. 

	

5 	MS. HOJJAT: Good morning, Your Honor, Nadia Hojjat, number 12401, on 

6 behalf of Mr. Grimes. And, Your Honor, if we may approach about -- 

	

7 	MR. MORGAN: Various issues. 

THE COURT: Sure. 

	

9 	MR. MORGAN: Thank you. 

	

10 	 [Bench conference as follows] 

	

11 	MR. MORGAN: Hi, Judge, how you doing? 

	

12 	THE COURT: Good, thank you. 

	

13 	MR. MORGAN: So, Roger, I don't know if you heard, is having some medical 

14 issues. 

	

15 	MS. HOJJAT: Roger Hillman is scheduled, he's the first chair on this. 

	

16 	THE COURT: You'll tell me later, right? 

	

17 	MR. IMLAY: Right. 

	

18 	THE COURT: Okay. 

	

19 	MS. HOJJAT: He will not be back in the office until August 30 th , the trial is set 

20 to go on August 28th  right now. So the defense would have been ready to go, we 

21 were anticipating announcing ready at calendar call; however, these medical issues 

22 were unforeseen and we are going to be asking for this case to be pushed back to 

23 the next stack because Mr. Hillman will be out for a significant period of time and 

24 won't be able to prep in the weeks before the trial. 

	

25 	THE COURT: Does it need to be assigned to somebody else? 
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1 	MR. IMLAY: No, he'll be back on the 30 th . 

	

2 	THE COURT: Okay. 

	

3 	MR. MORGAN: Judge, here's my concern, between us, September 14 th  is 

4 going to be my last day in the office. 

	

5 	THE COURT: Where are you going? 

	

6 	MR. MORGAN: I'm moving to Portland. 

	

7 	THE COURT: Shut up. 

	

8 
	

MR. MORGAN: Yeah, just for change of scenery. 

	

9 
	

THE COURT: What? 

	

10 
	MR. MORGAN: Going to -- I'm just ready for . a change of scenery, I guess. 

	

11 
	

MR. IMLAY: He's tired of the desert. 

	

12 
	

THE COURT: Wow, geez, he's tired of the judges? 

	

13 
	

• 	 MR. IMLAY: The desert. 

	

14 
	

• 	 MR. MORGAN: No, no, no. 

	

15 
	MR. IMLAY: Yeah, that's what he's — 

	

16 
	

MR. MORGAN: Never. 

	

17 
	

MR. IMLAY: -- that what he told me, but -- 

	

18 
	

MR. MORGAN: Yeah, so that being the case, you know, rye had a long 

19 relationship with this victim. I've had the case from the beginning. She is ready for 

20 this case to go forward. We speak monthly. And I really am invested in this case 

21 and would like to try it before I leave. 

	

22 
	

THE COURT: And when do you leave? 

	

23 
	

MR. MORGAN: September 14th  is my last day. 

	

24 
	

THE COURT: Well, 1 don't know what you want me to do, I can't force -- 

	

25 
	

MR. MORGAN: I understand. 
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1 	THE COURT: -- Mr. Hillman to come back ill. 

	

2 	MR. MORGAN: Well, if he comes back on the 30 th , I would request that we 

3 either kick the trial a week or two weeks at the latest, two weeks is as far as we can 

4 do it for me to be able to still try it. That would be my request. 

	

5 	MS. HOJJAT: And we do oppose that request just because Mr. Hillman's 

6 going to be out for such a long period of time. 

	

7 	THE COURT: Yeah, this is an attempt murder case. No one's invoked? 

	

8 
	

MR. MORGAN: No, everyone's waived. 

	

9 
	

THE COURT: Okay. I mean, I'm not going to try -- 

	

10 
	MR. MORGAN: Okay. All right. 

	

11 
	THE COURT: 	force the case to trial. I'm sorry. 

	

12 
	

MR. MORGAN: It's okay. Just the victim is really, you know, she — this case 

13 just hangs over her head and she's -- she called me -- 

	

14 
	THE COURT: I understand. 

	

15 
	

MR. MORGAN: -- yesterday, actually, before Ms. Hojjat said, and she's like, 

16 Are we really going to go this time, and I really need to get closure on this and move 

17 on and so, just -- I would just -- was hoping to be able to push it. 

	

18 
	THE COURT: Okay. But I have Mr. Hillman out. 

	

19 
	

MR. MORGAN: I understand. 

	

20 
	

THE COURT: And now you moving to Portland. 

	

21 
	MR. MORGAN: I understand. 

	

22 
	THE COURT: So I have a double problem. 

	

23 
	MR. MORGAN: Okay. 

	

24 
	THE COURT: So I have, I mean, I'm assuming there's a D.A.? 

	

25 
	

MR. MORGAN: The D.A.'s not an issue. Ms. Botehlo's very competent. 
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1 	THE COURT: Okay. 

	

2 	MR. MORGAN: And she will take this -- 

	

3 	THE COURT: So she is going to -- 

	

4 	MR. MORGAN: — and run with it. 

	

5 	THE COURT: All right. 

	

6 	MR. MORGAN: Yeah. 

	

7 	THE COURT: Okay. So you want me to -- do you want to rule on the 

8 motion? 

	

9 	MS. HOJJAT: I mean, at this point, I know that Mr. Grimes would feel more 

10 comfortable if Mr. Hillman was here for the motion. We had initially kicked the 

11 motion anticipating Mr. Hillman would be back. We didn't anticipate the health 

12 issues. So if we could possibly push it back to after the 30 th  so that Mr. Hillman can 

13 be present for the motion. 

	

14 	THE COURT: Okay. But at this point we have to -- 

	

15 	MR. MORGAN: Vacate the trial date. 

	

16 	THE COURT: -- vacate the trial date. 

	

17 	MR. MORGAN: Yeah. 

	

18 	THE COURT: Okay. I don't even know if I could give you two weeks into 

19 September, that's probably my civil stack. 

	

20 	MR. MORGAN: I see. Okay. 

	

21 	THE COURT: I probably would do it, if everybody was in agreement, but 

22 don't think that's fair to Mr. Hillman. 

	

23 	MR. MORGAN: I know. 

	

24 	THE COURT: If he's coming back from health issues, to say, oh, and by the 

25 way, 1 want you ready in a week to do an attempt murder case. 
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1 	MR. MORGAN: I understand. I don't want to be insensitive. 

	

2 	THE COURT: And this was a stabbing, right? 

	

3 	MR. MORGAN: Yes. 

4 	MS. HOJJAT: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

5 	MR. MORGAN: I don't want to be insensitive to Mr. Hillman, (just, I feel 1 

6 have to speak on behalf of the victim and voice my concerns. 

	

7 	THE COURT: Okay. And the problem, well, I mean, what's the problem with 

8 this motion? l'm told that the knife is in evidence. If you want to test it, test it. So, i 

9 mean, I don't think it's the State's responsibility to test it for fingerprints for all this 

10 stuff that you think it should be tested for. So if you want to sit around and wait for it, 

11 you know, I think that's your -- your problem 

	

12 	MS. HOJJAT: And, Your Honor, our concern on this, I've spoken with people 

13 who understand the science a little bit better than I do, and I guess my 

14 understanding is that at this point it's too late to test it because fingerprints 

15 evaporate over time apparently. And it's been so long at this point that it was in the 

16 custody of the State, we were under the impression that it would be tested because 

17 DNA testing was done on the knife, that basically at this point a test wouldn't yield 

18 accurate results of whose fingerprints were on there. 

	

19 	THE COURT: Okay. Well, who are you relying upon? Experts? Or other 

20 people in your office? 

	

21 	MS. HOJJAT: Other people in the office, Your Honor. 

	

22 	THE COURT: Okay. If you want to test it, I'll allow you to have, you know, I'm 

23 assuming it's bagged somewhere. 

	

24 	MR. MORGAN: Uh-huh. 

	

25 	MS. BOTELHO: Yes, it is. 
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I 	THE COURT: If you want to test it, you can have it. 1 don't know if that's true 

2 or not. I don't know -- 1 don't want to rely upon what other people say in the office, 

3 but certainly -- 

	

4 	MS. HOJJAT: Right. 

THE COURT: -- if you want that knife and you want to test it for fingerprints, 

6 DNA, whatever it is because you think it goes to your self-defense, feel free. 

7 allow you to have it. 

	

8 	MS. HOJJAT: Okay. 

	

9 	THE COURT: You just have to waive any chain-of-custody issue. 

	

10 	MS. HOJJAT: And, Your Honor, at this point I guess my -- 

	

11 	THE COURT: Do you want it? 

	

12 	MS. HOJJAT: -- my request at this point, Your Honor, would be if we can 

13 continue the motions so I could actually speak with — I can go back and contact an 

14 expert and find out whether it really is that the fingerprints at this point would have 

15 evaporated and it's not -- because I don't want to test it and then the State's going to 

16 come back and say -- 

	

17 	THE COURT: 1 don't think and expert's going to say, I can't pull any prints off 

18 of that right now. They're going to want to look at it and see if they can because -- 

	

19 	MR. IMLAY: We may be able to give a time period as far as the oils. 

	

20 	THE COURT: -- they need to look at -- they need to look at the type of knife. 

21 They need to look at the type of surface. 

	

22 	MS. HOJJAT: Right. 

	

23 	THE COURT: There's a lot of things that go into -- 

	

24 	MS. HOJJAT: Right. 

	

25 	THE COURT: -- whether a print -- 

Rough Draft - Page 7 

303 



	

I 	MS. HOJJAT: And the -- 

	

2 	THE COURT: -- even can be found on something. 

	

3 	MS. HOJJAT: 	the concern I have at this point, Your Honor, is that if we test 

4 it and the prints aren't found, there would be an element of burden shifting there 

5 because self-defense does still require the State to prove beyond a reasonable 

6 doubt that wasn't self-defense. And so -- 

	

7 	THE COURT: Sure, it does. Absolutely. 

	

8 	MS. HOJJAT: -- it's our position it was their burden to test that knife, and they 

9 didn't do it. And for us to now test it would be taking on a rule of investigation that 

10 they should have done and then they're going to turn around and use that against -- 

	

11 	THE COURT: Okay. 

	

12 	MS. HOJJAT: -- us, all these months later. 

	

13 	THE COURT: That's fine. So you're telling me you don't want the knife 

14 tested? That's fine. 

	

15 	MS. HOJJAT: At this point I'd need to consult with Mr. Hillman to see what he 

16 wants. He is technically the first chair on this case. If we could potentially just push 

17 off this -- 

	

18 	THE COURT: Because I'm not sure I agree with you that it's the State's 

19 responsibility to test it for fingerprints to somehow overcome your theory of 

20 self-defense. If the fact that they didn't test it for fingerprints, the jury says, oh, wow, 

21 we believe, you know, it's self-defense; therefore, not guilty, great. But -- 

	

22 	MS. HOJJAT: Right. 

	

23 	THE COURT: 	I'm trying to tell you so that if you want to test it I'm going to 

24 allow you to test it. 

	

25 	MS. HOJJAT: Okay. 
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1 	THE COURT: You don't have to. 

	

2 	MS. HOJJAT: Right. 

	

3 	THE COURT: Because sometimes that takes away an argument that you 

4 want to make that they should have tested it, they had it, and they didn't. 

	

5 	MS. HOJJAT: Right. At this point if I could consult with Mr. Hillman before 

6 informing the Court of whether -- as to whether we'd like to have it tested or not, just 

7 because I don't -- I don't feel like I should be the one making that decision. 

	

8 
	

THE COURT: Okay. Then I'll continue it for one week. 

	

9 
	

MS. HOJJAT: Thank you. 

	

10 
	

MS. BOTELHO: Thank you. 

	

11 
	

THE COURT: For that. And I guess — 

	

12 
	

MR. MORGAN: I don't think Mr. Hillman'll be back in a week. 

	

13 
	

MS. HOJJAT: Could we potentially continue after — 

	

14 
	

THE COURT: Well, you can call him on the phone. No? Okay, 

	

15 
	

MS. HOJJAT: There — I do think — 

	

16 
	

MR. IMLAY: Could we do it -- 

	

17 
	

MS. HOJJAT: -- the issues might be -- 

	

18 
	

MR. IMLAY: -- yeah, can we do it after the 30 th2  

	

19 
	

MS. HOJJAT: -- stress and heart related, if we can push to after the 30 th? I 

20 just don't want to burden him with this case right now. I'm sorry. 

	

21 
	

MR. MORGAN: The first week of September, I think probably be best for him. 

	

22 
	

MR. IMLAY: Yeah, that would be best. 

	

23 
	

MR. MORGAN: And the State has no opposition to that obviously. 

	

24 
	

THE COURT: Someone else can probably make this decision. Mr. Imlay 

25 could way easy make this decision. 
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MS. HOJJAT: Okay. In that case, a week is fine. 

THE COURT: I mean, I know you could look at this and make this decision. 

You could make this decision. I don't think you need Mr. Hillman to make this -- it's 

basically a strategy decision. 

MS. HOJJAT: Yeah, and the problem, because Mr. Hillman is the first chair 

and it's an attempt murder case, that's why I just didn't want to, for P.C.R. 

purposes -- 

MR. IMLAY: Right. 

MS. HOJJAT: -- somebody outside the case making the decision, but 

whatever Your Honor prefers. 

MR. IMLAY: Yeah, we're okay with that, one week's fine. 

THE COURT: One week, okay. 

MS. BOTELHO: Thank you. 

THE COURT: But I'll give you a new trial date now. 

MR. MORGAN: Thank you. 

THE COURT: Okay? 

MR. MORGAN: Thank you, Your Honor. 

MS. HOJJAT: Thank you. 

MS. BOTELHQ: Thank you. 

[End of bench conference] 

THE COURT: AU right, Mr. Grimes, based upon the representations made by 

your lawyers, it appears as though Mr. Hillman's going to be out 'til after August 30 th , 

so I'm going to have to vacate your trial date. And I'll reset it at this as soon as 

possible on the next -- the next stack. Is October going to be okay? 

MS. BOTELHO: Yes, Your Honor. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1 	THE COURT: Okay. 

2 	THE COURT CLERK: Calendar call will be October 2 at 8:30; jury trial will be 

3 October 9th  at 1:30. 

4 	MS. HOJJAT: Thank you, Your Honor. 

5 	THE COURT: Okay. And then we're going to continue this motion for one 

6 week for the defense to let me know whether they would like the opportunity to test 

that knife. 

MR. IMLAY: Thank you, Your Honor. 

MS. HOJJAT: Thank you, Your Honor. 

MS. BOTELHO: Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT CLERK: August 23, 8:30. 

MR. MORGAN: Thank you, Your Honor. 

PROCEEDING CONCLUDED AT 9:59 A.M. 

ATTEST: Pursuant to Rule 3C(9) of the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure, I 

acknowledge that this is a rough draft transcript, expeditiously prepared, not 

proofread, corrected, or certified to be an accurate transcript. 

JMi 
SARA RICHARDSON 

Court Recorder/Transcriber 

Rough Draft - Page 11 

307 



RTRAN 

19 

21 

22 

18 
APPEARANCES: 

20 	For the State: 

For the Defendant: 

23 

24 

SHAWN A. MORGAN, ESQ. 
Deputy District Attorney 

LAUREN R. DIEFENBACH, ESQ. 

Deputy Public Defender 

Electronically Filed 

0411612013 11:02:43 AM 

CLERK OF OF THE COURT 

2 

3 

4 
	 DISTRICT COURT 

5 
	 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

THE STATE OF NEVADA, 	 ) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

BENNETT GRIMES, ) 
) 
) 

 ) 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

Defendant. 

CASE #: C276163-1 

DEPT. XII 

BEFORE THE HONORABLE MICHELLE LEAVITT, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

14 

15 
	 THURSDAY, AUGUST 23, 2012 

16 
	 RECORDER'S TRANSCRIPT RE: 

STATUS CHECK: THE DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS FOR 

17 	 FAILURE TO GATHER EVIDENCE 

25 RECORDED BY: KERRY ESPARZA, COURT RECORDER 

308 



	

1 	 THURSDAY, AUGUST 23, 2012 AT 9:03 AM. 

	

3 	THE COURT: State versus Grimes, C276163. 

	

4 	THE DEFENDANT: Your Honor. 

	

5 	THE COURT: He's present. He's in custody. 

	

6 	MR. MORGAN: Thank you. Shawn Morgan for the State. Ms. Hojjat is the 

7 person from the Public Defender's Office who wants to be here for the opposition. 1 

8 saw her clown in DC 17. I've got the calendar in Adair that starts at 9:30, so I have 

9 to be there at 9:15. I'm just concerned. I don't know if the Court 

THE COURT: You're late. 

	

ii 	MR. MORGAN: -- would pass it for a week? 

	

12 	MS. D1EFENBACH: We were going to ask for September 10 th  for when Mr. 

13 Hillman came back as well. 

	

14 	THE COURT: That's fine. 

	

15 	MS. DIEFENBACH: Does the Court -- all right with the Court? 

	

16 	THE DEFENDANT: Excuse me, Your Honor, I don't know what happened in 

17 the proceedings the last time I was here on the 14 th, is there anyway I can be 

18 notified of that? 

	

19 	THE COURT: Mr. Hillman's -- what? You don't know what happened at the 

20 proceedings? 

	

21 	THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, the last moment I was here, at the last 

22 appearance. 

	

23 	THE COURT: Your attorney is — your attorney is out. 

	

24 	THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, but there was something that -- 

	

25 	THE COURT: Right, they had to tell me at the bench what was wrong with 

2 
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your attorney. 

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, I thought that they -- 

THE COURT: He's out. 

THE DEFENDANT: No, I thought they sent -- 

THE COURT: It's none of your business why he's out. 

THE DEFENDANT: I thought they had sent it to the lab. 

THE CORRECTIONS OFFICER: Quiet Grimes. 

THE DEFENDANT: I'm talking to Your Honor. 

THE CORRECTIONS OFFICER: You're done. 

THE DEFENDANT: Excuse me? 

THE COURT: Okay. What? Go ahead. What is it? 

THE DEFENDANT: Oh, I thought I had sent out for lab results or something 

like that? 

THE COURT: No. There's no talk about any lab results. There's a motion to 

dismiss for failure to gather evidence at this point. 

THE DEFENDANT: Okay. 

THE COURT: I mean that's just -- that's -- I mean I'm looking at the notes; 

there was a conference at the bench. Based on representations made by Counsel, I 

ordered the matter continued. Oh, I did say to determine whether or not the defense 

is seeking to have the alleged weapon tested? I probably did make some remarks 

'cause I know that's in my head. 

MS. DIEFENBACH: Okay. 

THE COURT: That it -- the weapon is in custody and I know that's the basis 

of the motion. If you want to have the weapon tested, that might be an other issue 

you might want to bring before the Court. 
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MS. DIEFENBACH: And unfortunately, Your Honor, I am merely standing in 

just for procedural purposes -- 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MS. DIEFENBACK: -- so I'm not really familiar at all with the case. 

THE COURT: I'm not sure it's really a failure to gather evidence, than a 

failure to conduct every test known to mankind on the weapon. 

MR. MORGAN: I think Ms. Hojjat wanted to discuss with Mr. Hillman the 

issues that Your Honor brought up at the bench, whether or not they were going to 

seek testing of the weapon. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MS. DIEFENBACH: And I'm not -- and I'm not certain, what were doing with 

that, Your Honor I'm sorry. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MS DIEFENBACH: But we are asking for it to be passed so that both 

attorneys can be present for that. 

THE COURT: All right. But ¶ think I probably did make some representation 

to the parties that if they wanted the weapon tested I would probably allow that. 

THE DEFENDANT: Okay. Yeah, I was just wondering if it took place or not 

or if it came back with any results or anything? 

THE COURT: No, they didn't — the Defense hasn't even asked for it yet. 

THE DEFENDANT: Okay. 

THE COURT: You want September 4 th , is that what you -- 

MS. DIEFENBACH: September 10, please. 

THE COURT: Oh, September 10 th , 

THE COURT CLERK: That's a Monday, can we do it Thursday? 

4 
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12 

1 	THE COURT: That's a Monday. So yeah, uh-huh. 

2 	MS. DlEFENBACH: Oh, l'm sorry. 

3 	THE COURT CLERK: September 13 th  Thursday. 

4 	MS. DIEFENBACH: That will be -- that'll be fine. Thank you so much. 

5 	MR. MORGAN: Thank you, Your Honor. 

6 	 [Proceedings concluded at 9:05 A.M.] 

7 
	 *** 

8 

9 
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best of my ability. 
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1 	LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 13 2012, 9:17 A.M. 

2 	THE COURT: State of Nevada versus Bennett Grimes, 0276163. He's 

3 present. He's in custody. 

	

4 	MS. HOJJAT: Good morning, Your Honor. 

	

5 	THE COURT: Good morning. 

	

6 	MS. HOJJAT: Nadia Hojjat, number 12401, and Roger Hillman -- 

	

7 	MR. HILLMAN: 3076. 

	

8 	MS. HOJJAT: -- for Mr. Grimes. This is on for the defense's motion to 

9 dismiss for failure to gather and preserve evidence. Your Honor, basically in this 

10 case the knife was impounded by officers and the impound report clearly states that 

11 there was apparent blood and visible fingerprints. 

	

12 	THE COURT: I got all that. So let me ask you a question -- 

	

13 	MS. HOJJAT: Yes. 

	

14 	THE COURT: -- do you want it tested? 

	

15 	MS. HOJJAT: Your Honor, it's our -- 

	

16 	THE COURT: Do you want it tested because we're before trial? 

	

17 	MS. HOJJAT: No, Your Honor. We do not want it tested because it's our 

18 position that that is burden-shifting on the State's part. I know that the State 

19 mentioned that in their motion, but they had an obligation -- 

	

20 	THE COURT: Okay, that's fine. You don't want to test it -- 

	

21 	MS. HOJJAT: No, Your Honor. 

	

22 	THE COURT: — because I don't think you have a basis to bring this motion. 

	

23 	MS. HOJJAT: And Your Honor did indicate that at a bench conference last 

24 time we were in court, I would like to just make my record on this issue. 

	

25 	THE COURT: Okay. I'm sorry. 
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1 	MS. HOJJAT: No worries. 

2 	THE COURT: 1 just thought we could cut to the chase. So I apologize. 

	

3 	MS. HOJJAT: And I apologize, we just we'd like to make our record, this is 

4 an attempt murder case. 

	

5 	THE COURT: Sure. 

	

6 	MS. HOJJAT: At this point, a knife was impounded, the knife had visible 

7 fingerprints, visible blood on it. It's been sitting in impound for a year now. 

8 Fingerprints, based on the -- basically the material, the oil, the density of the oil, they 

9 evaporate, a year later, the reason that the defense doesn't want it tested at this 

10 point is because the State had an obligation to test it one year ago when those 

11 fingerprints were fresh and could actually be lifted and could actually be compared. 

	

12 	 At this point, first of all, it's burden-shifting for them to suggest that we 

13 have an obligation to test it; second -- 

	

14 	THE COURT: I didn't say you had an obligation. 

	

15 	MS. HOJJAT: Yes. 

	

16 	THE COURT: So let me make that clear. I said I would allow it. 

	

17 	MS. HOJJAT: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

18 	THE COURT: If that's what the defense wanted. 

	

19 	MS. HOJJAT: And we weren't presenting -- 

	

20 	THE COURT: So I'm not quite sure how it could be material if you don't even 

21 want to know what it says or what the results are. 

	

22 	MS. HOJJAT: Your Honor, the problem is, we'd like to know what it said a 

23 year ago. We don't want to know what it says today when fingerprints have 

24 evaporated and the evidence isn't, basically, in proper condition. 

	

25 	THE COURT: There's no evidence that those fingerprints have been 
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1 evaporated or all that stuff that you have just said. 

	

2 	MS. HOJJAT: The problem is that fingerprints -- 

	

3 	THE COURT: Or that the integrity of the prints have been -- 

	

4 	MS. HOJJAT: -- do erode, they do evaporate. 

	

5 	THE COURT: — compromised. 

	

6 	MS. HOJJAT: And I wasn't suggesting that Your Honor had suggested that 

7 you were burden-shifting, but that the State did suggest in their motion that we had 

8 an obligation to test that if we want it tested. And its our position that that's not the 

9 case, the State does have a burden to rebut a self-defense argument beyond a 

10 reasonable doubt. 

11 	THE COURT: Yes, they do. 

	

12 	MS. HOJJAT: And so it is still their burden. When we've got a case when 

13 both individuals had injuries on them, both individuals were bleeding when the police 

14 arrived, there's a knife, there's blood on the knife, there's fingerprints on the knife. 

15 it's been sitting there for a year now. 

	

16 	THE COURT: One person had 20 stab wounds and the other one didn't. 

	

17 	MS. HOJJAT: And, Your Honor, we're actually rebutting that as well because 

18 it's my understanding there weren't 20 any wounds. I think -- 

	

19 	THE COURT: Okay 

	

20 	MS. HOJJAT: -- the medical reports indicated maybe there were pokes and 

21 scratches totaling 17. 

	

22 	THE COURT: There were what? Say that again, what did you call it? 

	

23 	MS. HOJJAT: They were stab wounds, there were lacerations, pokes, there 

24 was -- they weren't stab wounds -- 

	

25 	THE COURT: Pokes? 
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I 	MS. HOJJAT: -- is our understanding of reading the medical report. 

	

2 	THE COURT: Okay. Lacerations 

	

3 	MS. HOJJAT: Lacerations -- 

	

4 	THE COURT: -- stab wounds are kind of the same thing to me, but go ahead. 

	

5 	MS. HOJJAT: -- lacerations less than three millimeters deep, Your Honor. 

	

6 	THE COURT: Okay. 

	

7 	MS. HOJJAT: And so at this point, we're presenting to Your Honor that 

8 either -- Your Honor has indicated that you will not be dismissing this case pursuant 

9 to our motion, but we would be asking for a jury instruction to the jury that they must 

10 presume that the fingerprints of the victim, Anika Grimes, would have been on that 

11 knife had it been tested. 

	

12 	THE COURT: Based on what? I mean, because the State is the State 

13 does not have the obligation to test the blood, they have no obligation to test the 

14 prints. They have the burden of proof, okay, and you certainly can point that out at 

15 the time of trial, and the jury can consider that. But there is no rule that says they 

16 have to test every single piece of evidence and gather every single -- they, I mean, 

17 in fact the case law is contrary, the police are not required to do all that. 

	

16 	MS. HOJJAT: And, Your Honor, certainly they're not required to test every 

19 single thing in every single area or that could possible exist within a case. 

	

20 	THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

	

21 	MS. HOJJAT: But when there's a weapon that is clearly the weapon that the 

22 State is going to be alleging was the instrument used in the case, when they put in 

23 their own impound report, Apparent blood and visible prints on the blade -- 

	

24 	THE COURT: Uh-huh, 

	

25 	MS. HOJJAT: 	then at that point they, it's our position they do have an 
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1 obligation. The case law certainly says that there's not necessarily an obligation to 

2 go out far and wide following every possible unlikely lead that exists, but when 

3 there's evidence sitting in their laps, yes, they do have an obligation to collect and 

4 preserve and test it. That's why Daniel's motion exists, that's why Daniel case -- 

5 Daniel's case law exists because there is a minimum burden of testing. 

6 	THE COURT: But it was collected, it was preserved. 

7 	MS. HOJJAT: And when it's been sitting in impound for a year, Your Honor, 

8 fingerprints do evaporate. That's the science of fingerprints. They, depending on 

9 the oils in the person's hand, depending on the person, we have no way of knowing 

10 whether her fingerprints were on there a year ago or not. And that's the worst part, 

11 we have it tested today, it's not simply that it might come back with one person's or 

12 not another person's, we have no way of knowing whether something is evaporated 

13 or not, there's just no way to test that. But we know that that does happen. We 

14 know that today a fingerprint might be here, it might be sitting in impound for a year, 

15 and a year later, that fingerprint will no longer be there. 

16 	 And that's why it's there is no remedy for the defense at this point in 

17 testing that knife. We've been left with no remedy in this situation. And that's why 

18 we think that we are entitled to a jury instruction -- 

19 	THE COURT: Because you believe that the fingerprints on the knife would 

20 have been the victim's? 

21 	MS. HOJJAT: Yes, Your Honor. 

22 	THE COURT: The victim alleged in here? 

23 	MS. HOJJAT: Yes, Your Honor. 

24 	THE COURT: And it's was this her house? 

25 	MS. HOJJAT: it was her house. However -- 
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I 	THE COURT: And her kitchen? 

	

2 	MS. HOJJAT: — she testified -- 

	

3 	THE COURT: And her utensils? 

	

4 	MS. HOJJAT: -- Your Honor, she testified at preliminary hearing that the knife 

5 had just been washed and that she did not touch it and that she never held it. And 

6 so her fingerprints should not be on that knife. If she told the truth there, her 

7 fingerprints should not be on that knife. if her fingerprints were on that knife, that 

8 would be both impeachment evidence and evidence going to show that Mr. Grimes 

9 acted in self defense. 

	

10 	THE COURT: Anything from the State? 

	

11 	MS. BOTELHO: Your Honor, is there a particular point you'd like me to 

12 address? I set forth in our motion, first of all, the Court already pointed out the 

13 State, police are not under any obligation to test or gather every single piece of 

14 evidence. The defense is pointing out to the fact that the evidence or fingerprints 

15 may have evaporated, I would contest that. It's basically an assumption. They want 

16 to know that, you need to test it. We've there have been times where we've been 

17 able to get fingerprints years and years and years later. I Mean, there's just no 

18 factual basis for that particular claim. No one's looked at it, 

	

19 	 And as far as the claim of burden-shifting, we're not shifting anything. It 

20 is the State's contention that the defense wants to know whether or not the victim's 

21 blood and fingerprints are on the knife to assert or proffer or support a claim of 

22 self-defense. If that is the case, they need to test the knife. They need to go 

23 forward and make the necessary arrangements and get that done. The State does 

24 not need it for our case in chief. I understand we have burden of proving, not only 

25 beyond a reasonable doubt the elements of this particular crime, but also to rebut 
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I the self-defense claim. I get that. We don't think its necessary for that. 

2 	 Yes, it has been in impound for a year which also gives credence to 

3 the fact that they've had a year, they wanted it tested, they could have done so. It is 

4 readily available, we could have made the necessary arrangements. 

5 	 And with regard to the victim's fingerprints being on the knife, there are 

6 lots of other ways, I mean, this is pure argument for the jury, there are other ways 

7 that the victim's fingerprints could have been there. How about the fact that she was 

8 stabbed, poked, or given lacerations 20 different times? She could have grabbed 

9 the knife to defend herself from this really vicious and brutal attack. Arguments that 

10 can be made if they want this particular evidence to support self-defense, it's 

11 available. 

12 	MS. HOJJAT: And, Your Honor, to clarify, I-- we don't want to know 

13 whether -- what fingerprints are on the knife today, we want to know what 

14 fingerprints were on that knife a year ago. And there's no way to know what 

15 fingerprints were on that knife a year ago. And that evidence that is potentially, 

16 highly exculpatory is Brady. And that means they did have an obligation to collect it 

17 because exculpatory evidence, they do have obligation to collect and hand over to 

18 defense. 

19 	THE COURT: Okay. At this time the Court's going to deny the motion. State 

20 can prepare the order. 

21 	MS. BOTELHO: Thank you, Your Honor. 

22 	MS. HOJJAT: And, Your Honor, I'm sorry, one more thing, just for the record, 

23 the State did say that we had a year to test this knife, we were unaware that this 

24 knife was not being tested for fingerprints and DNA. We saw an impound sheet that 

25 said it's being sent to the lab for testing, and we assumed when that impound sheet 
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says, Obvious, visible fingerprints and blood, that that testing was going to be done. 

2 We found out a week or two before this motion was filed. As soon as we got the 

3 results back, we saw that this testing hadn't been done, we filed the motion. So, it's 

4 an inaccurate statement to say that we've had all this time to test it. We were under 

5 the impression that testing was being done based on the impound sheet. 

6 	THE COURT: Okay. But they didn't test it the day they took it in, which is the 

7 day you wanted to know, right? 

8 	MS. HOJJAT: It's my understanding the testing was done pretty soon 

9 thereafter, Your Honor. 

10 	THE COURT: Which was the day you wanted -- you wanted to know the day 

11 that knife was taken into evidence whose prints were on it. And any -- any day after 

12 that, you say the prints would have evaporated. 

13 	MS. HOJJAT: Well, Your Honor, over time prints evaporate, and certainly 

14 after a year, yes, they they could very well likely have evaporated. However, it's 

15 our understanding the testing was done fairly soon thereafter. We didn't receive the 

16 results until just a month or two ago when this motion was filed. And so we were 

17 under the impression -- 

18 	THE COURT: What testing did they do? 

19. 	MS. HOJJAT: They did DNA skin cell testing, but not the test -- DNA of the 

20 blood, they avoided the blood deliberately. 

21 	THE COURT: What was the result? 

22 	MS. HOJJAT: I don't have the DNA results right now, Your Honor. 

23 	THE COURT: I thought you said you got the results? 

24 	MS. HOJJAT: I don't have them currently at this moment in court. But I do 

25 have the results. 
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1 	THE COURT: You don't remember what they were? 

2 	MS. HOJJAT: I believe the DNA -- 

3 	THE COURT: Whose DNA? 

4 	MS. HOJJAT: -- results indicated that only Ms. Grimes's skin cells were on 

5 the knife handle. 

6 	THE COURT: Okay. All right. 

MS. HOJJAT: Which would support our contention that she was the only one 

holding that knife because this is not her blood, this is her skin cells. 

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Then we'll see you on October 2 nd , 

MS. HOJJAT: Thank you. 

MR. MORGAN: Thank you, Your Honor. 

MS. BOTELHO: Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Thank you. 

PROCEEDING CONCLUDED AT 9:27 A.M. 

ATTEST: Pursuant to Rule 3C(9) of the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure, I 

acknowledge that this is a rough draft transcript, expeditiously prepared, not 

proofread, corrected, or certified to be an accurate transcript. 

SARA RICHARDSON 

Court Recorder/Transcriber 
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TUESDAY, OCTOBER 2, 2012 AT 8:57 A.M. 

	

3 	THE COURT: State versus Bennett Grimes, C276163. He's present. He's in 

4 custody. It's on for calendar call. 

MR. HILLMAN: Judge, I believe we are prepared for trial. I filed in open court 

6 this morning a motion in limine. 

	

7 	MS. LUZAICH: Morning Lisa Luzaich and Agnes Botelho for the State. 

	

8 	THE COURT: Okay. How long will you take? 

	

9 	MS. BOTELHO: I'm sorry Your Honor. 

	

io 	THE COURT: How long do you need? 

	

ii 	MS. BOTELHO: It's about 12 to 14 witnesses, though not very long 

12 witnesses, zero out of state, about -- 

	

13 	THE COURT: So two days, three days? 

	

14 	MS. BOTELHO: — three to four. 

	

15 	MS. LUZAICH: Three to four. 

	

16 	MS. BOTELHO: Depending on the department, three to four. 

	

17 	THE COURT: Three to four days. Okay. When I'm done with my calendar 

18 calls, I'll let you know when you can start. 

	

19 	MS. BOTELHO: Thank you. 

	

20 	THE COURT: So is this overflow eligible? 

	

21 	MS. BOTELHO: Technically it is, Your Honor. 

	

22 	THE COURT: Okay. And when do you want your motion heard? 

	

23 	MR. HILLMAN: We can hear it the morning of trial. 

	

24 	THE COURT: I guess you want it heard. Okay. 

	

25 	MR. HILLMAN: It's more of a housekeeping type thing than anything. 
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THE COURT: All right. Did you give a copy to the State? 

2 	MR. HILLMAN: Yes, I did. 

THE COURT: Okay. Thanks. 

4 	
[Proceedings concluded at 8:59 a.m.] 
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1 g LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, WEDN
ESDAY, OCTOBER 10, 2012

, 10:55 A.M. 

(Outside the presence of
 the prospective jury pa

nel.) 

THE COURT: Good mornin
g. State of Missouri v

ersus 

Bennett Grimes, 0276163
. Mr. Bennett is -- I'm

 sorry, Mr. 

Grimes is present. He'
s in custody. Both sid

es ready to go? 

MS. BOTELHO: The State 
is ready, Your Honor, 

MR. HILLMAN: Yes, Judg
e. 

THE COURT: Okay. Did y
ou all state your 

appearances? 

MS. BOTELHO: Not yet. 
Agnes Botelho for the 

State, 

Your Honor. 

MR. BURNS: 'Patrick Bur
ns for the State. 

MR. HILLMAN: Roger Hil
lman. 

MS. HOJJAT: Nadya Hojja
t for the Defendant. 

THE COURT: Okay. The j
ury panel is here and 

ready 

to go, they're lined up
. Does anybody want to 

have anything 

outside the presence? 

MS. HOJJAT: Your Honor,
 we did have a action i

n 

limine. 

THE COURT: Yes, that's
 right. We do have to 

address 

that, You know, I don't
 know if we have to add

ress that now. 

And did the State file 
an opposition? 

MS. BOTELHO: We did no
t file an opposition. 

Nt. 

Hillman and I spoke in 
my office during the --
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1 	 THE COURT: I seem to agree. 

	

2 
	 MS. BOTELHO: -- and we spoke about cert

ain things; 

3 however there might have been a misun
derstanding as to what 

4 Ms. Hojjat's position was. All we we
re asking with regard to 

5 the motion in limine, what Mr. Hillma
n and T spoke about, Your 

6 Honor, is the State is definitely in 
agreement that we do not 

7 need to bring out the acts or the fac
ts of what led to the - 

TPO; but the fact there was a temporary 
restraining order in 

9 effect at the time of this offense is
 certainly relevant. 

	

10 	It's probative. 

	

11 	 It's actually one of the charged element
s in two of 

12 our offenses and the fact that he --
 there was a TPO was 

13 certainly talked about in the 9-1-1 
calls as the reason both 

14 the victim and her mother, you know,
 state to the police of 

15 wanting the police to come in and re
move the defendant from 

16 the apartment. 

	

17 	 Also the fact that there was a TPO in ef
fect also 

18 goes towards -- it's relevant toward
s the burglary charge; 

19 burglary while in possession of a de
adly weapon in violation 

20 of a TPO certainly goes towards his
 intent. He knew he wasn't 

21 supposed to be there. There was a T
PO in effect certainly 

22 that told him he should not be anywh
ere near the victim or the 

23 apartment. 

	

24 	 So yes, we agree we do not need to talk 
about the 

25 facts. If the jnrors have questions
 about it, we certainly 
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1 can tell them that it's not app
ropriate to talk about the 

2 underlying facts of the TPO, ju
st that that it was in effect. 

3 	 MS. HOJJAT: And, Your Honor, basi
cally the defense's 

4 position is we will stipulate t
o the fact of the appeal for 

5 the fact that it is elements t
hat have been charged. We 

6 understand the State does have 
a burden of proving beyond a 

7 reasonable doubt everything the
y're charging, and so we will 

8 stipulate to those elements to 
the fact of the TPO. 

	

9 	 The reason we don't want the jury 
to hear about it is 

10 because it's our position that
 it -- it's actually far more 

11 prejudicial than probative in 
the sense that as soon as the 

.12 jurors hear there's a TPO, th
e first question in their mind is

 

13 going to be, Well, what cause
d the TPO? What was going on? 

14 Was it violent behavior? 

	

15 	 And this jurisdiction does allow 
jurors to ask 

16 questions. It's more than lik
ely we're going to get a 

17 question. Obviously because t
here's been no bad acts motion 

18 here the question won't be ans
wered and then the juror's going 

19 to be sitting there wondering 
why the question -- why the 

20 question can't be answered. I
t just -- it opens a Pandora's 

21 box. 

	

22 	 We think that the fact that Mr. Gr
imes shouldn't have 

23 been there is very apparent fr
om the fact that he shoved his 

24 way into the apartment, and we
're not disputing the fact that 

25 he did shove his way into tha
t apartment. The fact that 
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1 somebody wouldn't -- somebody saying, "l
eave my apartment," 

2 this person shoved their way in, they're
 saying, "get out, get 

3 out," he's not getting out, it makes per
fect sense to call 

4 	9-1-1. 

5 	 The fact that there wasn't a T20 there doesn
't 

6 matter. Nobody's going to be sitting th
ere going, Well, why 

7 did you call 9-1-1? No. The facts are c
lear that he shoved 

8 his way into this apartment. He was told
 to leave repeatedly. 

9 He didn't leave. And so it's not particu
larly probative as to 

10 the motive of the victim calling 9-1-1,
 but it is highly 

11 prejudicial in what the jurors are goin
g to be thinking about 

12 Mt. Grimes and what they're going to be
 speculating on when 

13 they should be listening to evidence. 

14_ 	 THE COURT: And it's an enhancement. 

15 	 MS. BOTELHO: Yes, Your Honor. 

16 	 THE COURT: I mean, really because I -- I re
viewed 

17 all the statutes and it's just -- it's 
clearly just an 

18 enhancement. 

19 	 MS. BOTELHO: And one other thing, Your Hono
r -- 

20 	 THE COURT: (Inaudible] two enhancements in 
some of 

21 the charges. 

22 	 MS.. BOTELHO: We do. And another thing that
 I'd just 

23 like to point out factually is that the
 victim and the 

24 defendant were married at the time, and
 that could also come 

25 into play. .1 mean, they're married; bu
t she's kicking him out 
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1 of an apartment. A lot of -- 

2 	 THE COURT: Were they married and living
 together or 

3 were they married and separated? 

4 	 MS. BOTELHO: They were married, separat
ed -- 

5 separated because of the TPO and -- 

6 	 THE COURT: Well, not probably because o
f the TPO; 

7 probably because of the act that led 
to the TPO. 

8 	 MS. BOTELHO: Weil, separate because of 
the acts that 

9 led to the TPO, absolutely. I unders
tand, Your Honor, it is 

10 an enhancement, but again it goes to
wards burglary, it 

11 explains the entire story. Everyone
 -- the victim, the 

12 mother, the dad, they all make refer
ence to the fact that 

13 there was a TPO during the 9-1-1 cal
ls, that is why they were 

14 in kind of enhanced fear or an enhan
ced state of suspicion 

15 when the Defendant came into the ho
me. He knew he was not 

16 supposed to be there and -- the Cour
t's indulgence. 

17 	 And, Your Honor, Mr. Burns just pointed 
out the fact 

18 that, you know, with regard to the e
nhancement, the jury 

19 should get to hear the facts and cir
cumstances that would 

20 prove the enhancement. And it is ce
rtainly -- certainly 

21 probative and we can cure the, you k
now, the prejudicial -- 

22 the overly prejudicial nature, of co
urse, by not getting into 

23 the facts and just simply stipulatin
g that there was one in 

24 effect; on that particular day he wa
s not to be there near 

25 that home or near the victim. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Anything else? 

	

2 	 MS. HOJJAT: Judge, as I said, we'
re willing to 

3 stipulate to it so that the ju
ry doesn't need to hear that 

4 there's a TPO. Simply whatever
 -- if he's found guilty of 

5 something, whatever he's found guilty of, we are basically 

6 pleading him guilty to the are
a of the TPO, we're willing to 

7 do that. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: If you stipulated to a TPO, the j
ury 

9 doesn't have to hear that, so 
I'm not quite sure -- a private, 

10 secret stipulation? 

	

11 	 MS. HOJJAT: Yes, basically what w
e're asking for is 

12 for it to just be removed from
 the charging document, removed 

13 from the jury verdict. Simply
 it will be something -- 

14 essentially because a violatio
n of a TPO is and in itself a 

15 misdemeanor, and it's also an 
enhancement in this case on 

16 these charges. Basically we w
ould plead him guilty to the 

17 enhancement of the TFO. The j
ury doesn't need to hear about 

18 it. Doesn't need to be in the
 charging document. Doesn't 

19 need to be on the jury verdict. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: Do you know what that means plead him 

21 guilty, you know, plead him g
uilty to the deadly weapon 

22 enhancement too? I mean, I t
hink this is more of an 

23 enhancement issue. I know you
 made the analogy to the 

24 ex-felon in possession of a firearm, I'm not quite sure it's 

25 the same thing. You know, I d
on't know it it's that. 

UNCERTIFIED ROUGH DRAFT 
7 

332 



	

1 	 It's not like a DUI Third where we don't
 want the 

2 jury to know the person has multiple 
DUIs, therefore they're 

3 here on a felony DUI. I mean, it's -- it's the facts. I 

4 guess I'm trying to figure out how yo
u think I can keep the 

5 facts from the jury? I mean, the Sta
te charged it like this, 

6 there was a TPO in place, the law all
ows for enhancement. 

	

7 	 If you violate the 7PC, just -- it appea
rs to me it's 

8 the same thing as a deadly weapon, i
t's a one to 20. It's the 

9 same thing. It's an enhancement. I 
mean, the gang 

10 enhancement, you have to have expert
 testimony on that, right? 

11 I don't know of any enhancement whe
re we don't let the jury 

12 hear about it. They're going to hea
r about the deadly weapon. 

13 We let them hear about gangs. We le
t them hear about -- 

14 here's the 7P0. 

	

15 	 MS. HOJJAT: And, Judge, it is our posit
ion that this 

16 is like the DUI Third. We believe t
hat this is more closely 

17 analogous to that. I do believe T looked -- looked at the 

18 statute -- 

	

19 	 THE COURT: If T do that, in a Post Conv
iction your 

20 client's going to raise, The judge s
hould have let it go to 

21 the jury and let the jury make that determi
nation. 

	

22 	 MS. HOJJAT: Your Honor, it's my underst
anding -- 

	

23 	 MS. BOTELHO: Absolutely, according to a
pprenda -- 

24 apprendi [phonetic]. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 
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1 	 MS. HOJJAT: It's my understanding that looking at
 

2 the law, and perhaps I looked at this wrong, b
ut it's my 

3 understanding that there's only one enhancemen
t per charge 

4 that can actually be toward a greater sentence
. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: I totally agree with you. 

	

6 	 MS. HOJJAT: And there's already more -- there's 

7 already one enhancement on each of the charges
 that the TPO is 

8 attached to. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: I agree with you. If he is convicted 
of 

10 attempt murder with use of a deadly weapon in
 violation of a 

11 temporary protective order, yes, one enhancem
ent could apply. 

12 They're exactly the same They're both one t
o 20. But, yeah, 

13 it's my belief it's my decision which enhance
ment to use at 

14 the time of sentencing if the jury found both
 enhancements. 

	

15 	 MS. HOJJAT: And that's correct, that's true, Your
 

16 Honor; however in this case given that there'
s a knife at. 

17 issue, and nobody's disputing there's a knife
 at issue, we're 

18 disputing Mt. Bennett's or ME. Grimes' intent
 and the facts 

19 that led to the injuries, but there's no disp
ute of a weapon. 

20 If he is found guilty of attempt murder or ba
ttery, the deadly 

21 weapon is going to be there. This enhancemen
t is -- he will 

22 be found guilty of the enhancement if he's fo
und guilty of the 

23 attempt murder or the battery. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: I know from previous motions you're go
ing 

25 to contend that he has a complete defense to 
this, that he was 
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1 acting in self defense. 

	

2 	 MS. HOJJAT: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: And that the victim was actually the 

4 perpetrator. 

	

5 	 MS. HOJJAT: Yes, Your Honor, and that's precisely 

6 what we're contending, but if the jury doesn't believe us, 

7 essentially if the jury finds that the State has met their 

8 burden of proof beyond a reasonable doubt of the attempt 

9 murder or the battery, the deadly weapon is somewhat attached. 

	

10 	 They can't find an attempt murder without the deadly 

11 weapon in this case because the only reason they're finding 

12 the attempt murder is that they found that he used the knife; 

13 that he was the one in possession of the knife and that he 

14 used the knife. And so basically the fact of the TPO is 

15 simply something there that is going to lead the jury to 

16 presume prior bad acts by Mr. Grimes. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Anything else? 

	

18 	 MS. BOTELHO: . I'll submit to the Court, Your Honor. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Okay. At this time the motion is denied. 

	

20 	 MS. HOJJAT: You Honor, in that case -- I'm sorry, I 

21 didn't mean to interrupt. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: Go ahead. 

	

23 	 MS. HOJJAT: I apologize. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: No, go ahead. 

	

25 	 MS. HOJJAT: In that case, Your Honor, we would just 
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1 ask for what Ms. Botelho indicated th
e State was willing to 

agree to, which is not to allow the fact
s that led up to the 

3 	TPO. 

4 	 THE COURT: No, T agree. 

5 	 MS. HOJJAT: Thank you. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: I agree, I don't think that'
s relevant. 

7 Everyone ready? Okay. Does everyone
 have a jury list? 

	

8 	 MS. BOTELHO: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

10 
	 (In the presence of the prospective jury 

panel.) 

	

11 
	 THE COURT: Okay. No, no. Is he 22? Ar

e you -- is 

12 he 

	

13 	 THE MARSHAL: Yes, Judge. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Okay. Then he should be in 
the first 

	

15 	seat. So it should be 22, 23, 24, 
25, 26. Bear with us. 

16 There's a reason for this. It's jus
t so all the attorneys and 

17 myself know which seat you're in. R
ight next to him. No, no. 

18 That's okay. Just stop and put them
 in order. 22, 23, 24, 

19 25. Officer, are there only four se
ats there? There's one 

20 more. Please bear with us. There's
 one more seat. And 27 

21 starts on the back row. Sorry you e
nded up by yourself over 

	

22 	there. 

	

23 	 THE MARSHAL: Judge, I apologize for the
 -- 

	

24 	 THE COURT: No, no, no problem. No prob
lem. Do the 

25 parties stipulate to the presence of
 the jury venire? 
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1 	 NB. BOTELHO: Yes, Judge. 

	

2 	 MR. HILLMAN: Yes, Judge. 

	

3 	 MS. HOJJAT: Yes, Judge. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Okay. Good morning, la
dies and 

5 gentlemen, and welcome to Depart
ment 12 of the Eighth Judicial 

6 District Court. You have been s
ummoned here today to serve as 

7 jurors in a criminal case entitl
ed State of Nevada versus 

8 Bennett Grimes, Case C276163. B
efore I do allow the attorneys 

9 to speak to you and give you a b
rief statement of the facts, 

10 I'm going to introduce some of 
the members of the staff and 

11 tell you what they do. 

	

12 	 In front of me is Kerry. Kerry is 
a court recorder 

13 in Department 12. She takes do
wn everything that is being 

14 said in the courtroom at all t
imes. At some point she'll be 

15 called upon by myself to prepar
e a written transcript, which 

16 means she will listen to the au
dio and she will transcribe 

17 verbatim everything that is be
ing said. 

	

18 	 So if you're called upon to address
 the Court or the 

19 lawyers, I ask that you please 
state your name and the badge 

20 number that's been provided to 
you by the Jury Commissioner 

21 before responding so we have an
 accurate and clear record of 

22 who is speaking at all times. 
To my right is Susan. Susan's 

23 the clerk of the court. 

	

24 	 In Department 12 it's her job to ke
ep the official 

25 record. She takes the official
 minutes. She takes charge of 
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1 the evidence that will be introduced at 
the time of trial. 

2 You know, during trial and during jury s
election you will 

3 probably see Susan doing other things be
cause she also has to 

4 do other work while we're here in trial 
as well. 

5 	 You've already met the court marshal in Depa
rtment 

6 12. He takes charge of the security. He
's also the person 

V that takes charge of the jury panel. Throug
hout this process 

8 of selecting the jury and after we do hav
e a jury selected, 

9 myself, the attorneys, the parties, the 
staff in Department 

10 12, with the exception of the officer, 
we're not permitted to 

11 have any communication with you whatsoe
ver outside of the 

12 courtroom. 

13 	 So if there's anything that you wish to addr
ess to 

14 the Court or the lawyers, you do it ins
ide the courtroom on 

15 the record with everyone present. The c
ourt marshal is the 

16 only one that's permitted to have any c
ommunication with you 

17 outside of the courtroom. The court ma
rshal is the person 

18 that will come -- just like he brought 
you in today, he'll be 

19 the person when we take recesses that c
anes and gets you and 

20 brings you back in when we're about to 
begin court again. 

21 	 All right. At this time I'm going to allow 
the State 

22 of Nevada to introduce themselves. They
're going to give you 

23 a brief statement of the facts that the
y believe will come out 

24 at the time of trial. They're also goi
ng to read their 

25 witness list. T ask you to pay close at
tention to the names 
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1 of the witnesses who will be cal
led to testify in this matter 

2 because at some point I will ask
 you if you're familiar with 

3 any of the witnesses who will b
e called upon to testify. Go 

4 ahead. 

5 	 MS. BOTELHO: Thank you, Your Honor
. Good morning, 

6 ladies and gentlemen, potential
 jurors. My name is Agnes 

7 Botelho. I am a Deputy District
 Attorney. T, along with my 

8 co-counsel, Patrick Burns, are t
he prosecutors in this 

9 particular case. In this case t
he State is alleging that the 

10 Defendant, Bennett Grimes, on J
anuary -- excuse me -- July 22, 

11 2011, entered the home or the a
partment of his wife, Anika 

12 Grimes, unlawfully and in the h
one he stabbed her multiple 

13 times. 

14 	 To prove our case, the State intend
s to call the 

15 following witnesses, the follow
ing are officers with the Las 

16 Vegas Metropolitan police Bobby
 Hoffman, Sam Diaz, Lori 

17 Crickett, Rodney Hodson, Christ
opher Embree, Michael Perkins, 

18 Steven Thaxton, Louise Renhardt
, Kenny Delzer, Michael Brewer, 

19 Daniel Tomaino, Michelle Tavare
z, Kellie Gauthier, Bradley 

20 Gallup, Julie Marschner, Christ
opher Boddie, Justin Zinger, 

21 Celina Cruz, Jeffrey Lang, Tra
cy Brownlee. 

22 	 And the following are witnesses tha
t are not 

23 officers: Anika Grimes, Stepha
nie Newman, Earl Newman, Doctor 

24 Wasden, Doctor Beverly Hughes, 
Doctor Deborah Kuhls, Doctor 

25 Rachel Weber, Mark Zucaro, and 
Melanie Robinson.. Thank you. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Thank you. 

	

2 	 MS. BOTELHO: Thank you, Your Honor. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: Mr. Hillman. 

	

4 	 MR. HILLMAN: Thank you, Judge. Good morning, ladies 

5 and gentlemen. My name is Roger Hillman, I'm an at
torney. 

6 This is Nadya Hojjat, she's co-counsel in this cas
e. This is 

7 our client, Bennett Grimes. Witnesses that we may 
call are: 

8 Julie Marschner, Khris -- and I can't read his last
 name -- 

9 Soonthornsawad, and Joclyn Fornero. Thank you. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Okay. At this time the clerk is going to 

11 call the roll of the panel of prospective jurors.
 When your 

12 name is called, if you will please say "present" o
r "here." 

	

13 	(Clerk called the roll of prospective jury panel.) 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Anyone whose name was not called by the 

15 clerk of the court? Let the record reflect no res
ponse from 

16 the panel. If you all will please stand and raise
 your hands 

17 so the clerk can administer the oath. 

	

18 	 (Clerk administered the oath.) 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Thank you. Ladies and gentlemen, we're 

20 about to commence what is called voir dire examin
ation. The 

21 term "voir dire" means to tell the truth. During 
this process 

22 you'll be asked questions bearing upon your abilit
y to sit as 

23 fair and impartial jurors. To accomplish this res
ult, various 

24 questions will be asked of you by myself or counse
l for the 

25 parties. 
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On occasion some of these questions will seem 

2 somewhat personal. While we do not wish to unnecessarily pry
 

into your personal lives, the questions are necessary so that 

4 counsel and the Court can make an intelligent determination a
s 

5 to your capabilities to serve fairly and impartially. 

	

6 	 I want you to know that myself and the attorneys and 

7 all other persons involved in this case are concerned with 

8 having this matter tried by jurors who are completely 

9 open-minded, neutral, objective, and unbiased in their 

10 thinking. [Inaudible] discretion is best in neutral 

	

11 	[inaudible] examination of jurors. 

	

12 	 As I stated previously, I will personally conduct the 

13 voir dire, but I will give the attorneys the opportunity to 

14 participate in the questioning. It is important that you kn
ow 

15 the significance of full, complete, and honest answers to al
l 

16 the questions we're about to ask you. 

	

17 	 I caution you not to try to hide or withhold anything 

18 which might indicate bias or prejudice of any sort by any of
 

19 you. Should you fail to answer truthfully or if you hide or
 

20 withhold anything touching upon your qualifications, that fa
ct 

21 may tend to contaminate your verdict and subject you to 

22 further inquiry even after discharged as jurors. 

	

23 	 Your decision should be based upon all of the 

24 evidence during the trial, not based upon preconceived 

25 prejudice or bias. I will conduct a general voir dire 
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1 examination of all of you while you're sea
ted in the audience. 

2 After those general questions, the clerk w
ill call names that 

3 I instruct her to using the order provided
 to us by the Jury 

4 Commissioner to fill the jury box. 

5 	 At some point during the process of selecting
 a jury 

6 the attorneys for both sides have the righ
t to ask that a 

7 particular person not serve as a juror. T
hese requests are 

8 called challenges. There are two types of
 challenges: 

9 Challenges for cause and peremptory challe
nges. 

10 	 Challenge for cause means that a juror has be
en 

11 excused because his or her answers to som
e of the voir dire 

12 questions indicate that he or she would h
ave a difficult time 

13 in giving a fair and impartial hearing to
 the case. I. will 

14 ask the attorneys to pass or waive prospe
ctive jurors for a 

15 cause challenge when they are done questi
oning the prospective 

16 	juror. 

17 	 A peremptory challenge means that a juror can
 be 

18 excused from duty without counsel having 
to give a reason for 

19 the excusal. Please do not be offended s
hould you be excused 

- 20 by either of the challenge procedures. T
hey are simply a part 

21 of the procedure.designed to protect the 
rights of the parties 

22 under our system of government. 

23 	 If you wish to respond to a question individu
ally and 

24 in the affirmative, please raise your han
d, state your name, 

25 and provide us with the badge numberthat
 was given to you by 
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1 the Jury Commissioner. 

2 	 Is there anyone on the panel who has ever been 

3 convicted of a felony? The record will reflec
t no response 

.4 	from the panel. 

	

5 	 Is there anyone who is not a United State citizen?
 

6 The record will reflect no response from the p
anel. 

	

7 	 Is there anyone who is not a resident of Clark 

8 County, Nevada? The record will reflect no res
ponse from the 

9 panel. 

	

10 	 Is there anyone who has such a sympathy, prejudice
, 

11 or bias relating to age, religion, race, gend
er or national 

12 . origin, that you feel would affect your ability t
o be an 

13 open-minded, fair, and impartial juror? Go 
ahead, sir. You 

14 can stand up, that would be helpful. Thank yo
u very much. 

15 Your name and badge number? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: Antonio Jackson. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: You have to speak up a little bit, Mr.
 

18 Jackson. 

	

19 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: Antonio Jackson. 

	

20 
	 THE COURT: Thank you. 

	

21 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: Badge number 040. My 

22 reason -- 

	

23 
	 THE COURT: Yeah, I asked you a question and you rose 

	

24 
	

I asked a question of the panel and you raised you
r hand. 

	

25 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: Right. My reason I 
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1 wouldn't put another black male in jail fo
r something I truly 

2 believe he didn't do so. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: Well, would that apply to anyone 

4 regardless of their race? You wouldn't wa
nt to put anyone in 

5 jail for something they didn't do? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: [Inaudible.] 

	

V 	 THE COURT: Is that a yes? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: Yes. 

THE COURT:• Okay. Don't worry. I'm not goin
g to ask 

10 anybody to put anybody else in jail. Doe
s that make you feel 

11 better? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: I guess. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: Okay. Do you have any prejudice 
or bias 

14 that you want to discuss with me? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: Well, my bias is 
like 

16 said as far as what this case represents 
as far as another

•  
17 black man getting accused of doing somet

hing, I don't 

	

18 	[inaudible]. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: I'm sorry. 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: I don't think he 
did it 

21 so -- 

	

22 	 THE COURT: Who? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: I wouldn't be abl
e to -- 

24 I wouldn't be able to give my -- I wouldn
't he able to give my 

	

25 	I'd be biased. 
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THE COURT: Okay. 

2 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: I just wouldn't want to 

see [inaudible]. 

THE COURT: Okay. You said "I don't think he did 

5 	it." 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: Right. I wouldn't -- it 

7 would be very hard. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: All right. T want to go back to that "I 

9 don't think he did it." 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: Right. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Do you know the Defendant? Do you know 

12 Mr. Grimes? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: I do not. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Do you know anything about this case? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 040: No. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Have you heard any evidence -- 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: [Inaudible.] 

	

18 	 THE COURT: -- that you've already come to a 

19 conclusion? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: I wouldn't be able to -- 

21 I wouldn't -- just on the fact that he's black, T wouldn't be 

22 able to say, Okay, regardless of what certain testimony 
was. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: So regardless of what is happening in 

•24 this courtroom, you could not sit on a panel and be fair
 and 

25 impartial if the Defendant is African American? 
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I 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: Correct. 

	

2 	 THE COURT: Okay. Because? 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: Too many in 
prison now 

4 for a lot of things they probably did
n't do. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: Okay. So you have a belief 
there's 

6 people in prison for things they did
n't do -- 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: Right. 

	

8 
	 THE COURT: -- and therefore you're goin

g to right 

9 that wrong in this case? 

	

1 Q 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: I wouldn't. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Okay. If you sat on this pa
nel and the 

12 State proved their case by proof bey
ond a reasonable doubt, 

13 would you he able to return a verdi
ct of guilty? 

	

1 4 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: No. 

	

15 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Why not? The State pr

oves their 

16 case, they've met their burden of pr
oof, you would say "not 

17 guilty"? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: Yes. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: And let a person that did it
 go? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: I mean, I wo
uld have to 

21 -- I would have to have seen him act
ually do it. T mean, like 

22 okay [inaudible]. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Okay. If there was a white p
erson 

24 sitting there, would you have to hav
e seen that person do it 

25 in order to find them guilty? 
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: Yes. 

2 
	 THE COURT: Okay. So it doesn't matter? 

3 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: No. 

4 
	 THE COURT: What -- okay, so it's really not a 

race 

5 thing? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: No. 

	

7 	 THE COURT: It's, you know, you don't think you
 can 

8 be fair and impartial unless you actually witnessed an 

9 incident? 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 040: Correct. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Okay. And you don't know Mr. . Grimes? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: No. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: Okay. And if you were a witness to
 the 

14 crime, do you think we'd let you sit on the
 jury panel? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: Probably not. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Okay. But you believe you'd have t
o be a 

17 witness to a crime in order to be a fair and impartial juror? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 040: Exactly. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. You can have a se
at. 

20 Okay. Anyone else that wishes to respond to that question? 

21 The record will reflect no further response
 from the panel. 

	

22 	 Are there any of you who are acquainted with th
e 

23 Defendant in this matter, Mr. Grimes? Any
one that knows Mt. 

24 Bennett Grimes? The record will reflect no
 response from the 

25 panel. 
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1 	 Are there any of you who know his attorneys? The 

2 record will reflect no response from the panel. 

	

3 	 Are there any of you who are acquainted with the 

4 Deputy District Attorneys who are assigned to prose
cute this 

5 matter? Go ahead. Your name and badge number? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 008: Janet Robertson, 008. I 

7 work for the District Attorney's Office. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Okay. What do you do? 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 008: Legal secretary. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: For who? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 008: Tommy Panda. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay.. You can have a seat. Anyone else? 

13 The record will reflect no response from the panel
. 

	

14 	 The District Attorney's Office employs many deputies 

15 and other personnel. Is there anyone who has such
 a close 

. 16 relationship with either the District Attorney, M
t. Steve 

17 Wolfson, his deputies, or other members of his sta
ff that you 

18 feel might affect your ability to serve as a fair
 and 

19 impartial juror in this particular case? The reco
rd will 

20 reflect no response from the panel. 

	

21 	 Are there any of you on the panel who are acquainted 

22 with any of the witnesses whose names were previo
usly 

23 mentioned by the attorneys? Anyone who is familia
r with any 

24 of the witnesses who will be called to testify? T
he record 

25 will reflect no response from the panel. 
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1 	 We do expect this case to take about 2
 to 3 days. We 

2 expect to be done by Friday, but wh
en T say that I always like 

3 to make sure that jury panels know 
I'm making an estimate, my 

4 best estimate. So if we didn't fini
sh on Friday, we would be 

5 back here on Monday. 

	

6 	 But based upon my communication with th
e attorneys 

7 and my familiarity with the case, I
 think that we will be done 

8 by Friday. You can have -- are you
 okay, sir? Do you like -- 

9 do you want to stand up? 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 052: Yes, ma'am,
 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 052: I can only 
sit like 15 

13 minutes at a time. I had a back op
eration so I can't sit for 

14 any length of time. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: And that's 0052, Mr. Ernest
 Thompson. 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 052: Yes. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Are you okay today? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 052: Just uncomf
ortable. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 052: So I need t
o stand. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: That seat is not comfortabl
e? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 052: No, ma'am. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Sorry. 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 052: That's okay
. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: If you feel like you want t
o stand up, it 
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1 looks like we put you in the right 
place. Please feel free to 

2 stand up. If you have to move aroun
d, please feel free to do 

3 that. Just don't walk out without t
elling me, okay? 

	

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 052: No, I'm not
 going to. 

5 I'm just going to stay. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: All right. I'm just making
 sure. Okay. 

7 You just need to move around, right
? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 052: Just stand.
 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Feel free. 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 052: Thank you. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Okay. Is there anyone who 
feels that 

12 serving for that amount of time wo
uld be such an undue burden 

13 on you that it would make it impos
sible for you to be here? 

14 I'm just going to start on the fro
nt row. Go ahead, sir. 

15 Your name and badge number. 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 013: Chad Hanso
n, 008. I'm an 

17 orthopedic surgeon and there's no 
one else to cover my 

18 practice. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Okay. I'm sorry. It's Mr. 
Hanson, your 

20 badge number is 0013. 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 013: Sorry. 

	

22 
	 THE COURT: All right. You're an ortho

pedic surgeon? 

	

23 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 013: Yes. 

	

24 
	 THE COURT: All right. And no one to c

over your 

25 practice? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 013: Correct. 

2 
	 THE COURT: Who's covering it today? 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 013: I am currently. I 

4 finished surgery -- 

5 	 THE COURT: You're not, you're in court. 

	

6 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 013: I finished surgery at 

7 9:00 a.m. I'm oncall at three hospitals currently. 

	

8 
	 THE COURT: Okay. I have a feeling that if you're 

9 oncall, you obviously told them that you're doing jury du
ty? 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 013: 1 was hopeful to be. 

11 excused rather early. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 013: Generally during business 

14 hours, emergent stuff kind of waits until after clinic i
s over 

15 and so -- but tomorrow I have a full clinic. 

	

16 
	 THE COURT: What does that mean? You have a full .  

17 day? 

	

18 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 013: That means I have 40 

19 patients that I'm the only person that could see them. 
Friday 

20 I have surgery all day that no one else can perform. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hanson. Anyone 

22 else? Anyone on the front row? Go ahead, ma'am. 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 016: Janice David, Badge No. 

24 0016. Until Friday I should be okay, but if it goes bey
ond 

25 that, I'm a court reporter, self-employed, and I usually
 have 
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1 quite a challenge getting my courtroom covered on Tuesdays 

2 should it go there. 

3 	 THE COURT: Do you work in the courthouse? 

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 016: Not this one. Next 

5 Tuesday I will be in Goodsprings. 

6 	 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. Go ahead, sir. 

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Ruben Placido, 80017. 

8 I'm the only one to take my daughter to school and picking her 

9 up from school. 

10 	 THE COURT: How old is she? 

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: She's 15, and we don't 

12 have any school bus in our area available. 

13 	 THE COURT: Okay. So she's a sophomore in high 

14 	school? 

15 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Yes, ma'am. 

16 
	

THE COURT: Okay. So you could take her to school; 

17 that wouldn't be a problem because we don't start before 7:00. 

18 	She starts at 7:00 a.m.? 

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: 7:00 a.m. 

20 	 THE COURT: Okay. And they get out around -- 

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: 1:30. 

22 
	 THE COURT: 1:25. 

23 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: 1:25. 

24 
	 THE COURT: Okay. And you pick her up everyday? 

25 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Yes. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Do you work full time? 

	

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: My wife's the only one 

3 that's working. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: I quit the job just 

6 because once she start with school, you know, she go to 

7 Northwest Career, that school, and it's too far from our -- 

8 from our place and we don't have -- 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. So she goes to one of the I guess 

10 -- do they call them -- is it magnet still? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Magnet school. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Magnet high schools. I thought if your 

13 child went to a magnet high school they had to provide bus 

14 transportation? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: We don't have any school 

16 bus available in our area. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Again I thought if your child went to a 

18 magnet school, the school district provided transportation; 
is 

19 that not true? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: I don't think so. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Have you ever checked? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Well, we talk to them 

23 about it and they said there's no available for our -- becau
se 

24 of our distance. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: So she can't like hop on a Centennial bus 

UNCERTIFIED ROUGH DRAFT 
28 

353 



1 and get dropped off at Northwest? You know what I'm talking 

2 about? Because Centennial High School is in that area. I 

3 mean, there's lots of schools there. There's a high school, 
a 

4 middle school, and then technical school. 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Yes, ma'am, it's too far 

6 from our place. 

7 	 THE COURT: What side of town do you live on? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: I live on Pecos, around 

9 Pecos and Oxinger. 

	

10 
	 THE COURT: Who's going to pick her up today? 

	

11 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Me. 

	

12 
	 THE COURT: Okay. You're not going to be excused by 

	

13 	1:30. 

	

1 4 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Okay, ma'am. 

	

15 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Do you have someone to do it 

16 today? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: I think my wife work in 

18 the -- she's an OR nurse and she works from 8:30 to 7:30. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Okay. 8:30 a. m.? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Yes, ma'am. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: To 7:30 p.m.? What are her days off? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Seven o'clock, yes. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: What are her days off? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Sometimes it's days off 

25 are Tuesday. 
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THE COURT: Works four days, right? T
hree days off? 

2 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Yeah, so 

-- 

3 	 • THE COURT: What are her three days 
off? 

4 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Tuesday, S

aturday and 

5 Sunday. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: She doesn't have them in a
 row? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: That's -- 
that's -- 

8 that's her schedule. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. If you were asked t
o be here, 

10 would you be able to make arrange
ments for your daughter to be 

11 picked up? You'd be able to take 
her in the morning, but we 

12 generally go til 5:00 o'clock. W
ould you be able to make 

13 other arrangements? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: I could tr
y, ma'am. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. Anyone 
else on that 

16 first row? Second row? Go ahead
, sir. 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: Your Honor
, Kirk Sanford, 

	

18 	Badge No. 0026. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Good morning. 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: Good morn
ing. I'm the 

21 CEO of a [inaudible] company and
 I have -- 

	

22 	 THE COURT: CEO of? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: CEO of a p
ayment company, 

24 a financial services company -- 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Okay. 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: -- in the gaming 

2 industry, and T have meetings that are set up. I think we 

3 have a very busy schedule with clients that are visiting from 

4 out of town. And while it wouldn't be unduly burdensome for 

5 me -- 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Just a minute. We got to get the 

7 cellphones off. If you have a cellphone, just put it on 

8 silent or turn it off because it interferes with -- 

	

9 	 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I borrowed this from my son. 

10 I don't know how to turn it off. 

	

11 	 THE MARSHAL: I'll try. I did tell the jurors to 

12 shut off their cellphones, Judge. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: Okay. You used your son's. Okay. 

14 That's okay. Maybe we can figure out how to -- 

	

15 
	 THE MARSHAL: I'll try to shut it off. 

	

16 
	 COURT RECORDER: What was your badge number, sir? 

	

17 
	 THE COURT: Kerry, that's okay. I don't need his 

18 badge number. Mr. Sanford, so you're a CEO of a financial 

19 service company for the gaming industry? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: Correct. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Okay. What does that mean? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: And I have -- well, I 

23 provide various forms of payment solutions to casino operators 

24 around the world, and while it's not unduly burdensome for me 

25 to attend, T do have prior meetings that were established with 
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1 people that are traveling in that may now 
be burdensome for 

2 them if they have to change tickets and th
e cost to do so as 

3 well as any hotel arrangements that they m
ay have made. 

1 	 THE COURT: Okay. Could you rearrange the me
etings? 

5 We're not here at night. 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: No, I understand
, but 

7 these meetings occur in the day. They wer
e already 

8 established and some of these are day trip
s established and it 

9 would really -- might be burdensome for th
em given, you know, 

10 last-minute change notices for tickets o
r hotel 

11 accommodations, so I just wanted you to 
take that into 

12 consideration. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: So not so much for
 me, 

15 but for others. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Okay. I -- and I just -- for my 
own 

17 edification, you've had this jury summons
 for quite some time? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: Understood. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Right? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: It's been a coupl
e -- 

21 maybe a few weeks, yes. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: And I'm sorry, Yo
ur 

24 Honor, I tried to plan for that but -- an
d therefore I pushed 

25 meetings more to Thursday evening and Fri
day, but if it 
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1 extends beyond that then into the following week, I didn't 

2 anticipate that may be required. 

3 	 THE COURT: Why does everyone think they're going to 

4 come here and be excused? 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: I didn't think that. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: I thought that perhaps it 

8 would be a day or two days [inaudible] and it wouldn't be an 

	

9 	issue. 

	

10 
	 THE COURT: This is a pretty short trial in terms of 

11 the kind of trials I do. The next one I'm going to do is 

12 going to be really long, it's going to be about a month. 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: Fair enough. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: You want to come for that one? I'm just 

15 kidding. I'm just kidding. 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: If I get enough advanced 

17 notice I'll make sure. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: But two to three -- I really was just 

19 kidding. 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: I know. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: But two to three days is a very short 

22 time period for trials -- I mean for serving for that amount 

23 of time. Doesn't sound like it's going to be a burden for 

24 you, but it may be a burden for other people that are relying 

25 upon you? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: Correct. 

2 
	

THE COURT: Okay. Do you have other people that work 

3 for you? 

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: I do. 

5 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: But they come to see me, 

7 I'm the CEO of a company, its a start-up company in a 

8 start-up scenario. CEO is sort of instrumentally involved in 

9 the organization. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Sanford. Thank you 

11 very much for being here. Anyone else on the second row? Go 

12 ahead, ma'am. 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 028: Vijaya Rajagopal, and the 

	

14 	Badge No. is 080028. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Thank you. 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 028: This, you know, death in 

17 the family last week -- 

	

18 	 THE COURT: I'm sorry. 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 028: And they have some 

	

20 	[inaudible] some services in California so I was hoping that I 

21 could attend for Saturday, 

	

22 	 THE COURT: In California? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 028: And my [inaudible] in 

24 India, she passed away last week. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: If you need to go to a funeral on 
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1 Saturday, we're not in session on Saturdays. 

	

2 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 028: No, but T have to fly on 

3 Friday. 

THE COURT: What time? 

	

5 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 028: I have not booked the 

6 ticket because T knew that I had to come here. 

	

7 
	 THE COURT: Could you book your ticket for after 5:00 

	

8 	o'clock? 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 028: Yeah, I could. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Okay. But the services are on Saturday? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 028: Yeah, Saturday and the 

12 following week they have funeral services planned. It's lik
e 

13 10th day through 13th day, that's what they're doing, you 

14 know, the religious ceremonies. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Okay. So the 10th day to the 13th day 

16 you need? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 028: Yeah, yeah. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 028: So that's -- that's 

20 Monday -- that's Saturday, Sunday, Monday. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, ma'am. Anyone else 

22 over there? Go ahead, sir. 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 030: My name is Adam Rovit, it 

24 is Badge 080030. I'm a physician and -- 

	

25 	 THE COURT: What, do we have two doctors? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 030: Yes, at least I g
uess. 

	

2 	 THE COURT: Yeah, at least. 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 030: I'm a sub-special
ist of 

4 one of only two in the city. 

5 	 THE COURT: What do you do? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 030: I'm a pediatric 

7 ophthalmologist. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 030: I served on a jury
 trial, 

10 criminal, three years ago, and it was a s
ignificant burden for 

11 my practice and my patients. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. How long was that trial? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 030: Three days. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: All right. And it's -- so obviou
sly you 

15 were able to do that, but it was a burde
n? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 030: It was a signific
ant 

17 burden in terms of canceling, rescheduli
ng. You know, I felt 

18 at the time it was part of my civic duty 
and I served. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: You feel like you got called back
 too 

20 soon, is that what I'm sensing? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 030: I think so. I me
an, I 

22 don't know what the schedule is. I was i
n another city and I 

23 was never called in 15 years and I got ca
lled here twice in 

24 three years. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: You must be doing something right
. That 
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is -- that is pretty quick. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 030: Right. 

3 	 THE COURT: But you can get a jury summons I think 

every 18 months. They can't call you within 18 months, okay? 

Thank you. Thank you very much for being here. Anyone else? 

6 Go ahead, sir. 

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: Hi, Peter Pryor, 0037. 

8 	 THE COURT: Good morning, Mr. Pryor. 

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: This gentleman here, I 

10 have a back problem, nerves and spinal damage from an injury,
 

11 and I have to walk over a quarter of a mile to get to a bus 
to 

12 get here. The bus to get to here is a certain time. If I 

13 miss the bus, the Court will probably be mad at me for showi
ng 

14 up late. 

15 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Is it a problem getting to the 

16 bus? 

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: It's over a quarter-mile 

18 walk and when my back's not feeling right, it takes me a lot
 

19 longer to get there. 

20 	 THE COURT: Okay. But you were able to plan 

21 accordingly today? 

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: I left my house before 

23 	8:00, and I got to the jury selection room at 9:28. 

24 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: So it took me over an 
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1 hour and a half -- 

	

2 	 THE COURT: All right. 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: -- to go about seven 

blocks. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: Okay. So you're within seven miles of 

6 the courthouse? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: I think it's [inaudible]. 

8 I'm on Charleston and -- between Charleston and Sahara on 

9 South Sandhill. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Charleston and Sahara makes no sense. 

11 They both run -- 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: They both [inaudible], 

13 I'm on South Sandhill, right in the middle of both of them. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Okay. Okay. Well, would you be -- 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO 037: [Inaudible.] 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Would you be able to do it if you were 

17 asked to be here? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: Well, like I say, if it's 

19 bad weather or if I miss the bus and the thing starts -- the 

20 trial starts at 8:00 or 9:00 in the morning and I'm 15 or 20 

21 minutes late, then I'll -- 

	

22 	 THE COURT: We would all be waiting for you. 

	

23 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: -- then I'll probably be 

24 cooked. 

	

25 
	

THE COURT: You won't be in trouble, but we'd all be 
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1 waiting for you. 

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: Yeah. 

3 	 THE COURT: Okay. So you would be able to plan 

4 accordingly? 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: I'd try to get here, but 

6 like I said, if I miss it, I don't want to hold everybody up. 

7 	 THE COURT: Okay. Well, you would. 

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: I don't want to be in 

9 trouble for being late. 

10 	 THE COURT: You won't be in trouble. Why do you 

11 think you're going to be in trouble? Okay. Thank you very 

12 much for being here, Mr. Pryor. Anyone else over there? 

13 Third row? Anyone else that wishes to respond to the Court? 

14 Okay. The record will reflect no further response from the 

15 panel. 

16 	 Are there any of you who believe that for any other 

17 reason you would be unable to serve as a juror in this 

18 particular case? The record will reflect no response from the 

19 panel. 

20 	 Is there anyone on the panel who's ever been engaged' 

21 in law enforcement work or have a spouse or close relative 

22 who's ever been engaged in law enforcement work? Okay. We'll 

23 start over here. 

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Nick Schettino, 080005. 

25 My niece is a DA in New York. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Okay. How long has she been a DA in New 

2 York? 

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Five or six years. 

THE COURT: How often do you talk to her? 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Actually she's coming in 

6 this weekend to see me. I talk to her, you know, every couple 

7 	of weeks. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: You ever talk to her about what she does 

9 for a living? 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Yes. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: What do you talk about? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Just about when the case 

13 is over, she just, you know, mentions them. I saw her in the 

14 paper a couple of times. She had some big cases. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Okay. Anything about her employment that 

16 would affect your ability to be fair and impartial? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: No. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Okay. You understand that, if you were 

19 selected to be a juror on this panel you would not be 

20 permitted to discuss this case with her or anyone else? You 

21 would only be permitted to speak it with -- speak about this 

22 case with your fellow jurors and only after you have been 

23 released to deliberate upon your verdict? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Yes, 

	

25 	 THE COURT: So you wouldn't be able to call up your 
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1 niece, or if she was here, talk to her at all about this case; 

2 do you understand that? 

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Yes. 

4 
	

THE COURT: Would you comply with that order? 

5 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 037: Yes. 

6 	 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, sir. Anyone else? Go 

ahead, sir. 

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 011: My name is Gordon Brooke, 

9 Badge No. 080011. My brother and my ex-brother-in-law were 

10 law enforcement officers. 

11 	 THE COURT: Where? 

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 011: Elko, Nevada for my 

13 brother-in-law, and Tucson, Arizona for my brother. 

14 	 THE COURT: Anything about their employment that 

15 would affect your ability to be fair and impartial? 

16 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 011: I don't think so, I just 

17 want to let you know. 

18 	 THE COURT: All right. You're the only one who can 

19 tell me whether it would affect your ability -- 

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 011: I think I can do it, but 

21 they're both officers and we've talked about difference cases 

22 and, you know, they're patrol officers and what they have to 

23 deal with. 

24 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 011: Stuff like that on day to 
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1 day, we talk about many times. 

2 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 011: Okay. 

4 	 THE COURT: That's fine. Anything about that that 

5 would affect your ability to be a fair and impartial j
uror in 

6 this particular case? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 011: I don't think so, no. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, sir. Anyone else? Go 

9 ahead, ma'am. 

	

10 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Karen Augspurger, 060021. 

11 My brother-in-law was District Attorney of Lincoln Co
unty and 

12 now he works in Henderson as an attorney. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: Anything about his employment that would 

14 affect your ability to be fair and impartial? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: T. don't think so. 

	

16 
	 THE COURT: Okay. You're the only one who can tell 

	

17 	me. 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: No. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: All right. You understand you won't be 

20 able to discuss this case with him? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Yes. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: And you understand you won't be able to 

23 call him up and ask him any questions? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Yes. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Okay. And you'll comply with that order? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Yes. 

	

2 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. Anyone else on thi

s 

3 first row? Second row? Okay. You're up. 

	

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: I'm up, huh? Vicky 

5 Woodside, 080036. My son's a corrections offi
cer. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Who does he work for? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: High Desert. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Anything about -- so he works for the 

9 State of Nevada? 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: Yeah. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: All right. Anything about his employm
ent 

12 that would affect your ability to be fair and
 impartial? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 036: No, 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Okay. You know you wouldn't be able t
o 

15 discuss the case with him? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: Right. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Does he live here in Las Vegas? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: Yeah. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: So he commutes? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: Yeah, they drive back 
and 

21 forth everyday. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: Okay. Anything about his employment t
hat 

23 would affect your ability to be fair and impa
rtial? 

	

•24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: No. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. Anyone else on the
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1 second row? Third row? Anyone else that wishes to
 address 

2 the Court on that? The record will reflect no resp
onse from 

3 the panel. 

4 	 Is there anyone on this panel who believes they may 

5 not be able to follow all the instructions of the C
ourt on the 

6 law even if the instructions differ from your pers
onal 

7 conceptions of what the law ought to be? Anyone wh
o believes 

8 they cannot follow the law as given to you by myse
lf? The 

9 record will reflect no response from the panel. 

10 	 As a follow-up to the previous question, in any 

11 criminal trial the members of the jury sitting col
lectively 

12 are the judges of the question of fact. As the Ju
dge in this 

13 case, I'm the judge of the questions of law. It's
 my 

14 responsibility to be sure that I give instructions
 on the law 

15 that apply to this particular case. 

16 	 It would be a violation of a juror's duty if he or 

17 she tried to render a judgment based upon what he 
or she 

18 believed the law to be if that differed from my in
structions. 

19 With that in mind, is there anyone who feels they 
cannot be 

20 fact finders and follow my instructions on the app
licable law 

21 in this case? The record will reflect no response
 from the 

22 panel. 

23 	 Under our system there are certain principles of law 

24 that apply in every criminal trial. They are that
 the 

25 information filed in this case is a mere accusatio
n and is not 
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evidence of guilt. That as Mr. Bennett Grimes sits here today 

2 he is presumed innocent and therefore the State must prove all 

3 of the allegations in their charging document by proof beyond 

4 a reasonable doubt. 

5 	 Is there anyone who does not understand or believe in 

6 these basic precepts of American justice? The record will 

7 reflect no response from the panel. 

8 	 Does anybody know anything about this case other than 

9 what's been stated in the courtroom here today? The record 

10 will reflect no response. 

11 	 [Inaudible] panel, at this tine, ladies and 

12 gentlemen, I'm going to have the attorneys meet me out in the 

13 hallway. Well just converse for a couple of minutes and then 

14 well be right back in here. So Court is still in session. 

15 The officer will remain with you and we'll be right back. 

16 	 (Pause in proceedings.) 

17 	 THE COURT: We locked him out. Sorry about that. 

18 Sorry. Sorry, Mr. Hillman. Do the parties stipulate to the 

19 presence of the jury panel? 

20 	 MR. HILLMAN: Yes, ma'am. 

21 	 MS. BOTELHO: Yes, Your Honor. 

22 	 MS. HOJJAT: Yes, Your Honor. 

23 	 THE COURT: Thank you. There being no objection, the 

24 clerk's going to call the first 23 names provided to us by the 

25 Jury Comnissioner. When your name is called, please take your 
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1 seat in the jury box. The court mars
hal will help you figure 

2 out where you need to sit. 

3 	 (Clerk announced the 23 names for the pan
el.) 

THE COURT: Okay. The people that are s
till 

5 remaining on the first row, if you'll
 please stand up and just 

6 stand in the back and as soon as we s
eat the first 23 we'll 

7 let you know where you can have a se
at. You can go sit back 

8 there on a back row, that's perfect.
 Thank you. 

	

9 	(Clerk continues to announce names for th
e panel.) 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Mark -- is it Whe
lchel? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Yes. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Good morning. How long have
 you lived in 

13 Clark County? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Thirty years
. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Your employment, training, e
ducation 

16 background? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Licensed mar
riage and 

18 family therapist and [inaudible] mas
ter's degree. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: What's your master's degree 
in? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Marriage and
 family 

21 therapy. 

	

22 
	 THE COURT: Okay, Your marital status? 

	

23 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Married. 

	

24 
	 THE COURT: Is your wife employed? 

	

25 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Yes. 
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1 	 THE COURT: What does your wife do for a living? 

	

•2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: She's a Clark County 

3 school teacher. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: What does she teach? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Second grade. 

THE COURT: Okay. How long has she done that? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Twelve years. 

THE COURT: Do you have any children? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Yes. 

THE COURT: How many? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Four. 

THE COURT: Are any of them old enough to he 

13 employed? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Yes. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: All of them? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: All of them are old 

17 enough, yes. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Okay. Will you start at the top and you 

19 tell us what they do for a living? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: My oldest is 30, he's a 

21 worship pastor. My next oldest is 24, he's a wors
hip pastor 

	

22 	also. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 001: MY next is 21, he is a 

25 waiter. 
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THE COURT: Okay. 

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: And my next is 18, and 

3 she's a college student. 

4 	 THE COURT: Okay. Well, she doesn't have to be 

5 employed? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: That's right. 

THE COURT: She's a full-time student? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Yes. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. Any reason why you could not be a 

10 completely fair and impartial juror -- 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: No. 

	

12 
	 THE COURT: -- if you were selected to serve on this 

13 panel? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: No, 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Thank you, sir. Thank you very much for 

16 being here. Mr. Nick Schettino, how long have you lived
 in 

17 Clark County? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Ten years. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Your employment, training, education 

20 background? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Retired. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: How long have you been retired? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Ten dollars years. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: What did you do before you retired? 

	

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: I was an associate 
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1 director at a brokerage firm. 

THE COURT: Your education background? 

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Two years of college. 

THE COURT: What did you study? 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Excuse me? 

6 	 THE COURT: What did you study in those two years of 

7 college? 

8 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Business. 

9 
	 THE COURT: Business. Your marital status? 

10 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Married. 

11 
	 THE COURT: Is your wife employed? 

12 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: No, she's retired. 

13 
	 THE COURT: She's not employed? 

14 
	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 005: No, 

15 
	

THE COURT: Is she retired as well? 

16 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Yes. 

17 
	 THE COURT: Okay. What did she do before she 

18 retired? 

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Housewife. 

20 	 THE COURT: Okay. So she's retired from being a 

21 housewife? 

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: She is. 

23 	 THE COURT: Sort of. Okay. Do you have children? 

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Yes, three. 

25 	 THE COURT: Three children. Are any of them old 
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1 enough to be employed? 

2 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Yes. 

	

3 
	 THE COURT: Can you tell us what each does for a 

4 living? 

5 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Excuse me? 

	

6 
	 THE COURT: Can you tell us what they do for a 

7 living? 

	

8 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: My oldest works in a 

	

9 	hospital. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Doing what? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Just maintenance. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Second one's a plumber. 

14 And the third one's unemployed at the moment. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Okay. Any reason why you could not be a 

16 completely fair and impartial juror -- 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: No. 

	

18 
	 THE COURT: -- if you were selected to serve on this 

19 panel? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: No, 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Thank you. Mir. Phillip Jennings, good 

22 morning. How long have you lived in Clark County? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: Twenty-seven years. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: Your employment, training, education 

25 background? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: I'm a union cement mason 

2 and I'm a high school graduate. 

3 
	 THE COURT: How long have you been a mason? 

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: Since I got out of the 

5 Marine Corp in '80, '82. 

6 	 THE COURT: Okay. Long time? 

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: Yes. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: All right. And you served in the 

9 military? 

	

10 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: Yes. 

	

11 
	 THE COURT: When did you serve in the military? 

	

12 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: When? 

	

13 
	

THE COURT: Uh -huh. 

	

14 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: I went in 1979 to 1982. 

	

15 
	

THE COURT: And did you say you were in the Marines? 

	

16 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: Yes. 

	

17 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Your marital status? 

	

18 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: Single. 

	

19 
	 THE COURT: Do you have any children? 

	

20 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: No. 

	

21 
	

THE COURT: Do you know of any reason why you could 

22 not be a completely fair and impartial juror if you were 

23 selected to sit on this panel? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: No. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Thank you, sir. Thank you for being 
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1 here. Ms. Pod, how long have you lived in Clark Count
y? 

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: Two and a half years. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: Where did you move from? 

	

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: Thailand. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: Okay. Your education background? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: I -- I work -- 

	

7 	 THE COURT: Your education? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: Oh, I -- from Thailand 

9 went to high school. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Okay. And what do you do for a living? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: [Inaudible.] 

	

12 
	 THE COURT: I'm sorry? 

	

13 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: Housewife. 

	

14 
	 THE COURT: Housewife? 

	

15 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: Yes. 

	

16 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Do you have children? 

	

17 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: Yes, twenty. 

	

18 
	 THE COURT: I'm sorry. How many children do you 

19 have? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: Three. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Three children? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: Uh-huh. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Are they old enough to work? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: Yes, my -- T have two 

25 sons and one daughter. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Okay. What do they do for a living? 

	

2 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: My son, he work in Dell 

3 Company. 

THE COURT: A what company? 

	

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: A Dell Computer. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: I'm sorry. Oh, everybody can hear except 

7 me. Okay. All right. And the other child? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: He still go to school. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: And the daughter? 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: Daughter still go to 

	

11 	school. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. Any reason why you could not be a 

13 completely fair and impartial juror if you were selected to 

14 serve? 

	

15 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: My husband, he not get 

16 along very well. He's sick. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Your husband's sick? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: Yes, He's 77 years old. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: That's not that old. 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: But he cannot get around 

21 very good. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: All right. Is he disabled? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: Just little bit, not that 

24 much, you know. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Okay. If you're here, how is that going 
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1 to affect him? 

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: Nobody watching w
hen T 

3 not there, you know. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Does he need someone to watch him
? 

	

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: Sometimes. Somet
imes he 

6 goes to the bathroom, you know, he cannot
 get up. Some little 

7 things, you know. 

THE COURT: Okay. If you're required to be he
re, 

9 will you be able to make arrangements -- 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: Sure. 

	

11 
	 THE COURT: -- to cover that? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: Yes. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: All right. Thank you. Any reaso
n why 

14 you could not be a completely fair and im
partial juror if 

15 you're selected to serve? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 007: No. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Thank you. Mr. Cruz, how long ha
ve you 

18 lived in Clark County? 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 009: Four years. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: Your education background? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 009: High school gradu
ate, and 

22 security officer at the Bellagio. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: How long have you done that? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 009: Almost one year. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Your marital status? 
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 009: Single. 

2 	 THE COURT: Do you have children? 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 009: Yes. 

4 	 THE COURT: How many children do you have? 

	

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 009: One. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Is that child old enough to be employed? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 009: No. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: So small? 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 009: Yeah. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Okay. Any reason why you could not be a 

11 completely fair and impartial juror if selected to serve on 

12 this panel? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 009: No. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Thank you. Mt. Brooke, how long have you 

15 lived in Clark County? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 011: Forty-six years. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Your education background? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 011: High school graduate. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: What do you do for a living? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 011: I run a meat department 

21 for a local grocery chain. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: Your marital status? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 011: Single. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: Do you have any children? 

	

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 011: Two. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Okay. Are your chil
dren old enough to be 

2 employed? 

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 011: Yes
. 

4 	 THE COURT: What do they do for
 a living? 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 011: My 
daughter is 27 is CEO 

6 of her household and my son
 is -- 

	

7 	 THE COURT: Is a what? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 011: She
's a housewife. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 011: The
re's a lot to do 

	

11 	there. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Yes, there is. 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 011: And
 she is a -- my son 

14 who is 25 is a convenience 
store clerk. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Any reason why you 
could not be a 

16 completely fair and impartial juror if selected to serve? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 011: No,
 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Thank you. Thank you for being here. 

19 Ms. Janice David, how long have you lived in Clark County?
 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 016: For
ty-three years. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Your education back
ground? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 016: Hig
h school graduate and 

23 three years of college. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: What did you study 
in college? 

	

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 016: Cou
rt reporting slash 
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1 business administration. 

2 
	

THE COURT: Okay. You're a court reporter? 

3 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 016: Yes, I am. 

4 	 THE COURT: Okay. And you said you work in the 

5 Goodsprings Court? 

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 016: Yes, I'm a freelancer. I 

7 work with an agency and T also cover Justice Court for 

8 Goodsprings and Boulder City. 

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. Your marital status? 

10 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 016: Married. 

11 
	 THE COURT: Your husband employed? 

12 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 016: Yes. 

13 
	

THE COURT: What does yonr husband do for a living? 

14 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 016: He sells cars. 

15 
	

THE COURT: Do you have any children? 

16 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 016: Yes. 

17 
	

THE COURT: How many? 

18 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 016: Three. 

19 
	

THE COURT: Are any of them old enough to be 

20 employed? 

21 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 016: Yes. 

22 
	

THE COURT: Can you tell us what they do for a 

23 living? 

24 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 016: My older son is a 

25 security guard at the D, Las Vegas. And my other one -- my 
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1 other sons are 10 and 7. 

2 	 THE COURT: Okay. Any reason why you c
ould not be a 

3 completely fair and impartial juror
 if you were selected to 

4 serve on this panel? 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 016: No. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Thank you. Thank you for b
eing here. 

V Okay. Mr. Placido, good morning. How 
long have you lived in 

8 Clark County? 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Almost 8 ye
ars. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Your education background?
 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: High school
 graduate. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. And you're not emplo
yed right now? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Not employe
d right now. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Okay. And you're married a
nd your wife's 

15 an O.R. nurse, correct? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Yes, ma'am.
 

	

17 	 THE COURT: And you have children, corr
ect? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: One. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: One child. And she's a hig
h school 

20 student, right? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: Yes, ma'am. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: Any reason why you could no
t be a 

23 completely fair and impartial juro
r if you were selected to 

24 serve on this panel? 

	

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: No. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Thank you, sir. Ms. Michala Reinholtz, 

2 how long have you lived in Clark County? 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 018: Two and a half years. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Where did you move from? 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 018: Salt Lake City, Utah. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Your education background? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 018: I have an associate's 

8 degree in med -i cal assisting and currently a college student 

9 again to go back for nursing. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: So you're in a nursing program? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 018: I'm not in it yet. I'm 

12 doing the pre 7regs. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: Okay. So you're enrolled full-time in 

14 school? 

	

15 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 018: Uh-huh. 

	

16 
	

THE COURT: Okay. Do you work? 

	

17 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 018: Not currently, no. 

	

18 
	

THE COURT: Okay. Your marital status? 

	

19 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 018: Married. 

	

20 
	

THE COURT: Is your husband employed? 

	

21 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 018: He is not employed right 

	

22 	now. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Do you have children? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 018: Step-daughter who's in 

25 high school. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Okay. Any reason w
hy you could not be a 

2 completely fair and imparti
al juror if selected to serve

? 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 018: No
. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Thank you. Mr. Mar
tino, good morning. 

5 How long have you lived in 
Clark County? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020: Six
 years. 

	

7 	 THE COURT: Your education back
ground? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020: Mas
ter's in business 

9 administration. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: An MBA? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020: Yea
h. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. And what do 
you do for a living? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020: Inv
estor/trader. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Your marital statu
s? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020: Sin
gle. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Any children? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020: No
. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Do you know of any 
reason why you could 

19 not be a completely fair a
nd impartial juror if you wer

e 

20 selected to serve on this 
panel? 

	

21 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020: No

. 

	

22 
	 THE COURT: Thank you, sir. Ms

. Karen Augspurger? 

	

23 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Yes

. 

	

24 
	 THE COURT: How long have you l

ived in Clark County? 

	

25 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: For

ty-six years. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Your employment, training, education 

2 background? 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: I'm a retired school 

4 teacher. I have a master's degree. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: I'm sorry. You have a master's? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Master's plus 32 hours
. 

THE COURT: What's your master's in? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Secondary education. 

THE COURT: What did you teach when you were a 

10 teacher? 

	

11 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Home economics. 

	

12 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Middle school or high school? 

	

13 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: High school. 

	

14 
	 THE COURT: Okay. YOVIT marital status? 

	

15 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Married. 

	

16 
	 THE COURT: Is your husband employed? 

	

17 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: No, he's retired. 

	

18 
	 THE COURT: What's he retired from doing? 

	

19 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: General contractor. 

	

20 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Have any children? 

	

21 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Yes, two boys. 

	

22 
	 THE COURT: Are they old enough to be employed? 

	

23 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Yes. 

	

24 
	 THE COURT: Can you tell us what they do for a 

25 living? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: The oldest one is a heavy 

2 equipment operator, but he's unemployed right now. And th
e 

3 younger one has a mold and asbestos testing business. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Any reason why you could not be a 

5 completely fair and impartial juror if selected to serve 
on 

6 our panel? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: No. 

	

B 	 THE COURT: Thank you. Mr. Jason Morgan, how long 

9 have you lived in Clark County? 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 022: Almost five years. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Your employment, training, education 

12 background? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 022: I am an assistant 

14 superintendent on a golf course; bachelor of science deg
ree in 

15 horticulture. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: I'm sorry. In what? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 022: Horticulture. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Okay, Your marital status. 

	

19 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 022: Married. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: Is your wife employed? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 022: Yes, she's a sales 

22 representative for Oro Roofing. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Do you have any children? 

	

24 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 022: No. 

	

25 
	 THE COURT: Any reason why you could not be a 
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1 completely fair and impa
rtial juror if you were se

lected to 

2 serve on this panel? 

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 022:
 No. 

4 	 THE COURT: Thank you, sir.
 Mr. Conley, how long 

5 have you lived in Clark 
County? 

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 023: 
Thirty-three years. 

7 	 THE COURT: Your employment,
 training, education 

8 background? 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 023: 
High school graduate. 

THE COURT: What do you do f
or a living? 

	

11 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 023: 

Self-employed painter. 

	

12 
	 THE COURT: Your marital st

atus? 

	

13 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 023: 

Single. 

	

14 
	 THE COURT: Do you have any 

children? 

	

15 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 023:

 No. 

	

16 
	 THE COURT: Any reason why y

ou could not be a 

17 completely fair and imp
artial juror if you were s

elected to 

18 serve? 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 023:
 No. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: Thank you, sir.
 NS. Hernandez? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: 
Yes. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: How long have yo
u lived in Clark County? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: 
Two and a half years. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: Your employment,
 training, education 

25 background? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: High school graduate. 

	

2 	 THE COURT: What do you do for a living? 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I'm an administrator for 

4 medical records. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: I'm sorry? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Administrator for medical 

7 records retrieval company. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: What's medical records retrieval? 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: We are custo&an of 

10 records -- 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: -- for orthopedic 

	

13 	centers. 

	

14 
	 THE COURT: Your marital status? 

	

15 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Single. 

	

16 
	

THE COURT: Do you have any children? 

	

17 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yes, one boy. 

	

18 
	 THE COURT: One child. Is he old enough to be 

19 employed? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No, he's three. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Okay. Any reason why you could not be a 

22 completely fair and impartial juror if you were selected to 

23 serve? 

	

24 
	

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No. 

	

25 
	 THE COURT: Thank you. Brandon Keenum. Do you mind 
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1 standing up because I have
 a hard time hearing from th

at part 

2 of the courtroom? How lon
g have you lived in Clark C

ounty? 

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 025: S
ix years. 

4 	 THE COURT: Your employment, 
training, education 

5 background? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 025: I
'm airplane pilot, 

7 bachelor's degree in aero
nautics. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Your marital stat
us? 

	

9 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 025: M

arried. 

	

10 
	 THE COURT: Is your wife empl

oyed? 

	

1 1 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 025: N

o. 

	

12 
	 THE COURT: Do you have any c

hildren? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 025: O
ne three-year-old. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Any reason why yo
u could not be a 

15 completely fair and impar
tial juror if selected to se

rve? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 025: N
o. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Thank you, sir. 
Thank you for being 

18 here. Mr. Sanford, how l
ong have you lived in Clark

 County? 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: T
en years. 

	

20 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Your educa

tion background? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: I
 have a doctorate of 

22 chiropractic degree. I d
on't practice it. I'm curre

ntly a 

23 CEO of a payments compan
y. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: How do you go fro
m having a doctorate in 

25 chiropractic -- just --
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: Better opportunity. 

	

2 	 THE COURT: Okay. All right. I mean, you said it 

was a start-up company? 

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: Yes. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: Will you just say the name of your  

6 company again? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: It's called Sideline 

8 Payments. 

	

9 
	 THE COURT: And how long have you done that? 

	

10 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: Since the beginning of 

	

11 	2010. 

	

12 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Your marital status? 

	

13 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: Married. 

	

14 
	 THE COURT: Is your wife employed? 

	

15 
	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 026: No. 

	

16 
	 THE COURT: Do you have children? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: Yes, three. Son's 11, 

18 and twin daughters, 9. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Okay. So any reason why you could not be 

20 a completely fair and impartial juror if you were 
selected to 

21 serve? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: No. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Thank you, sir. Thank you very much for 

24 being here. Ms. Karen Hopkins, how long have you 
lived in 

25 Clark County? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Thirty-seven years. 

	

2 	 THE COURT: Thirty-seven years. Your education 

3 background? 

	

1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: [Inaudible] in 

5 counseling. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: What do you do for a living? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Right now I'm retired. 

•8 have taken on special projects at a high-risk high school.• 

	

9 	 THE COURT: You're retired, but you've taken on a 

10 project? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Uh -huh. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: At a high school that has high-risk 

13 children? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Uh-huh. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Are those all yeses? 

	

16 	Ii 	PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Yes, they are. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. Remember Kerry 

18 because if you say uh -huh, that's what's going to cone up on
 

19 my transcript, okay? And so this project, what does it 

20 require you to do? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: We just work with getting 

22 kids who are extremely short with credits in order to try to
 

23 help them graduate. This particular school has a lot of 

24 opportunities for them to be placed in different situations 
so 

25 that they are more likely to graduate. 
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THE COURT: Can you just give me an example
? Like 

2 what? So you go into this high school th
at has high-risk kids 

3 and these are kids that probably wouldn'
t graduate but for 

4 your help? 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Well, there are 

6 traditional -- well, this is a tradition
al high school. 

	

7 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: But they don't h
ave as 

9 many programs in place to assist kids. T
his particular school 

10 has gotten grants from different organi
zations to help pay for 

11 the kids to finish their education. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. So do you get paid? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Do I get paid? 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO.. 027: Yes. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Okay. And so what do you -- I m
ean, are • 

17 there classes? Tutors? Proficiency he
lp? What do you do? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: There's classes
. There's 

19 tutoring. There are situations where w
e send them to an 

20 option of online schools so that they c
an work at their own 

21 pace if they are credit deficient so th
at they can move more 

22 quickly through the course work and hav
e an opportunity to 

23 graduate versus staying at the traditio
nal, you know, one- 

24 period through six-period day and not be
ing able to catch up. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Okay. Your marital status? 
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1 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Married. 

	

2 
	 THE COURT: Is your husband employed? 

	

3 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Retired. 

	

4 
	 THE COURT: Okay. What is your 

husband retired from? 

	

5 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Teaching, high school 

6 teaching. 

	

7 
	 THE COURT: How long did he do 

that? 

	

8 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Thi

rty-two years. 

	

9 
	 THE COURT: In Clark County? 

	

1 0 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Yes

. 

	

11 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Do you have a

ny children? 

	

12 
	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 027: Yes. 

	

13 
	 THE COURT: How many? 

	

14 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: I h

ave three. 

	

15 
	 THE COURT: Are they old enough to be employed

? 

	

16 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Yes. 

	

17 
	 THE COURT: Can you tell us wha

t they do for a 

18 living? 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: I h
ave one who is in 

20 business dining. I have an
other one who is an office manager 

21 for an elementary school. 
And then I have a son who is 

a 

22 police officer in Midville, Utah. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: In Mid -- 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Sor
ry -- Midvale outside 

25 of Salt Lake City, Utah. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Okay. How long has your son been
 a 

2 police officer? 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: About -- for abou
t 

4 probably the last 15 years. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: Okay. Do you know what kind of -
- what 

6 he does? Does he patrol? Is he a detecti
ve? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: He's a -- he does
 a 

8 patrol. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. Anything about his employm
ent that 

10 would affect your ability to be fair and 
impartial? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: No. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: You know of any reason why you co
uld not 

13 be a completely fair and impartial juror 
if you were selected 

14 to serve on this panel?

• 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: No. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Thank you. Thank you for being he
re. 

17 Mir. Robert -- would you pronounce your l
ast name for me? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: Wilczynski, Your 
Honor. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Wilczynski. Thank you. How long
 have 

20 you lived in Clark County? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: Fourteen years. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: Your employment, training, educat
ion 

23 background? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: Two years of col
lege. I 

25 spent most of my career in human resource
s management. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: 
Most recently I'm 

3 unemployed. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Your marital sta
tus? 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: 
Married. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Is your wife emp
loyed? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: 
No, she's been a 

8 housewife since we moved 
here 14 years ago. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Do you have chil
dren? 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: 
Yes, one daughter. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Is she old enoug
h to be employed? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: 
Yes. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: What does she do
? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: 
She's currently 

15 unemployed as well. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Okay. Any reason
 why you could not be a 

17 completely fair and impa
rtial juror if you were sel

ected to 

18 serve? 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: 
Your Honor, I've been 

20 asking myself that while
 I stand here for a while. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: 
I'd like to think I can 

	

23 	be. 

	

24 
	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

25 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: I

 should tell you, 
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1 though, my daughter was in an abusive relation
ship with the 

2 father of our granddaughter. In fact, [inaudi
ble] now. And I 

3 -- I think I can put that out of my mind but t
he similarity of 

4 the situations. 

5 	 THE COURT: That you just -- so your daughter was 
in 

6 a situation -- 

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: She's never been 

B seriously injured. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 029: But the father of our 

11 granddaughter she lived with at the time was 
abusing her 

12 verbally and physically. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 029: Never anything that h
ad 

15 gone to court or anything like that. Police 
were called 

16 several times and they got security [inaudibl
e] in a hotel and 

17 pretty much cut off relation with him for the
 past several 

	

18 	years. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: All right. •So how long has it been si
nce 

20 this has gone on? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: Probably about five 

22 years, but it was kind of a hot button with m
e. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Okay. I understand, you're a father.
 Is 

24 there anything -- I mean, you understand that
 has nothing to 

25 do with this case? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: Right. I understand 

2 that. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: Its just I -- I -- I 

5 knew this fellow T thought pretty well. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: Kind of a guy who 

	

8 	[inaudible] shirt off his back, great guy. More I found out 

9 about him, I just couldn't believe it. Made me really 

10 	cynical. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Okay. Is there anything about your 

12 personal issues that would affect your ability to be fair and 

13 impartial in this case? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: I'd like to think not. 

15 I'm in human resources, obviously I have to mediate a lot of 

16 things and try and be fair and impartial in those situations 

17 and I think I've done a good job of it. 

18 	 THE COURT: Okay. Well again, everybody that comes' 

19 to this courtroom, comes to this courtroom with lots of life 

20 experiences, okay? I don't expect you to leave them at the 

21 door; but, well, I guess I kind of do expect you to leave them 

22 at the door. I mean, can you leave that experience at the 

23 door, listen to the evidence that you hear in this case and 

24 judge this case solely upon what you see and hear in the 

25 courtroom and the instructions on the law and nothing else? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: I think th
at I can. 

	

2 	 THE COURT: Okay. Well -- 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: I just tho
ught I should 

4 make you aware of the situation. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: No, I appreciate that beca
use obviously 

6 it caused you to think that maybe y
ou should disclose that, 

7 right? Okay. Is there anything ab
out that situation that's 

8 going to affect your ability to be
 fair and impartial? 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: T don't be
lieve so, Your 

	

10 	Honor. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Well, you keep saying, "I 
don't think so, 

12 T don't believe so," and you're th
e only one that can tell me. 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: I guess I'
m having a hard 

14 time coming up with a hard yes. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: Until I'm 
in the 

17 situation I'm not sure I really k
now. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: All right. Well, let me a
sk you this 

19 because I can't -- I cannot wait 
until you've heard all the 

20 case and you go back to deliberat
e and you get back in the 

21 deliberation room and you start t
alking about your daughter's 

22 situation; and that has nothing t
o do with this, do you 

23 understand that? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: Yeah, T --
 I don't think 

25 I would do anything like that. 
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THE COURT: Okay. 

	

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
29: I'm just worried ab

out 

3 how subconsciously it
 might affect my train 

of thought. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: All right. W
ell, that's what I'm wo

rried 

5 about too. Is it goi
ng to do that? Is it g

oing to impede 

6 your ability to look 
at the evidence objecti

vely -- 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 02
9: I don't know, Your Ho

nor. 

THE COURT: -- and weigh
 it fair and impartiall

y? 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 02
9: I can't honestly say,

 no, 

	

10 	it won't. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Okay. So you
 think what's happened 

to 

12 your daughter could 
-- do you believe that 

what's happened to 

13 your daughter should
 affect Mr. Bennett Gri

mes? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 
029: Not at all. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Neither do I
, because would that be

 fair? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
29: No, 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Okay. Are yo
u a juror that's going 

to 

18 allow that to affec
t your judgment? 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
29: Again I would hope not. 

20 I believe that I can
 keep them separate, 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Okay. I'm no
t -- I'm not hopeful th

at 

22 your questions are g
ood enough right now. I

 mean, you have to 

23 be able to say you c
an or you can't, okay? 

Someone that's 

24 kind of on the fence
, generally that's not 

really a yes; and 

25 both of these partie
s, they're entitled to 

fair and impartial 
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1 treatment. 

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: I agree com
pletely. 

3 	 THE COURT: Okay. If you -- if you hav
e family 

4 members sitting in W. Bennett Grime
s' seat, would you want 

5 someone like yourself sitting on th
e panel? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: Probably no
t. 

	

7 	 THE COURT: Why not? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: Because aga
in I can't be 

9 sure -- 

	

10 	 THE COURT: It's always a good question
, isn't it? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: It is. Aga
in I just 

12 can't be 100% positive. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: Okay. And the reason is if
 you had a 

14 family member sitting over there, 
you'd want them to have a 

15 fair and impartial trial, would yo
u not? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 029: Yes. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: In front of a panel of thei
r peers, 

18 listen to the evidence in the case
, correct? 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: Yes. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: And base their decision on 
the law and 

21 the evidence they heard in the cou
rtroom, right? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: Yes. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: And nothing else? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: Right. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Okay. Are you a person tha
t can do that? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: Again
 I can't give you a 

2 hard yes. 

3 	 THE COURT: Okay. All right. 

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 029: Sorry
, Your Honor. 

5 	 THE COURT: That's okay. I'm jus
t going to ask you 

6 to just go sit on the back ro
w. And at this time I'm going t

o 

7 ask Daniel Davenport -- Mr. Da
venport, if you will come up and

 

8 take Seat No. 18. Okay. Mr. D
avenport, I'm going to ask you 

9 a few questions. How long hav
e you lived in Clark County? 

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: Five 
years. 

11 	 THE COURT: Where did you move fr
om? 

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: St. L
ouis. 

13 	 THE COURT: What's your education
 background? 

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: Bache
lor's degree. 

15 	 THE COURT: In? 

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: Busin
ess administration 

17 management. 

18 	 THE COURT: What do you do for a 
living? 

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: I wor
k high-end luxury 

20 retail. 

21 	 THE COURT: High-end luxury reta
il. What's that? 

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: A sto
re like Louis 

23 Vuitton or Chanel or somethi
ng. 

24 	 THE COURT: Okay. All right. Hav
e you worked at 

25 those two stores? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: No. 

	

2 	 THE COURT: Okay. Your marital status? 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: Single. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Do you have children? 

	

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: No. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Any reason why you could not
 be a 

7 completely fair and impartial juror i
f you were selected to 

8 serve on this panel? 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: No, but I wa
s -- 

	

10 	 THE COURT: What's "no but"? Go ahead. 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: I just want 
to let you 

12 know I recently had a traumatic expe
rience. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: I'm sorry, Do you feel comf
ortable 

14 sharing it with everybody or -- 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: Sure. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Okay. I just want to make s
ure. 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: About four m
onths ago my 

18 best friend was murdered in a domest
ic violence situation back 

	

19 	in St. Louis. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: I'm sorry. Okay. It was you
r best 

21 friend. In the relationship, who wa
s your best friend? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: My friend, Deandre. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Is that -- was that the woma
n or the man? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: The guy. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: The guy? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: Yeah. 

	

• 2 	 THE COURT: Okay. He was murdered in l
ike a domestic 

3 violence type of situation? 

	

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: Yes, 

	

5 	 THE COURT: Okay. Can you just general
ly tell me 

6 what the facts are? I mean generall
y, you don't have to be 

7 real specific. It was in St. Louis,
 correct? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: Yes. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. And you were here? 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: Yeah, I was
 here. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: I was here
. There was an 

13 argument with his -- with the moth
er of his child. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: And he was asked to 

16 leave, he didn't leave, and someon
e else was called and it 

17 escalated to that outcome. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Who was -- so somebody -- a
 third person 

19 was called in? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: By the -- 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Did the mom murder your fri
end or the 

22 third person? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: No. The third person, 

24 the guy that was -- 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Okay. The third party. Has that third
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1 party been arrested? 

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: No,
 because it was 

3 supposedly self defense. 

4 	 THE COURT: Okay. That -- was t
hat person arrested? 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: No.
 

6 	 THE COURT: Not even arrested? 
Is that a no? 

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: No.
 

8 	 THE COURT: Okay. So you -- and
 you're -- again I'm 

9 asking you to tell me things
 that I assume you heard third

 

10 person -- 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: Yes
. 

THE COURT: -- is that correct?
 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: Yes
. 

THE COURT: Okay. Is there anyt
hing about that 

situation that's going to affec
t your ability to be fair and 

impartial in this case? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: No.
 

THE COURT: Okay. Can you set t
hat aside and -- and 

do your job as a juror based on
 the evidence you see and hear 

in the courtroom and the law as
 given to you by myself? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043: Yes.
 . 

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, s
ir. I'm sorry you had 

to tell us that. I apologize. 
Elizabeth Denny, how long have

 

you lived in Clark County? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 034: Eig
ht years. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Your employme
nt, training, education 

2 background? 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 03
4: I have a bachelor's i

n 

4 clinical psychology. I
'm a personal trainer an

d a bartender. 

5 I'm married. My husban
d is a chef, at the [ina

udible] hotel. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Chef? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 034
: Uh -huh. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Okay. Do you
 have children? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 03
4: No. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Any reason wh
y you could not be a 

11 completely fair and i
mpartial juror if you we

re selected to 

12 serve on this panel?
 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 03
4: No. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Thank you. Th
ank you for being here. 

15. Ms. Woodside, how lo
ng have you lived in Cla

rk County? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 03
6: Twenty-three years. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Your employme
nt, training, education 

18 background? 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 03
6: I'm a school bus driv

er 

20 and I'm a high schoo
l graduate. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: And it's obvi
ously okay for you to be

 

22 here; the kids are go
ing to make their way to

 school? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 03
6: Yeah. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: What's the ru
le with magnet schools, 

dO 

25 you know? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: There should be a bus, 

2 yeah. 

3 	 THE COURT: Okay. That's what I thought, right? 

4 Okay. And [inaudible] stays at one mile, if you're beyond one 

mile is that -- 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: [Inaudi
ble] one mile. 

	

7 	 THE COURT: Is that still the rule?
 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: [Inaudi
ble.] 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. How long have yo
u been a bus 

10 driver? 

	

11 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 036: Twenty-

three years. 

	

12 
	 THE COURT: School district? 

	

13 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 036: Yes. 

	

14 
	 THE COURT: Do you like it? 

	

15 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: It's all right. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: All right. I won't ask
 you anymore 

17 questions. Your marital status? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: Married
. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Is your husband employe
d? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: Yes. T
ransportation 

21 supervisor. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: For? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: School 
district. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: Okay. Do you have any 
children? 

	

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: Yes, tw
o. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Are they old enough to be e
mployed? 

	

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: Yes. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: What do they do for a livin
g? 

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: My son's a 
corrections 

5 officer and my daughter is a cashier
 at a Home Depot in Utah. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Any reason why you could no
t be a 

7 completely fair and impartial juror
 if you were selected to 

8 serve on this panel? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: No, 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Thank you. Thank you for b
eing here. 

11 Mr. Peter Pryor, how long have you
 lived in Clark County? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: Seventeen y
ears. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: Your education background? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: High school
 graduate, 

15 retired firefighter. 

	

16. 	 THE COURT: Retired firefighter. For w
hat 

17 jurisdiction? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: I was in Ne
w York state, 

19 it was in [inaudible], city of Wat
er [inaudible]. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: So you've been retired for 
17 years or 

21 more? Okay. Your marital status
? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: Married. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Is your wife employed? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: She works f
or Loomis. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: For? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.
 037: Loomis. Used to

 be 

2 Loomis Fargo; now 
its just Loomis. Arm

ored car company. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: Okay. Do y
ou have any children?

 

	

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.
 037: I have a son an

d two 

5 stepdaughters. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: So three c
hildren? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.
 037: Yes. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Are they o
ld enough to be emplo

yed? 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.
 037: Yes. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Can you te
ll us what each does 

for a 

11 living? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.
 037: My son's out of

 work 

13 right now, had to 
move back home. Two g

irls -- 

	

14 	 THE COURT: With you? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.
 037: Yes. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.
 037: Two girls still

 live in 

18 New York. 

	

19 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Are 

they old enough to be
 

20 employed? 

	

21 	 • PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO
. 037: Yes. 

	

22 
	 THE COURT: What do th

ey do? 

	

23 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.

 07: They hook up par
t-time 

24 jobs since the eco
nomy went south. One 

works for Dunkin' 

25 Donuts and the oth
er one for a dry clea

ner, I think. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Any reason why you could no
t be a 

2 completely fair and impartial juror
 if you were selected to 

3 serve on this panel? 

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: Well, for t
he 22 years 

5 was on the fire department -- 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: -- I would 
go out on 

8 domestic calls where people have be
en stabbed. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. Anything about that 
is going to 

10 affect your ability to be fair and
 impartial? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: I could nev
er understand 

12 why a male would stab another fema
le but. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: Okay. I'm sorry. I didn't 
hear you. 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: Why a male 
could stab 

15 another female; but I don't know t
he reason for this case. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: All right. So over -- 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: As I was tr
eating, they 

18 were -- guys were usually drunk. T
hey usually took off. 

19 never speak to them. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: Okay. That was -- you've b
een retired 

21 for at least 17 years, correct? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: Yes. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: All right. And apparently 
during your 

24 job as a firefighter you had to co
me upon situations where 

25 somebody had been stabbed by somebody e
lse? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: S
tabbed, shot, beat with 

2 bones. 

3 	 THE COURT: Okay. How long d
id you do it? 

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: T
wenty-two years. 

5 	 THE COURT: Okay. So you pro
bably saw your fair 

6 share of things? 

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: Y
es. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Anything about yo
ur employment, your 

9 former employment that's g
oing to affect your ability 

to be 

10 fair and impartial? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: I
'm pretty -- I could do 

12 it, I believe. I just wa
nted to be fair to bring it

 up so 

13 everybody here would kno
w. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Okay. All right.
 Anything about your 

15 prior employment that's g
oing to interfere with your 

ability 

16 to be fair and impartial
? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 037: N
o. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you 
very much. Mr. Richard 

19 Evans? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 038: Y
es. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Good morning. How
 long have you lived in 

22 Clark County? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 038: A
bout ten months. 

	

24 
	 THE COURT: And you got a ju

ry summons? Is that a 

25 yes? I guess you did. W
here did you move from? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 038: Des Moi
nes, Iowa. 

	

2 	 THE COURT: Thank you for respondi
ng. Your education 

3 background? 

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 038: One yea
r college, and 

5 retired carpenter. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: So you moved out here t
o retire? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 038: Yes. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Okay. Your marital sta
tus? 

	

9 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 038: Married

. 

	

1 0 
	 THE COURT: Is your wife employed? 

	

1 1 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 038: She's r

etired as well. 

	

12 
	 THE COURT: What did she do? 

	

13 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 038: She was

 an office 

14 manager. 

	

15 
	 THE COURT: Do you have children? 

	

16 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.. 038: I have 

a stepson. 

	

17 
	 THE COURT: Okay. One child? 

	

18 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 038: Yeah. 

	

19 
	 THE COURT: Is he old enough to be 

employed? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 038: Yeah. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: What does he do for a l
iving? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 038: He's a 
manager for a 

23 fast-food restaurant. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: Any reason why you coul
d not be a 

25 completely fair and impartial j
uror if you were selected to 
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serve on this panel? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 03
8: No. 

3 
	 THE COURT: Thank you. 

4 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 03

8: You're welcome. 

5 	 THE COURT: Good morning,
 Mr. Brian Kuntz. How lo

ng 

6 have you lived in Cla
rk County? 

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 04
1: Almost eight years. 

8 	 THE COURT: Your educatio
n background? 

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 041
: Three years of college.

 

10 
	 THE COURT: What did you 

study? 

11 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 04

1: Computer information 

12 systems. 

13 
	 THE COURT: What do you d

o for a living? 

14 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 041

: I'm currently unemploye
d. 

15 
	 THE COURT: Your marital 

status? 

16 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 04

1: Single. 

17 
	 THE COURT: Do you have c

hildren? 

18 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 04

1: No, ma'am. 

19 
	 THE COURT: Do you know o

f any reason why you cou
ld 

20 not be a completely f
air and impartial juror 

if you were 

21 selected to serve on
 this panel? 

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 04
1: No. 

23 	 THE COURT: Thank you. Th
ank you very much for be

ing 

24 here. All right. At 
this time, ladies and g

entlemen, its 

25 12:30. We are going 
to recess for lunch. Du

ring this recess 
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1 you're admonished not to talk o
r converse amongst yourselves 

2 or with anyone else on any subj
ect connected with this trial 

3 or read, watch or listen to any
 report of or commentary on the 

4 trial or any person connected w
ith this trial by any medium of 

5 information, including without 
limitation newspapers, 

6 television, the Internet or rad
io, or form or express any 

7 opinion on any subject connecte
d with this trial until the 

8 case is finally submitted to y
ou. 

9 	 You're further admonished you may 
not communicate 

10 with anyone, including your fe
llow jurors about this case on 

11 your cellphone, through email,
 Blackberry, iPhone, text 

12 messaging, through Twitter, an
y blog or website, through any 

13 Internet chat room or by way o
f any other social networking 

14 website including but not limi
ted to Facebook, MySpace, 

15 LinkedIn and YouTube. 

16 	 We're going to be in recess until
 1:45. After lunch, 

17 you'll come back up to the fou
rteenth floor in which the 

18 officer will meet you and he'
ll bring you back in. Before 

19 excuse you, can I just speak t
o the officer for one minute? 

20 	 (Pause in proceedings.) 

21 	 THE COURT: Okay. At this time, l
adies and 

22 gentlemen, you're excused. We
'll see you at 1:45. Thank you. 

23 	 (Court recessed at 12:32 p.m. until 1:
54 p.m.) 

24 	(Outside the presence of the prosp
ective jury panel.) 

25 	 THE COURT: This hearing is taking
 place outside the 
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1 presence of the jury panel. 'Mt. Benn
ett Grimes is present. 

Generally, especially when a jury comes 
in, I like people to 

3 stand up. It's just, you know, out o
f respect, okay? But 

4 thank you, you can have a seat. All 
right. Because you don't 

5 want the jury to think you're not be
ing respectful, okay? Do 

6 you have something that has to be don
e before I bring the 

7 panel back in? 

	

8 	 MR. HILLMAN: Just briefly. 

THE COURT: Go ahead, Mt. Hillman. 

	

10 	 MR. HILLMAN: When Ms. Hojjat and I left
 the 

11 courtroom for the lunchroom break, w
e tried to wait to make 

12 sure that the elevator well was cle
ar of jurors. We came 

13 around the corner and saw Janice Da
vid. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: What badge number? 

	

15 	 MR. HILLMAN: She is Badge No. 16 in Cha
ir No. 7. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

17 	 MR. HILLMAN: And that's all -- 

	

18 	 THE COURT: The court reporter? 

	

19 	 MR. HILLMAN: Yes. That's all -- 

	

20 	 THE COURT: The court reporter who knows
 better? 

	

21 	 MR. HILLMAN: Well, it wasn't her fault
. She was 

22 just waiting for the elevator. We w
alked around the corner, 

23 there she was, we turned around and 
went -- and backtracked. 

24 So we're wondering if the Court woul
d consider telling them 

25 II  that if we run into them
 on the street or anywhere else, we 

UNCERTIFIED ROUGH DRAFT 
90 

9 

415 



can't say anything to them and w
e're not being rude. That's 

2 	all. 

3 
	 THE COURT: Okay. So nothing hap

pened? You just saw 

4 her. 

5 	 MR. HILLMAN: Nothing happened. 
We just want you to 

6 add that extra instruction. 

7 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

8 	 MR. HILLMAN: Okay. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: I usually do. 

	

10 	 MR. HILLMAN: Right, you usually 
do, but I don't 

11 remember hearing it this mor
ning. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: I don't remember eith
er, Mr. Hillman 

	

13 	 1,4R. HILLMAN: And I didn't want 
to wait until the end 

14 because I would forget by th
en. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Okay. But she didn't
 say anything to 

16 you? 

	

17 	 MR. HILLMAN: No, nothing was sai
d. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Okay. But you think 
she might be worried 

19 because you turned around an
d ran? 

	

20 	 MS. HOJJAT: It just -- it appear
ed -- 

	

21 	 MR. HILLMAN: It was -- 

	

22 	 MS. HOJJAT: -- we walked, took o
ne look at her, 

23 turned right back around and 
walked back out again. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: Okay. No problem. 

	

25 	 MR. HILLMAN: It was a little awk
ward, that's all. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Okay. No problem. I'll be 
happy to do 

2 it. Before we went to lunch the onl
y person that I allowed to 

3 leave was Janet Robertson, 0008, bu
t everyone else should 

4 still be here with us. So we'll br
ing them in. I just have a 

5 few questions to ask the panel as a
 whole, and then after that 

6 I'm going to turn the panel over to
 the State. 

	

7 	 MS. BOTELHO: Thank you, Your Honor. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: I have just a few more questi
ons. You 

9 can bring them in. 

	

10 	 (In the presence of the prospective jur
y panel.) 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Sir, I know you have issues
 with your 

12 back. You can sit wherever it is t
hat's most comfortable for 

13 you, okay? Okay. If you want to c
ome over here where there's 

14 less people so you don't -- you ca
n sit on the second row 

15 right there if you want to. Or you
 can sit in that chair, 

16 it's up to you. All right. 

	

17 	 Do the parties stipulate to the presenc
e of the jury 

18 panel as a whole? 

	

19 	 MS. BOTELHO: Yes, Your Honor. 

	

20 	 MR. HILLMAN: Yes, Judge. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Okay. At this time my -- I
 have a few 

22 questions left for the panel of 23
 only. So if you are in the 

23 first 23 these questions pertain t
o you and if you'd like to 

24 respond in the affirmative, again 
please raise your hand, 

25 state your name and your badge num
ber before responding to my 
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1 question. 

2 	 Anyone on the panel 1 through 23 that's
 ever served 

3 as a jflror before; ever been called
, actually was on the jury 

4 panel? Go ahead, sir, 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Mark Whelch
el, No. 

	

6 	080001. I've been -- 

	

7 	 THE COURT: How many times. 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: I've been c
alled three 

9 times, I've served on one Vry. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Okay. Do you know if that 
was civil or 

11 criminal? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Criminal. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: Was that here in Clark Coun
ty? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Yes. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: How long ago was it? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Probably ab
out eight 

17 years ago. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: So it was in this building?
 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: No, it wasn
't this 

20 building, so it may have been long
er. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Was it the other -- I can't
 even remember 

22 how long we've been in here. 

	

23 	 MR. HILLMAN: Me either. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: Have we been in here for at
 least eight 

	

25 	years? I don't know. I'm so sorr
y. 
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: I'm no
t sure either. 

2 
	 THE COURT: It was the other courthouse? 

3 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Yes. 

4 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Were you -- it was a criminal 

5 case? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 001: Yes. 

	

7 	 THE COURT: Were you selected to b
e the foreperson? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: No, 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Without telling us what your verdict was, 

10 was the jury able to reach a 
verdict? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Yes. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Anything about that e xperience that would 

13 affect your ability to be a fa
ir and impartial juror in this 

14 case? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: No. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Thank you, sir. Anyon
e else that's ever 

17 served as a juror before? Go ahead. 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Karen 
Augspurger, 080021. 

	

19 
	 THE COURT: Have you ever served as a juror? 

	

20 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Yes. 

	

21 
	 THE COURT: How many times? 

	

22 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Two, 

	

23 
	 THE COURT: Civil or criminal? 

	

24 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Two ci

vil. 

	

25 
	 THE COURT: Both were civil? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Uh -huh. 

2 
	 THE COURT: Is that a yes? 

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Yes. 

4 	 THE COURT: Okay. In either of those cases w
ere you 

5 selected to be the foreperson? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 021: No. 

	

7 	 THE COURT: Was the jury able to reach a verd
ict? 

8 Don't tell us what the verdict was; but in
 both cases was the 

9 jury able to reach a verdict? 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Yes. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Anything about those experiences that 

12 would affect your ability to be a fair an
d impartial juror in 

13 this particular case? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: No, 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Thank you. Anyone else that's ever 

16 served as a juror before? Co ahead, ma'
am. 

	

17 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: Vicky Woodside, 08

0036. 

	

18 
	 THE COURT: How many times? 

	

19 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: Once. 

	

20 
	 THE COURT: Civil or criminal? 

	

21 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: Criminal. 

	

22 
	 THE COURT: And that was here in Clark County

? 

	

23 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: Yeah. Yes. 

	

24 
	 THE COURT: Were you selected to be the foreperson? 

	

25 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: No, 
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THE COURT: Without tell us what your ver
dict was, 

2 were you able to reach a verdict? 

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 036: Yes. 

4 	 THE COURT: Anything about that experien
ce that would 

5 affect your ability to be fair and i
mpartial in this 

6 particular case? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 036: No. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Thank you. Anyone else that
's ever 

9 served as a juror before? Go ahead, 
ma'am. 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: 080027. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Your name? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Karen Hopkin
s. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: Go ahead, Ms. Hopkins. How 
many tines? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Once. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Civil or criminal? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Civil. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: That was here in Clark Count
y? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: Yes. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Were you selected to be the 
foreperson? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: No. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Without telling me what your 
verdict was, 

22 were you able to reach a verdict? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: No, 

	

24 	 THE COURT: No? 

	

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: No. 
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1 	 THE COURT: So what happened? 

	

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: The judge ju
st dismissed 

3 us and said there wasn't enough infor
mation to make a 

4 decision. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: Okay. Were you ever excused
 to 

6 deliberate your verdict? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: [Inaudible.]
 

	

8 
	 THE COURT: Okay. So at some point in th

e trial the 

9 judge says, "you're discharged, you 
can go home." Is that a 

	

10 	yes? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: At the end, 
yes. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: All right. And you did not 
have to 

13 deliberate? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 027: Right. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Okay. Anything about that t
hat would 

16 affect your ability to be a fair and
 impartial juror in this 

17 case? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 027: No. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Thank you. Anyone else? The
 record will 

20 reflect no further response from the
 jury panel. 

	

21 	 Have you or anyone close to you, such as
 a family 

22 member or friend, ever been the vic
tim of a crime? Have you 

23 or anyone close to you, such as a fa
mily member, friend, ever 

24 been the victim of a crime? And oth
er than what potential 

25 jurors have already informed the Co
urt. Go ahead, ma'am. 
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1 Your name and badge 
number? 

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
24: Llendy Hernandez, B

adge 

3 No. 080024. my dad was murdered in 200
6. 

4 	 THE COURT: I'm sorry. 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
24: My dad was murdered

 in 

6 	'06. 

THE COURT: 2006? 

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
24: Yes. 

9 	 THE COURT: Was that her
e in Clark County? 

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
24: No. Moreno Valley, 

11 California. 

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. I'm s
orry. I'm sorry I have

 to 

13 ask you these quest
ions. Did they catch -

- 

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
24: [Inaudible.] 

15 	 THE COURT: All right. I
s it still unsolved? 

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
24: The DA said it was 

out of 

17 their hands and coul
dn't do anything about 

it until the State 

18 -- they don't know a
nything and it's still 

a mystery to my 

19 family still. 

20 	 THE COURT: Okay. I don'
t know what that means,

 "the 

21 DA said it's out of
 our hands." 

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
24: I don't know either

. I 

23 was 18. I wasn't su
re of the verbiage. [I

naudible.] 

24 	 THE COURT: All right. B
ut they never arrested 

25 anybody? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No. 

	

2 	 THE COURT: They never had any suspect
s? 

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: They had a
 suspect, but I 

4 guess they fled the country, or I 
don't know. 

5 	 THE COURT: Was it a robbery or someth
ing like that? 

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No, he was
 shot at a -- 

7 the restaurant he owned, like righ
t after Christmas. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Okay. It doesn't sound li
ke you know 

9 much of the circumstances? Is tha
t a no? 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yeah, I do
n't. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Okay. Anything about that
 experience 

12 that would affect your ability to
 be fair and impartial? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Well, I'm just upset 

14 because like I felt like there was
 no justice done for my dad, 

15 and I don't know, I just feel like the system didn't work in 

16 our favor in our case. I'm upset about it til this day, 

	

17 	[inaudible] family. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Of course. 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: My future,
 I had to drop 

20 out of college because I couldn't
 pay for it. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Oh my gosh. 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: My sister
 as well. We 

23 lost our home. We lost everythin
g. So, yeah, I'm upset til 

24 this day. 

	

25 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Well, I apologize.

 I hope you 
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I didn't interpret my questions as, 
Are you net .  upset, because I 

2 would expect you'd probably be ups
et the rest of your life 

3 over it. But you -- do you think
 it's the -- do you blame the 

4 judicial system? 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 024: Yeah, I m
ean -- 

6 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: -- T see other small 

8 cases of people go to jail for jus
t like small things. I 

9 mean, this is a father that was murdered and they never had to 

10 do anything about it so. 

11 	 THE COURT: Okay. So you believe the police didn't 

12 do anything about it? 

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I don't th
ink they did 

14 everything they could, no. 

15 	 THE COURT: Okay. So obviously the po
lice were 

16 called? 

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: [Inaudible
.] 

18 	 THE COURT: Is that a yes? 

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yes. 

20 	 THE COURT: Okay. I mean, because you
 were 18; you 

21 were an adult, right? 

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yeah, I ju
st turned 18. 

23 	 THE COURT: Okay. What I'm going to be asking you
, 

24 are those based on your personal 
knowledge or what your mom or 

25 family members told you? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: What ou
r attorney told 

2 us. We sued -- because it was a
 restaurant, there was like a 

3 concert going on so I guess the
y hired -- 

	

4 	 THE COURT: I'm sorry. 

	

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: -- more
 people to check 

6 the guns and weapons and whatnot
; they didn't do their part so 

7 the case just settled last -- tw
o weeks ago I believe and I 

8 told our attorney, you know, wha
t happened to this guy that 

9 killed our dad, was he ever cau
ght? He was like, no, well, 

10 they don't know. The guy is st
ill out there. And that's all, 

11 that's all that I know. I obvi
ously didn't want to go back to 

12 that [inaudible]. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: All right. Now it was 
in a -- it was in 

14 your father's restaurant? Is t
hat a yes? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yes. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: And there was a concert
 there? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yes. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: And who -- and there wa
s somebody, door 

19 people, security that was -- 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Securit
y guards. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: -- supposed to check fo
r guns? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Right. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Okay. But somehow a gu
n got in there? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Uh-huh.
 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Is that a yes? 
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
24: Yes. 

2 	 THE COURT: And do you -
- I mean, do they think

 your 

3 father was randomly 
shot or was more than 

one person shot? 

	

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 
024: It was just my da

d. They 

-- it was just my dad. 
Nobody else was hurt. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Okay. And y
ou don't know if it wa

s 

7 random or what the m
otive was? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
24: No. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. And t
he police never arrest

ed 

10 anybody? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 
024: No. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. What 
is it you think the po

lice 

13 could have done tha
t they didn't do? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
24: They could have 

15 investigated why it
 was [inaudible] -- I 

don't know, kept in 

16 touch with us to se
e how, you know, they 

needed further 

17 information from us
 to help in the system

 to catch whoever did 

18 this to him. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Okay. Did t
he police -- do you kn

ow what 

20 their investigatio
n was? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
24: No. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: Okay. So I'
m -- I'm sorry, what i

s it 

23 you think they shou
ld have investigated i

f you're not sure 

24 what they did inve
stigate? 

	

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
24: What was the cause 

of 
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1 them going in there, like what was the motive? Like why him? 

2 We -- I'm left with like no answers, so I -- I don't know. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: Okay. I'm sorry. 

	

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: It's okay. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: Have you ever spoken to the police 

6 directly? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I don't even know who to 

8 contact over there. I mean this is like six years ago outside 

9 of where we live in Orange (sic) County. This is all in a 

10 different county and [inaudible] so I wasn't even sure of the 

11 resources that I could use there, who to contact or anything. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: So who was like the person that would 

13 speak for the family to the police? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Our attorney. 

	

15 
	

THE COURT: Okay. Have you ever asked the attorney 

16 who is it, who's the detective, who's a homicide detective, 

17 who can I contact? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: They were in contact with 

19 my mom. I really didn't -- 

20 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: -- get into it. I was 

22 just [inaudible]. Kind of hurts too much to go back. 

23 	 THE COURT: Okay. So they were in contact with your 

24 mother? Is that a yes? 

	

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yes. 
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1 	 THE COURT: All right. All right. But you're not 

2 really sure what investigation was done? 

PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 024: Right, I don't. 

	

4 
	

THE COURT: You don't know what leads they have? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: But somebody told you that whoever it 

7 was, they fled the country? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I'm not sure the country, 

9 they just said they couldn't find the person, that they're 

10 still out there. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: So they -- they have a suspect, they've 

12 ID'd somebody? A person? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: That's what my attorney 

14 said, yeah, that they know who did it but they don't know 

15 where he's at. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Okay. So they know who did it or they 

17 have a suspect? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Right. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: And they just haven't been able to 

20 apprehend that suspect? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Correct. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: Okay. So I'm assuming you're hopeful 

23 that at some point they will be able to apprehend him and 

24 prosecute him? 

	

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yes. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Okay. How do they kno
w how they come to 

2 the conclusion that this is wh
o did it, we just can't find 

3 him? 

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I do
n't know. I didn't 

5 want to ask too many questions
, to be honest. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: I'm sorry. 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I do
n't know. I didn't 

8 want to ask too many question
s. Honestly, like it felt like 

9 kind of like the less I knew 
the better. I just didn't want 

10 to go back to that day; so I 
don't feel comfortable about 

	

11 	this. I really don't. Sorr
y. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: I'm sorry? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I don
't feel comfortable 

14 talking about this. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Okay. I'm sorry. But
 you brought it up 

16 to me. 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Right
, because -- 

	

18 	 THE COURT: So that's -- I'm just
 trying to -- would 

19 you feel more comfortable cor
ning. up here at the bench? Okay

. 

20 Is there anything about -- so
 you're okay talking about it 

21 ' with everybody else? Becaus
e you can talk about it like tha

t 

22 or we can come up to the benc
h and it will just be me and the

 

23 lawyers. Would that make yo
u feel better? No. Okay. And 

24 again, I'm sorry that you ha
ve to talk about it. I'm really

 

25 sorry. Is there anything abo
ut that particular incident tha

t 
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1 would affect your
 ability to be fair

, and impartial in 
this 

2 	case? 

	

3 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N

O. 024: Yes. 

4 	 THE COURT: Okay. Th
en you're going to 

have to come 

5 up here, all rig
ht? 

	

6 	 (Bench conference tr
anscribed as follows

.) 

	

7 	 THE COURT: I'm sorr
y, Ms. Hernandez. 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 024: It's okay. 

THE COURT: Hopefull
y you're more comfo

rtable if 

10 we're just up he
re. Let the record 

reflect Ms. Hernand
ez is 

11 present at the b
ench, 0024, as well

 as all four lawyer
s. 

12 Okay. Because I'
ve asked you repeat

edly if you could b
e fair 

13 and impartial, a
nd you said, Yes. N

ow you said you thi
nk that 

14 what happened to
 your father might 

affect you here. Ho
w so? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 024: I'm just re

ally bitter 

16 about the situat
ion and_I'm just up

set and also in ope
ning 

17 was -- 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Okay. Le
t's not go onto any

thing else 

19 yet. Okay. You'
re bitter and upse

t. 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 024: Right. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Okay. An
d that's completely

 

22 understandable, 
okay? And that was 

in another jurisdic
tion, 

23 right? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 024: Benita [pho

netic]. 

	

25 
	 THE COURT: [Inaudib

le], California, th
ere was 
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1 another police department. 

	

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Right
. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: That was another stat
e. 

	

4 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 024: Right.
 

	

5 	 THE COURT: Okay. And you clearl
y think they didn't 

6 do enough to solve this? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yes. 

THE COURT: Okay. Although they 
clearly have 

9 somebody, they've ID'd somebod
y, they just can't find that 

10 person. 

	

11 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: That'

s what our attorney 

	

12 	said. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: That's what you think
? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yeah.
 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I'm n
ot 100% sure, but 

17 that's what our attorney sai
d. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Okay. That's what yo
u think. Let me 

19 just remind everybody we're 
still in session 

	

20 	 and we're recording at the benc
h. Thank you. Would 

21 you use what happened there 
against the parties 

	

22 	 in this matter? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I jus
t feel like my 

24 emotions are going to get in
 the way. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Okay. How so? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I just don
't believe in 

2 the court system. I just don't fee
l like -- there's other 

things that happened to me as well an
d I just don't -- 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Okay. You don't believe i
n the court 

system in California? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No. 

	

7 	 THE COURT: Okay. Does that mean that
 Nevada, you 

8 don't believe in the court system
 here? 

	

9 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Well, I've

 never been to 

10 -- well, I just have a lot of dif
ferent factors that are -- 

11 know that are going to impair my 
judgment as far as -- 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Go ahead and tell me what 
they are. 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Like I als
o had a gun to 

14 my head for 45 minutes while I wa
s 8 months pregnant, they 

15 shoplifted the whole entire store
, and I'm kind of like -- T 

16 don't want -- 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Okay. Wait a minute. You
 were 8 months 

18 pregnant at some point when was 
this? 

	

19 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: This is in

 '08. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: So two years -- '08, '09, 
'10, like fonr  

21 years ago? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I have anx
iety attacks. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Just a minute. Were you s
ome place and 

24 someone was committing a robbery
? 

	

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I was a st
ore manager at 
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I RadioShack, two bla
ck men came into the 

store with a gun, put
 

it to my head, 45 minu
tes, this is after my 

dad died so you 

3 could just -- 

4 	 THE COURT: Oh, yeah, 
I can't even imagine.

 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.
 024: My son came out

 a month 

6 earlier than he sho
uld have with a hole 

in his chest. I 

	

7 	[inaudible], .1 ge
t anxious around black

 people. I'm not -- 

8 I'm not racist, but
 I just don't [inaudi

ble]. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.
 024: I just try to p

ut all 

11 this stuff aside, 
but I can't. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. So y
ou were working at Ra

dioShack 

13 as a manager and a
 robbery went down an

d you were held at 

14 gunpoint? Is that
 a yes? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.
 024: Yes. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Did the po
lice come and investi

gate? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.
 024: Yes. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Did they ca
tch the people that di

d it? 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.
 024: Yes. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: Okay. Did 
you have to go to cou

rt and 

21 identify them? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.
 024: No, 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Did you go
 to court and testify

? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.
 024: No, 

	

25 	 THE COURT: You didn't
 have to do anything?
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: N
o. 

THE COURT: So what happened?
 

	

3 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I

 was traumatized. 

	

4 
	 THE COURT: No, I mean I -- o

f course you were, I 

5 apologize. I'm trying to 
figure out what happened wi

th the 

	

6 	case. 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: T
hey were caught. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Police caught the
m? 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 024: Y
es. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: And then what hap
pened to the 

11 perpetrators? Was it mo
re than one? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I
t was two. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: It was two. What
 happened to them? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: T
hey were locked up 

15 because they also robbed 
three other RadioShacks and 

some 

16 Gamestops. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: How do you know t
hat? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: B
ecause the detective 

19 that followed me to the e
mergency room told me after 

-- he's 

20 saying that they finally 
caught these guys [inaudible

] or -- 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Good. 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: -
- shoplifting or 

23 whatever at other stores
. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: But you didn't ha
ve to identify them? 

	

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: N
o. 
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1 	 THE COURT: You didn't have
 to testify? 

	

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024:
 No. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: What, did they 
enter a guilty plea? 

	

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024:
 I have no idea. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: But they're loc
ked up where and for how 

6 long? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024:
 In San Diego. I don't 

8 know how long. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. Did you f
ollow the case at all? 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024:
 No, I didn't want to. I 

11 had to go -- 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024:
 I had to go see a 

14 psychologist because I 
was like traumatized from 

the incident. 

15 I get anxiety attacks 
here and there and I just don't feel 

16 comfortable. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Okay. Anything else you want to tell us? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024
: No. That's it. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Okay. So you were a victim of crime and 

20 also your father was a
 victim. You think that's

 going to 

21 impede your ability --
 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024:
 Oh, yeah. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Okay. I have t
o finish asking my 

24 question because Kerry
 is taking down everythin

g. What 

25 happened between this morning and lunch? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I was t
rying to like get 

2 over it and move on and not let 
it hold me back from my life, 

3 but it's hard, you know. Just I
 can't let it -- my dad's 

4 situation, I can't let it past 
me. My situation, okay, I'll 

5 grow up from it one day, but no
t now. I'm not ready to -- 

6 just don't want my judgment and 
my feelings and whatnot to get 

7 in the way of a man's case; I ju
st don't feel like that's 

	

8 	right. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. Neither is one t
hat happened to 

10 you. So do you think that beca
use what happened to you you're 

11 going to convict him regardless
 of the evidence? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I don't 
-- I don't know. 

13 I just -- 

14 

15 	us. 

16 

17 angry. 

THE COURT: Okay. You're the only 
one that can tell 

PROSPECTIVE. JUROR NO. 024: I don't
 -- I'm just 

18 	 THE COURT: And you have every righ
t to be, okay? 

19 But if you're picked as a juror
 and you listen to both sides 

20 put on their case and after you
've heard all of the evidence 

21 if you believe the State failed
 to carry their burden of proof 

22 by proving beyond a reasonable 
doubt, would you have any 

23 problem entering a not guilty 
plea? 

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Honestly
, I don't know. 

25 I just don't think that I'm sui
table for this one, at least. 
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1 The whole crimina
l thing with my dad

 and what happened 
to me, 

2 	I'm just -- I d
on't want to do this

. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: Could yo
u answer my questio

n? If you sit 

4 in this trial, yo
u're picked as a ju

ror, and you believ
e the 

5 State hasn't met 
their burden of pro

of, they didn't pro
ve 

6 their case by pro
of beyond a reasona

ble doubt, would yo
u have 

7 any problem enter
ing a not guilty pl

ea -- I'm sorry, no
t 

8 guilty verdict? I
'm sorry. Have any 

problem returning a
 not 

9 guilty verdict? 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 024: Yeah, like 

I'm saying, he 

11 didn't do it and
 they're going to h

ave him free. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. Li
sten to my question

. You sat 

13 through the case
, you've heard all 

of the evidence. Yo
u go 

14 back to delibera
te and you believe 

the State did not m
eet 

15 their burden of 
proof, they didn't 

prove their case, o
kay? 

16 Would you have a
ny problem returnin

g a not guilty verd
ict? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 024: No. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Okay. Vi
ce versa. If you sa

t through 

19 the case and the
 State put on -- bo

th sides put on the
ir case 

20 and you heard th
e evidence and the 

State did meet thei
r burden 

21 of proof by proo
f beyond a reasonab

le doubt, could you
 return 

22 a guilty verdic
t? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 024: What do you

 mean? My 

24 head is somewher
e else right now. I

'm just kind of sho
cked 

25 and embarrassed,
 to be honest. 
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1 	 THE COURT: If you're selected to serve as a juror. 

	

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Right. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: And after you've heard all of the 

4 evidence and after being instructed on the law you believe th
e 

5 State has met their burden of proof by proof beyond a 

6 reasonable doubt, would you have any problem returning a 

7 guilty verdict? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: And you already told me if they don't 

10 meet their burden of proof, you won't have any problem 

11 returning a not guilty verdict, correct? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Right. I just -- 

	

13 	 THE COURT: Do we have to worry about whether you're 

14 going to take out on either side what happened to you? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I feel like I will; like 

16 I feel like I would want to put someone because what happene
d 

17 to me and my dad. Like I know it's weird [inaudible], I don
't 

18 -- its just I don't feel like -- I don't know, I just -- 

	

19 	 THE COURT: You feel like you want to put someone in 

20 jail regardless of who it is? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No, I just feel -- I 

22 don't know. [Inaudible] am I going to have everything 

	

23 	[inaudible]. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: Are you on any medication for anxiety? 

	

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No. I was supposed to go 
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1 to the doctor to
day but I had to c

ancel it because I
 was here. 

2 	 THE COURT: What ki
nd of doctor is he

? 

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 024: Just a ge

neral doctor, it 

4 was just a docto
r because I can't 

[inaudible] someti
mes, you 

5 know. I was [in
audible] anxiety 

at times. I feel 
my 

	

6 	[inaudible] so
 -- 

	

7 	 THE COURT: In '08
? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 024: In '08, a

nd I stopped 

9 taking medicati
on. I was like I 

need to get on it
 because I'm 

10 so stressed ou
t. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: So in '
08 you were placed

 on medication 

12 for anxiety? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 024: Just for 

-- just that one 

14 time when I was
 in the emergency 

room, the doctor -
- 

	

15 	[inaudible] e
mergency room, tol

d me to go see a d
octor, get on 

16 anxiety medica
tion, I never did

. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: So the 
ER doctor diagnose

d you with 

18- anxiety? 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 024: Just beca

use I -- because 

20 of what happene
d, you know, I was

 all stressed out.
 

	

21 	 THE COURT: What ki
nd of medication? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 024: Xanax. I 

just took it 

23 that one time 
he gave it to me.

 

	

24 	 THE COURT: Okay. S
o you've had one p

rescription for 

25 anxiety and fou
r years have gone 

by and you haven't
 ever taken 
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any other medication? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Right. 

THE COURT; Or had to see another medic
al doctor for 

it? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Not for tha
t, no. 

THE COURT: For anxiety? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No. 

THE COURT: Never? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No. 

THE COURT: Okay. All right. You have
 a concern 

about this case, you feel like you're g
oing to put somebody in 

jail because of what happened to your d
ad, what does it mean? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I just want
 justice done. 

Like -- 

THE COURT: For your father? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Well, yeah.
 

THE COURT: Okay. I agree. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I'm not say
ing like put 

someone in jail if they didn't do it. 
I'm just saying like in 

this case if he did do it and he gets f
ree, that's going to 

kill me. 	Inaudible], that's going to
 really leave me with 

just a -- it doesn't work, the system d
oesn't work. 

THE COURT: Okay. You understand that 
your father 

could still see -- I mean, there still 
could be justice in 

your father's case? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: But nob
ody cares to look 

2 into it, you know. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: How do you know? You h
aven't even talked 

4 to anybody that's handling the c
ase; how do you know? 

	

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Well, w
ouldn't they 

6 contact us to have our informat
ion? Like wouldn't they let 

7 our attorneys know? I mean -- 

	

8 	 THE COURT: I suggest you find out w
ho [inaudible] 

9 your father's case and you call 
him yourself; that would be my 

	

10 	suggestion. 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I don't
 know where to 

	

12 	start from. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: You're an adult. You c
an do it. Cali 

14 your attorney. You're obviousl
y not an attorney. Find out 

15 who's been -- who was assigned 
your father's case and do it 

16 yourself. They'll talk to you.
 they'll talk to you and tell 

17 them you want updates. Call th
em every other month if you 

18 want to and find out for yourse
lf instead, you know, taking 

19 what other people tell you. That's what I would do
. It might 

20 make you feel better too. You'
re allowed to do that, okay? 

21 Maybe you can satisfy yourself
. It's up to you. There's no 

22 statute of limitation on murde
r. If they catch the person 20 

23 years from now they can try them, did you 
know that? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Huh-huh
. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Okay. So hopefully your family will get 
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1 justice for what happened. 
Okay. All of that aside, you'

ve 

2 had. some pretty significant 
things that happened to you. 

3 You're a young person, okay
? Is that going to interfere 

and 

4 impede your ability to be a 
fair and impartial to Mr. Grim

es? 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: You
're asking me a 

6 question that I don't know u
ntil I get, you know, until I 

go 

7 through it. Like I don't wan
t to answer the wrong way or t

ell 

8 you, No, I'm going to he per
fectly fine, when I know I'm n

ot. 

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. Because you'r
e allowed to be upset 

10 about what happened to you 
and happened to your father. 

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Rig
ht. 

12 	 THE COURT: I can't tell you, D
on't be upset about 

13 that, okay? You're allowed
 to be upset about that. The 

only 

14 thing that would be inappro
priate is if you say, You know

 

15 what, these bad things happ
ened to me, they didn't catch 

the 

16 person that did this to my 
father, so I'm going to stick 

it to 

17 somebody else. 

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Wel
l, no, I'm not going 

19 to do that. I'm not crazy.
 You know, I don't want -- 

20 	 THE COURT: Okay. It sounds lik
e you're -- you're 

21 not necessarily fond of the
 judicial system. 

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Wel
l, you asked the 

23 question if anybody had see
n or been murdered, I answered

 -- 

24 	 THE COURT: I didn't say that. 
I said "been a victim 

25 of a crime." 
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yeah. 

THE COURT: Yeah, I did. And it's
 horrible. 

PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 024: I didn
't want [inaudible] 

today so I didn't want [inaudible]
. 

THE COURT: That's why I wanted yo
u to come up here. 

That's why -- I mean, nobody else
 can hear us. I mean, they 

know we're talking but they can't
 hear the content. Are you a 

person that these things that hav
e happened to you, are they 

going to hamper your ability to be
 fair and impartial to the 

State of Nevada? Because they're 
prosecutors, they're 

prosecuting the defendant. You un
derstand that? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Right.
 

THE COURT: [Inaudible] fair to th
e State of Nevada? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yeah, 
I'll try, yeah. 

THE COURT: [Inaudible] fair to th
e defendant, Mt. 

Grimes? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yes, I
 don't know him. 

THE COURT: Okay. I assume you do
n't know him 

because I already asked you that 
so. Anyway, you'll listen to 

the evidence? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Uh-huh
. 

THE COURT: Is that a yes? 

PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 024: Yes. 

THE COURT: Okay. You'll follow t
he law as given to 

you by myself? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024
: Yes. 

	

2 	 THE COURT: Okay. I mean, 
I understand it sounds 

3 like you don't want to 
be here. 

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024
: I don't. 

	

5 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Do you t

hink anybody wants to be 

6 here? I bet you if I to
ok a hand -- I'd get ever

ybody raising 

7 their hand saying they 
don't want to be here. 

	

8 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024

: Right. 

THE COURT: I get that. 

	

10 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024

: I mean, I don't want to
 

11 be here for different 
reasons, not because I'm 

going to miss 

12 work or my kids. It's 
emotional stress, that's 

why I don't 

13 want to be here. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Okay. You thin
k something bad is going 

15 to happen during the t
rial to you physically? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024
: No. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: I mean, I don'
t want to compromise your

 

18 health. It doesn't sou
nd like I'm going to if y

ou're required 

19 to be here. Everythin
g okay so far? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024
: Yeah. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Other than thi
s; I understand you want 

to 

22 talk about this. 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024
: [Inaudible.] 

	

24 	 THE COURT: Okay. But othe
r than that, have you bee

n 

25 okay? 
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I 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Uh-

huh. 

	

2 
	 THE COURT: Is that a yes? 

	

3 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yes

. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Okay. If you're se
lected to be on this 

5 panel, are you going to be 
able to sit here for the next

 

6 couple of days and listen t
o the evidence? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yea
h, I mean -- 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Okay. Will you fol
low the law? 

	

9 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yes

. 

	

10 
	 THE COURT: Will you hold the S

tate to their burden 

11 of proof? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yes
. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: And if they don't m
eet that burden of 

14 proof, you have any problem
 returning a verdict of not gu

ilty? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No.
 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Okay. Is there any
thing that's going to 

17 interfere with your abilit
y to be a fair and impartial 

to 

18 either side? 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: [In
audible.] 

	

20 	 THE COURT: Okay. Does either 
side wish to ask 

21 questions? Go ahead. 

	

22 	 MS. BOTELHO: I have a question
. 

	

23 	 MR. HILLMAN: Okay. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: The District Attorn
ey will be allowed to 

25 ask you some questions up 
here, okay? 
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1 	 MS. BOTELHO: I'm w
ondering if [inaud

ible] problem 

2 	[inaudible] w
ith this case, it 

sounds like you're
 the victim 

3 of a serious vio
lent crime, the gu

n incident, [inaud
ible], and 

	

4 	[inaudible] yo
ur father's kind o

f a violent-type c
ase. Do you 

5 think that the n
ature of this case

 that you would [i
naudible] 

6 presenting evide
nce, this is a -- 

the crimes that ar
e charged 

7 in this case inv
olve violence, are

 you going to be o
kay 

8 listening to th
e facts like that

? 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 024: It depend

s how gruesome 

10 there are, hon
estly. You know, 

it's very emotion
al for me. 

	

11 	It's just kin
d of -- it's just 

a lot. 

	

12 	 MS. BOTELHO: Do yo
u think that while

 we're 

13 presenting the 
case and the defen

se [inaudible] 

14 cross-examining
 witnesses and thi

ngs like that, and
 we had to 

15 show you pictur
es because they're

 -- it's going to 
be part of 

16 the evidence an
d stuff you would 

have to look at, a
nd 

17 deliberate, do 
you think -- do yo

u have or do you t
hink it 

18 would take you 
back to the two in

cidents that you h
ave been a 

19 part of, have b
een the victim of,

 and then will tha
t -- 

	

20 	 THE COURT: Well, 
what's your quest

ion? Are you 

21 going to be abl
e to look at the e

vidence, even thou
gh some of 

22 the evidence m
ight not be pleas

ant? It might be 
gruesome. 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 024: I mean, t

hat's what 

	

24 	[inaudible] 
medical records of

 people in car acc
idents. And 

25 this is like [i
naudible] hurts me

 [inaudible]. 
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I 	 THE COURT: But we told you there's pro
bably going to 

2 be photographs. 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Right. 

THE COURT: Okay. Are you going to be 
able to look 

5 at the evidence as far as photograp
hs? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yes. 

	

7 	 MS. BOTELHO: Do you think -- T imagine it will 

8 elicit some kind of reaction from y
ou, and not just  the  

9 typical reaction, but maybe to take
 you back to the victim 

10 part of your -- are you going to b
e able to put that aside and 

11 just look at the evidence just fro
m what we present to you, 

12 just what you hear in court, what y
ou see as far as evidence, 

13 are you going to be able to set as
ide all the other things? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Honestly, I don't know. 

15 I will try to do my best. Emotiona
lly, as far as emotions I 

16 can't really control, but I will t
ry to have a different 

	

17 	[inaudible] but it's like [inaudible]. 

	

18 	 MS. BOTELHO: When you say "justice," that means 

19 justice for the State? Or justice 
for the defendant as well? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: For the defendant as 

	

21 	well. I don't feel [inaudible.] 

	

22 	 MS. BOTELHO: Okay. 

	

23 	 MS. HOJJAT: I have a couple questions.
 

	

24 	 THE COURT: Can you just [inaudible]? 

	

25 	 MS. HOJJAT: Sure. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Will you state y
our name so Kerry can 

2 just get used to your vo
ice? 

	

3 	 MS. HOJJAT: Oh, sure. This
 is Nadya Hojjat. Sc you 

4 were obviously the victi
m of a violent crime, you 

said there 

5 was a gun pointed at you
r head? 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Is that a yes? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024:
 Yes. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Thank you. 

	

9 	 MS. HOJJAT: That's a [inaud
ible] incident for you? 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024:
 Yes. 

	

11 	 MS. HOJJAT: [Inaudible] vio
lence circumstances as 

12 well that was happenin
g? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: 
Yes. 

	

14 	 MS. HOJJAT: [Inaudible] sc
reaming? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: 
[Inaudible] just me by 

16 myself. 

	

17 	 MS. HOJJAT: Just by yourse
lf? 

	

18 	 THE COURT: You were in the 
RadioShack all by 

19 yourself? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024:
 By myself. It was in the 

21 morning so they [inaud
ible]. 

	

22 	 MS. HOJJAT: Okay. Was he y
elling at you? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: 
He asked me to shut up 

24 and I was telling him *
* [inaudible]. 

	

25 	 MS. HOJJAT: All right. So 
he's yelling at you, he's 
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1 cursing at you? 

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: He got 
[inaudible] out of 

3 my [inaudible]. 

4 	 MS. HOJJAT: Right, and obviously 
very traumatic. In 

5 this case there is going to be t
alk of screaming, there's 

6 going to be people back and fort
h were screaming at each 

7 other. There's going to be some
 language used. Do you think 

8 that hearing that kind of stuff 
will take you back? 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I wonde
r. 

	

10 	 MS. HOJJAT: Okay. Okay. I mean, o
bviously you went 

11 through a lot, [inaudible] abso
lutely to be [inaudible] by 

12 that. You said you were trauma
tized by what you went through 

	

13 	[inaudible]? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: [Inaudi
ble.] 

	

15 	 MS. HOJJAT: If you hear that -- we
ll, actually I 

	

16 	[inaudible] raise that. Shoul
d you -- you wanted justice? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: For my 
dad. 

	

18 	 MS. HOJJAT: [Inaudible.] And you 
felt like there 

19 wasn't justice for your dad? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Right. 

	

21 	 MS. HOJJAT: If you hear that somebo
dy's injured, 

	

22 	[inaudible] justice for tha
t person? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Right. 

	

24 	 MS. HOJJAT: Of course. Now if the
re are 

25 circumstances around how that p
erson got injured, could you 
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1 take those circu
mstances into acco

unt? 

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 024: Yes. 

3 	 MS. HOJJAT: Okay. S
o even if you're he

aring that 

4 somebody got inju
red, could you stil

l, if the State fai
led to 

5 meet their burden
, return a verdict 

of not guilty? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 024: [Inaudible.

] 

THE COURT: I'm sor
ry. I didn't hear 

you. 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 024: Can you rep

eat that? 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. T
hank you. 

	

10 	 MS. HOJJAT: If you'
re hearing that som

ebody got 

11 injured, if you'
re hearing that the

re was some yelling
, some 

12 screaming going 
on but the State fa

ils to meet their b
urden of 

13 proof beyond a r
easonable doubt, co

uld you still find 
Mr. 

14 Grimes not guil
ty? 

	

15 	 THE COURT: I think 
she's already answe

red these 

16 questions sever
al times by me. 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 024: Yes. 

	

18 	 MS. HOJJAT: Good. 
Okay. And now, and

 this one's a 

19 little bit diffe
rent in terms of if

 you think maybe he
 did it 

20 but they faile
d -- 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Okay. H
uh-huh-huh. It's a

 reasonable 

22 doubt standard.
 Don't try to quan

tify it and don't 
use any 

23 other words exce
pt what the Supreme

 Court indicated yo
u're 

24 allowed to use.
 

	

25 	 MS. HOJJAT: Your Ho
nor, I just -- if w

e could have a 
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1 bench conference? 

2 	 THE COURT: No. 

3 	 MS. HOJJAT: Okay. 

4 	 THE COURT: It's -- it's been stat
ed so many times. 

5 You can -- I'm not going to all
ow you to quantify it and use 

6 different words. 

	

7 	 MS. HOJJAT: Right, and I'm not tr
ying to quantify it 

8 so much as my concern, and that
's why I wanted to do this 

9 outside the presence -- 

	

10 
	 THE COURT: No. I mean, I could i

naudible] to your 

11 question and it's not appropri
ate, so go ahead. 

	

12 	 MS. HOJJAT: Okay. Thank you, Yo
ur Honor. My 

13 concern [inaudible l is beca
use a lot of times jurors tell us,

 

14 you know, we thought maybe bu
t -- 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Okay. Now you're tryi
ng to have a 

16 conversation with me. If you 
want to ask her or do you want 

17 to question, go ahead. 

	

18 	 MS. HOJJAT: All right. I guess m
y question to you 

19 would be if a family member of
 yours was sitting in Mr. Grimes 

20 seat, would you want someone w
ith your mindset on that jury? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No. 

	

22 	 MS. HOJJAT: No. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Why not? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Becaus
e I don't trust 

25 somebody else's emotions that 
are going to dictate my family 
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I member's future. 

2 	 MS. HOJJAT: Okay. S
o you're concerned 

that maybe 

3 your emotions will
 end up dictating Mr

. Grimes' future? 

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO
. 024: Well, like I 

told the 

5 Judge, I don't kno
w until I'm there, b

ut I will try to put
 my 

6 emotions aside and
 be a fair person an

d, you know, look at
 

7 this case, not my
 own cases, whatnot

. 

	

8 	 MS. HOJJAT: Okay. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. Be
cause it's strange 

because 

10 you're telling al
l of us you can be f

air and impartial, y
ou 

11 can listen to the
 evidence, and you c

an follow the 

	

12 	instructions of
 law. If 	if you h

ad a family member b
eing 

	

13 	[inaudible], i
sn't that the type o

f jury you would wan
t? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO
, 024: Yes. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Okay. And
 let me ask you, if 

that was 

16 your family membe
r, would you want .a

 juror like yourself
, and 

17 you say, "no," 
30 -- 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO
. 024: Well, no, bec

ause -- 

	

19 	 THE COURT: So explai
n to us why you woul

d say "no." 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO
. 024: Because I wou

ldn't know 

21 what their train 
of thought is at tha

t moment and like if
 

22 they're going to 
-- if they're going 

to like use their pa
st to 

23 -- to move this -
- to [inaudible] on 

this man's future, I
 

24 don't [inaudible
]. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Right, bu
t are you -- are you

 the person 
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1 that's going to do that? 

2 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 024: N
o, I wouldn't want to. 

3 	 THE COURT: Okay. You underst
and, none of us, 

4 neither side, nobody wants
 you to judge this case base

d upon 

5 what happened to you or yo
ur father? 

6 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR NO. 024: R
ight. 

7 	 THE COURT: You get that, rig
ht? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Ri
ght. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. Nobody want
s you to put someone in 

10 jail regardless of what t
he evidence is because somet

hing bad 

11 happened to your family, 
you get that, right? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Ri
ght. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: Okay. So explain 
to us why your answer 

14 is different when the att
orneys ask you, If you had a

 family 

15 member sitting at that ta
ble you wouldn't want a juro

r like 

16 yourself? What kind of ju
ror would you want? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 024: So
meone that hasn't gone 

18 through any [inaudible] s
o they have a better, like c

lear 

19 state of mind, I guess. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: You got to be at l
east 18 years old to 

21 sit on a jury. I mean, do
 you think there's anybody i

n the 

22 world that reaches 18 wit
hout any life experience? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: We
ll, no, I know everyone 

24 has their own experience
. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Of course. 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO
. 024: Some people d

eal with it 

2 differently and do
n't let it, you know

, haunt them and 

3 [inaudible] I gues
s. I mean, with my -

- with what happened
 to 

4 me, with whatever 
happened to my dad, 

I'm just -- 

	

5 	 THE COURT: So you wa
nt someone on the ju

ry that's 

6 had no life experi
ence, because that w

ould be impossible? 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO
. 024: I understand.

 

	

8 	 THE COURT: You unde
rstand that? Okay. 

So really 

9 we're all just loo
king for a panel of 

jurors that can be f
air 

10 and impartial, li
sten to the evidence

, weigh it appropria
tely, 

11 and follow the in
structions on the la

w; do you understand
 

12 that? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO
. 024: Yes. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Are you a
 person that can do 

that? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO
. 024: Yes. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Okay. We'
re not telling you f

orget about 

17 what happened to 
you. And no one's go

ing to tell you, You
're 

18 not allowed to th
ink about what happe

ned to you during th
is 

19 trial, because I 
can't control your t

houghts. Nobody can.
 

20 What we're asking
 you to do is set it

 aside and not let i
t 

21 affect your abili
ty to consider and w

eigh the evidence in
 this 

22 case and render a
 decision accordingl

y; do you understand
 

23 that? 

	

24 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO

. 024: Yes. 

	

25 
	 THE COURT: Can you d

o that? I mean, we j
ust want to 
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1 hear yes or no. If you think 
you can, do it. Just tell me. 

2 We're asking, you questions di
fferent ways and I'm getting 

3 completely different answers.
 

	

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I jus
t don't -- 

	

5 	 THE COURT: And I have to be the 
one to determine 

6 whether you can be on the pan
el or not. 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I jus
t think it's going 

8 to be a lot of emotional stre
ss on me. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: And -- and so that's 
why I asked you, 

10 okay, because quite frankly, 
any case should give you stress.

 

11 If you're sitting as a juror,
 I don't care what case it is, 

12 you should be under stress. 
That's called doing your job. 

13 That's appropriate, all righ
t? But I don't want to comprise

 

14 your health, and that's why 
T asked you, Am I going to 

15 compromise your health if yo
u're required to be here? I don

't 

16 want to do that. I mean, I d
on't want to do that, okay? So 

17 I'll ask you that again. Am 
I going to compromise your 

18 wellbeing and your health if 
you're required to be here? 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Well
, I don't know. I 

20 had a doctor's appointment t
oday at 2:30. I am canceling it

. 

21 Like I said, I'm having short
ness of breath and my heart's 

22 beating fast, and I feel like
 I'm going to have an anxiety 

23 attack. I don't -- T don't -- 

	

24 	 THE COURT: I mean -- I don't kno
w, things like that 

25 don't necessarily bother me o
r think you can't be on the jury
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1 because every c
ase I sit on, I g

et nervous, I get
 stressed 

2 out. Sometimes 
I can't eat. I ca

n't sleep halt th
e time, 

3 right? That's t
he way it should 

be because what w
e do is 

4 very, very ser
ious. 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 024: Right. 

6 	 THE COURT: Okay. 
But that's me. [I

naudible] do for 

7 Liendy, So I w
ant to know abou

t you. Is that g
oing to 

8 compromise your health? I don't want to send you into a spin 

9 of something th
at's going to cau

se you to be [ina
udible]; but 

10 it sounds like
 you haven't seen

 any doctor since
 this happened 

11 in 2008 until 
today in 2012. So have you been okay for the 

12 last four yea
rs? 

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 024: Yeah. 

14 	 THE COURT: You haven't had to see a doctor? 

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No, 

16 	 THE COURT: All right. So were you going to the 

17 doctor today 
for like a well-check-up or 

a -- I mean what -- a 

18 general pract
itioner? 

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 024: [Inaudi

ble] new doctor 

20 	 THE COURT: She's 
what? 

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 024: My new 

doctor. Just a 

22 new doctor, ju
st general, yeah.

 

23 	 THE COURT: Okay. 
And if you went t

o the doL 	or, 

24 what were your complaints?
 

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Shortness of breath and 
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1 	[inaudible] permission [inaudible]. 

	

2 	 THE COURT: Okay. Do you feel sick? 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No, I just feel 
my heart 

4 beat [inaudible] went up. I -- sorry. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: I'm sorry. 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: [Inaudible.] 

	

7 	 THE COURT: Okay. Just let me know when you
're ready 

8 to continue. 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: I mean [inaudibl
e] needed 

	

10 	to [inaudible]. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Well, clearly we need people to 
do it, 

12 that's why we're here, okay? But again,
 I'm going to state it 

13 and I don't know how much more I can sa
y. I don't want you -- 

14 I don't want to compromise your health.
 I don't want to send 

15 you to the hospital. I don't want to m
ake you sick. 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Right, [inaudibl
e]. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: It's not going to happen? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Okay. You're healthy enough to 
sit on 

20 this panel? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yes. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: Okay. You've had some horrific 
things 

23 happen to you in your life and nobody's
 discounting that, do 

24 you understand that? 

	

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yes. 
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1 	 THE COURT: And I
 feel terrible I

 didn't ask you 

2 about it, but 
I have to ask yo

u about it Is th
at going to -- 

3 is your past g
oing to interfer

e with your abil
ity to give 

4 these parties 
here a fair and 

*partial trial? 

	

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JURO
R NO. 024: No. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Okay.
 Will you be abl

e to listen to t
he 

7 evidence that'
s presented by b

oth sides? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JURO
R NO. 024: Yes. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Will 
you follow the i

nstructions on t
he 

10 law as given 
to you by the Co

urt? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JURO
R NO. 024: Yes. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: And y
ou understand we

're not going to
 

13 give you any 
instruction that

 says, Consider 
your past and ho

w 

14 it's affected
 you in determin

ing what decisio
n to render in 

15 this case; yo
u understand tha

t, right? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JURO
R NO. 024: Yes. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: I mea
n, I'll give you

 exactly the 

18 opposite. I'l
l tell you you c

an only use your
 common sense 

19 and the evide
nce that's prese

nted to you and 
the instructions

 

20 on the law; d
o you understand

 that? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JURO
R NO. 024: Yes. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: Do yo
u understand thi

s is serious? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JURO
R NO. 024: Yes. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: You u
nderstand that b

oth sides and 

25 myself, we're
 just interested

 in getting a ju
ry, you know, 
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that's composed of people that are
 open-minded, fair, neutral, 

2 and unbiased and have no prejud
ice; do you understand that? 

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yes. 

4 	 THE COURT: Are you a person that 
can do that? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Yes. 

6 	 THE COURT: Okay. Is there anythi
ng else you want to 

7 tell us? 

8 

9 	story. 

10 

11 	that. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No. I
 told you all my 

THE COURT: Okay. I'm glad you sm
iled. I appreciate 

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: It's s
o embarrassing. 

13 	 THE COURT: It's not. It's not em
barrassing. 

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: It is.
 

15 	 THE COURT: We're not going to -- 
I mean, 	not 

16 embarrassing. A, it's • jus
t your life, okay, and you have no 

• 

17 control over it. All right. S
o I'm just going to let you go 

18 back up and take your seat and
 I'm going to move on if 

19 everyone is okay? Are you ok
ay? All right. But T just want 

20 to tell you that when I -- whe
n I'm done, both sides have the 

21 right to have to question the 
panel, so .inaudible} the 

22 question, but I'm not going to
 let them question you about 

23 this because we've had like 45
 minutes to do it up here, okay? 

24 	 So if there's anything you want to
 ask about this 

25 particular issue, [inaudible] 
any other issue you can, but I'm 
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1 not going to allo
w her to go back do

wn as soon as I'm d
one and 

2 somebody open tha
t wound again. I me

an, she's been very
 

3 truthful and hone
st and I spent a lo

t of time up here. 
So if 

4 there's any quest
ion, ask her now? 

5 	 MS. HOJJAT: I just 
have a couple more,

 I'm sorry, 

6 kind of related t
o what was said up 

here. You mentioned
 

earlier that black p
eople make you uncom

fortable because of 

8 what you went thr
ough with the robbe

ry. 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 024: Uh-huh. 

	

10 
	 THE COURT: I'm sorr

y. I apologize. 

	

11 
	 MS. HOJJAT: You -- 

obviously Mr. Grime
s [inaudible] 

12 is an African Am
erican gentleman. D

o you think that's 
going 

13 to affect your a
bility to be comple

tely impartial, lik
e can 

14 you be completel
y impartial about h

is race? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 024: It won't af

fect me 

16 because [inaudib
le].• 

	

17 	 MS. HOJJAT: Okay. 
• 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR N
O. 024: It's [inaud

ible]. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: I didn't
 hear the answer. 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 024: It won't ma

ke me 

21 uncomfortable be
cause [inaudible], 

[inaudible]. 

	

22 	 MS. HOJJAT; Okay. B
ut when you're maki

ng a decision 

23 about whether or
 not he's guilty, d

o you think the fac
t he's 

24 African American
 will affect your d

ecision even just a
 little 

25 bit? 
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: 
No. 

MS. HOJJAT: No. Okay. 

THE COURT: So you're not goi
ng to consider his race 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: 
No. 

2 

3 

4 in -- 

5 

6 	 THE COURT: -- determining wh
ether the State met its 

7 burden, correct? 

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: 
Correct, I won't. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

10 	 MS. HOJJAT: Now obviously y
ou were the victim of a 

11 violent crime from an Af
rican American individual. 

Has that 

12 created any sort of feel
ing that maybe African Amer

ican people 

13 are more violent? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: 
Not anymore. 

	

15 	 MS. HOJJAT: Not anymore, bu
t you did have those -- 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: A
t one point I did, yeah. 

	

17 	 MS. HOJJAT: Okay. Has it cr
eated any sort of 

18 feelings in you that you
 believe an African America

n person is 

19 more likely to have comm
itted a violent crime? 

	

. 20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: 
No, 

	

21 	 MS. HOJJAT: Okay. 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: 
[Inaudible.] The person 

23 that killed my dad was 
Mexican. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: And that's based
 upon what you've been 

25 told? 
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 024: Uh -huh

. 

THE COURT: Say y
es. 

PROSPECTIVE JURO
R NO. 024: Yes. 

THE COURT: Okay.
 I just want to 

ask one more 

question because 
you said your fam

ily was involved 
in some 

kind of civil sui
t as a result of 

what happened to 
your  

father. You said
 you sued somebo

dy? 

PROSPECTIVE JURO
R NO. 024: We su

ed them. 

THE COURT: Who d
id you sue? 

PROSPECTIVE JURO
R NO. 024: The s

ecurity guards t
hat 

were supposed to 
help -- keep the 

place safe. 

THE COURT: Okay.
 So whatever com

pany provided th
e 

security guards y
ou sued over negl

igent security? 

PROSPECTIVE JURO
R NO. 024: Yes, 

but they weren't
 

[inaudible). 

THE COURT: They 
were what? 

PROSPECTIVE JURO
R NO. 024: They 

[inaudible]. The
y 

didn't want to gi
ve us anything. 

THE COURT: But y
ou said it just 

settled? 

PROSPECTIVE JURO
R NO. 024: Yeah,

 it just settled
 

like two weeks ag
o. Like it's only

 going to give us
 300 bucks 

out of pocket for
 my dad [inaudibl

e). 

THE COURT: Okay.
 You don't have 

to tell us what 
the 

settlement was, b
ut were you satis

fied with that? 

PROSPECTIVE 	
OR NO. 024: NO. 
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1 	 THE COURT: No? 

	

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No, 

	

3 	 THE COURT: It wasn't $300, was it
? 

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: It was
 $311, yeah. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: You settled for $311? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: A mont
h, for like the 

7 next {inaudible. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Okay. Did the company
 declare 

9 bankruptcy? 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: They h
ad no insurance, so 

11 he's paying out of pocket, all
 the trustees, all that. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. So kind of like
 you can't squeeze 

13 blood out of a tlJrnip, is tha
t the term? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Someth
ing like that. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Because I don't want y
ou -- is that kind 

16 of what your family decided?
 Okay. There's no -- 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: But we
 had no options. 

	

18 
	 THE COURT: Yeah. You had no opti

ons. 

	

19 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: That w

as it. 

	

20 
	 THE COURT: Heck with that. That 

stinks, huh? 

	

21 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Uh-huh

. 

	

22 
	 THE COURT: Okay. You're not goin

g to hold that 

23 against any parties here, rig
ht? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: No. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Okay. 
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1 	 MS. HOJJAT: So let
 me make this my f

inal question. 

2 Just taking into
 account the victi

m [inaudible] that
 your 

3 family has had,
 the violence tha

t you've personal
ly 

4 encountered, the
 distrust you have

 of the justice sy
stem, and 

5 the fear that yo
u said you have of

 African Americans
 when 

6 you're alone li
ke that -- 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 024: A year ag

o [inaudible]. 

THE COURT: That's 
like ten compound 

questions. 

9 Okay. Why don't
 you ask her, Con

sidering everythi
ng that 

10 you've disclos
ed to us up here?

 

	

11 	 MS. HOJJAT: Consid
ering everything t

hat you've 

12 disclosed to us
 up here, do you t

hink you could be 
a fair and 

13 impartial juro
r in this case? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR 
NO. 024: Yes. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: All ri
ght. Okay. I'm go

ing to let you 

16 go. . Again I w
ant to thank you f

or answering our q
uestions. 

17 And again I won
't permit them to 

ask any questions 
about this 

18 unleas we ask t
o  approach the be

nch.- If they have
 to ask 

19 anything else, 
we won't do it in 

front of the other
 jurors, 

20 okay? And you 
don't have to tel

l any of the othe
r jurors what 

21 we spoke about
 up here, okay? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 024: Okay. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: And you
 can tell the cour

t marshal if 

24 anyone tries to
 discuss with you 

your private matte
rs, he can 

25 let me know {i
naudible] court m

arshal, okay? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 024: Okay. 
Thank you. 

2 
	 THE COURT: Thank you very much. Y

ou can take your 

seat. 

	

4 	 (End of bench conference.) 

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you very m
uch for your 

6 patience and your courtesy, I ap
preciate that for allowing me 

7 to conduct that up here at the 
bench. The question pending 

8 before the panel is: Have you o
r anyone close to you, such as 

9 a family member, friend, ever b
een the victim of a crime? I 

10 just want to make sure there wa
s nobody else that wanted to 

11 respond to the Court. Go ahea
d, Sir. 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020: You mea
n like car 

13 thieves? 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Your name and badge num
ber? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020: Anthony
 Martino, 080020. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Go ahead. 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020: Car bre
ak-ins, is that 

18 considered -- 

	

19 	 THE COURT: That's a crime. 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020: Someone
 broke into my car 

21 once. Stole my -- 

	

22 
	 THE COURT: All right. Was that in

 Clark County? 

	

23 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020: No, in 

Arizona. 

	

24 
	 THE COURT: All right. How long ag

o was that? 

	

25 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020: Twelve 

years ago. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Anything
 about that that wo

uld interfere 

2 with your ability
 to be fair and imp

artial in this case
? 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 020: No. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Anyone 
else? Go ahead, ma

'am. Your name 

5 and badge number
? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 018: Michala Rei

nholtz, 

7 080018. About 10
 years ago when I 

was in Salt Lake C
ity our 

8 house was broken
 into. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Anything
 about that that wo

uld interfere 

10 with your abili
ty to be fair and 

impartial? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 018: No. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. D
id you call the po

lice? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 018: Yes. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Was it 
your home? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 018: Yes. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Okay. Th
e home that you sha

re with your 

17 husband and chi
ld? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 018: It was my b

oyfriend at 

19 the time. 

	

20 
	 THE COURT: Okay. B

ut it was your hom
e? 

	

21 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N

O. 018: Yes. 

	

22 
	 THE COURT: And you 

called the police? 

	

23 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N

O. 018: Yes. 

	

24 
	 THE COURT: Did the

y come? 

	

25 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N

O. 018: They did. 
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I 	 THE COURT: Did they investig
ate? 

	

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 018: Ye
ah. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: What was the resu
lt? 

	

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 018: N
othing really. It -- 

5 they were pretty sure it w
as teenagers who kicked in o

ne of 

6 the windows and came in an
d stole stuff, but no one sa

w 

7 anything so that was prett
y much it. 

	

a 	THE COURT: Okay. Anything ab
out that that would 

9 interfere with your abilit
y to be fair and impartial i

n this 

	

10 	case? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 018: N
o. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Thank you. I saw 
-- go ahead, sir. 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 022: Ja
son Morgan, 080022. 

14 Just house gotten broken 
into this last May, kicked t

he front 

15 door, the alarm went off 
though and nothing was stole

n, but 

16 police report and all tha
t was done. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Was anybody home?
 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 022: No
, just the two dogs. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: All right. But di
d the alarm chase them 

20 off, scare them off? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 022: I 
know the alarm went 

22 off. When we got home the
 front door was cracked, the

 dogs 

23 were sitting in the doorw
ay so. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: Was anything take
n? 

	

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 022: No
, not that we know of. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Okay. S
o probably you cou

ld conclude the 

2 alarm and the d
ogs scared them a

way? 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 022: Yeah, yea

h. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Okay. 
Anything about th

at that would 

5 interfere with y
our ability to be 

fair and impartial
? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 022: No. 

	

7 	 THE COURT: Okay. 
Anyone else? Go a

head, sir. 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 026: Had a hom

e break-in too. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Your na
me and badge numbe

r? 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 026: Kirk Sanf

ord, 0026. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: Go ahe
ad. 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 026: I had my 

home in Utah 

13 broken into ab
out two years ago

. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Anythin
g about that that 

would interfere 

15 with your abili
ty to be fair and 

impartial in this 
case? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR.
 NO. 026: No. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Okay. 
Did you call the 

police? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 026: Yes. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Did the
 police respond? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 026: Yes. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Was it 
investigated? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 026: They took

 some 

23 fingerprints an
d they know who it

 is but he's still
 on the -- 

24 still on the l
oose [inaudible].

 

	

25 	 THE COURT: I'm so
rry? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
26: They haven't been a

ble to 

2 apprehend him yet. T
hey've identified the 

suspect. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: Okay. Anyth
ing about that that wo

uld 

4 interfere with your 
ability to be fair and

 impartial to the 

5 parties in this mat
ter? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
26: No, I don't think s

o. 

No. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Okay. Thank
 you, sir. Anyone else

? 

9 Okay. The record wil
l reflect no flIrther 

response from the -- 

10 I'm sorry -- from t
he jury panel. 

	

11 	 Have you or anyone clos
e to you, such as a fam

ily 

12 member, friend, eve
r been accused of a cr

ime? Go ahead, sir. 

13 Your name and badge
 number? You don't hav

e to look at your 

14 badge to give me yo
ur name. 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
17: Ruben Placido, 8001

7. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Thank you. 
Go ahead. 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 
017: [Inaudible] burgl

arizing 

18 my own house becaus
e of the divorce dispu

te. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: You got acc
used of burglarizing y

our own 

20 home? 

	

21 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 

017: Yes, ma'am. 

	

22 
	 THE COURT: And it was 

in the midst of a divo
rce? 

	

23 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 

017: Yes, ma'am. 

	

24 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Who a

ccused you? 

	

25 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0

17: The attorney of my 
wife. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Okay. What
 happened as a result

 of those 

2 accusations? Were 
charges brought agai

nst you? 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO,
 017: It was just I s

pent two 

4 months in jail in L
.A. County because --

 and more than a mont
h 

5 in Everett, Washington jail. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Okay. Yo
u spent jail -- you spent time 

7 in jail in L.A. an
d in Washington? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.
 017 .: Yes, ma'am, because

 I was 

9 

	

10 
	 THE COURT: That doesn

't make sense. Okay. 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.
 017: I was on vacati

on from, 

12 you know, the Philippines at that time. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017: And when I came back -- 

	

15 
	 THE COURT: Okay. So when you came back in the 

16 airport? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.
 017: -- and they picked me up 

18 in the airport. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: In Washing
ton? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO,
 017: They said I had

 -- no, in 

	

21 	L.A. 

	

22 
	 THE COURT: Okay. You were coming through L.A2 

	

23 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO.

 017: They told me that I'm a 

24 fugitive. 

	

25 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Wa

s there a warrant for your 
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1 	arrest? 

	

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO
. 017: They just han

dcuffed me 

3 and that's all, I 
didn't see anything.

 

4 	 THE COURT: Okay. Wha
t happened as a resu

lt of that? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO
. 017: Well -- 

	

6 	 THE COURT: You were 
never convicted, I a

ssume? 

	

7 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO

. 017: Between the t
ruth and 

8 responsibility, th
ey told me to plead 

guilty so I can go h
ome 

9 the next day. Tha
t was in Everett. A

nd -- 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Is that w
here you lived with 

your wife at 

11 the time, in Ever
ett, Washington? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO
. 017: That's my fir

st wife. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: Your firs
t wife. Okay. And yo

ur first 

14 wife's the one th
at accused you of br

eaking into the home
? 

	

15 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO

. 017: Yes, ma'am. 

	

16 
	 THE COURT: Okay. And

 what did you plead 
guilty to? 

	

17 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO

. 017: Well, a misde
meanor 

18 because they told
 me that, you know, 

if I plead guilty I'
m not 

19 going to spend mo
re time and I can go

 home, and the 

20 responsibility th
at I've get was my p

arents was in Indian
a and 

21 they're over 66-
years-old. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: So you pl
ead guilty to a misd

emeanor? 

	

23 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO

. 017: Yes, ma'am. 

	

24 
	 THE COURT: All right

. And how long ago w
as that? 

	

25 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO

. 017: It was 1995, 
'94, '94. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Anything abo
ut that that would inte

rfere 

2 with your ability to
 be fair and impartial

 in this case? 

	

3 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0

17: Well, I have be -- 
I'm 

4 going to be fair for
 what, you know, they 

done to me. 

	

5 
	 THE COURT: From what yo

u're telling me, I mean
, I 

6 don't know everythin
g, but that kind of st

inks. 

	

7 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 

017: Well -- 

	

8 
	 THE COURT: You don't th

ink you were treated fa
irly? 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
17: Right. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Okay. You d
on't -- you didn't -- 

are you 

11 saying you didn't b
reak into your wife's 

house? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
17: Well, you know, I w

as 

13 asking -- 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Well, you sa
id it was your house. 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
17: Well, because we bo

ught 

16 that house. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR .NO. 017: You know, I ha
ve to spend 

19 time -- 

	

20 	 THE COURT: Were you in 
the midst of getting di

vorced 

21 and your wife was l
iving in the house and

 you were not living 

22 in the house? Had 
you moved out? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
17: Well, they -- they 

give 

24 me -- restriction o
rder. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Restraining
 order? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 01
7: Restraining order. 

	

2 	 THE COURT: Okay. So duri
ng the divorce your wife

 

3 got a restraining ord
er against you? 

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 01
7: Yeah, and I even aske

d my 

5 wife to get my tools b
ecause I was an -- I am 

electrician and 

6 I need my tools at th
at time -- 

	

7 	 THE COURT: Okay. So -- 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 01
7: -- that time and then

 -- 

THE COURT: Let me just a
sk you this. Because it 

was 

10 in the midst of a div
orce, you apparently had

n't moved 

11 everything out of the
 house, your wife gets a

 restraining 

12 order against you, an
d you went back to the h

ouse anyways? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 01
7: I didn't move anythin

g 

14 All -- everything is
 -- 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Did you go ba
ck to the house anyways?

 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017
: -- what's in my house. 

17 Yeah. I asked him pe
rmission. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: You asked who
 for permission? 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 01
7: To my wife just to ge

t my 

20 tools and some of my
 clothes. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Okay. And the
n she called the cops on

 

22 you? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 017
: And called the cops. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: What did you 
learn about that? Don't 

25 call back, there's a 
restraining order. 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 
017: AS I said, you know, half 

2 an hour after that t
hey got two cops and, 

you know, telling me 

3 to get out that prop
erty, and then -- and 

then -- and then I 

4 went back to Indiana,
 and then when I took a

 vacation, when I 

5 came back I got hand
cuffed and they told m

e that I was a 

6 fugitive and I have 
a, you know, a case in

 Washington, in 

7 Everett, Washington.
 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Okay. So wa
s the charge violation

 of a 

9 temporary restrainin
g order or was it a ho

me burglary? What 

10 were the charges? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
17: Said I'm burglarizi

ng my 

12 house, what they in
dicated on the -- 

	

13 	 THE COURT: Okay. All r
ight. So you don't thi

nk you 

14 were treated fairl
y? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 
017: Well -- 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Although you
 said you had went back

 in 

17 violation of the re
straining order. 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
17: I don't know, but, 

you 

19 know, my wife told 
me to get out of here 

and I don't have any 

20 house or home and t
hat -- in Everett, Was

hington, so I went 

21 back to Indiana whe
re I came from. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: Okay. Why d
id the restraining ord

er get 

23 -- what was the -- 
how come your wife ask

ed for a restraining 

24 order? What was the
 background in getting

 the restraining 

25 order? 
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 017: I don't kno

w. 

2 	[Inaudible] of m
e, I didn't even kn

ow what's -- what's
 

3 happening. She j
ust wanted to divo

rce me, that's all
. 

4 	 THE COURT: Okay. So
 part of a divorce 

and she got a 

5 restraining order
, but you have no i

dea why she did? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 017: Because I t

ried -- ma'am, 

7 I tried to, you k
now, work out my ma

rriage and think sh
e 

8 doesn't [inaudib
le]. I tried to ta

lk to her and she 
doesn't 

9 want to talk. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: She didn
't want to talk to 

you? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR N
O. 017: Yeah. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 017: So that's p

robably -- 

14 that's why the 
[inaudible]. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Okay. A
nd that was a long

 time ago? And 

16 you're married 
to someone else, r

ight? Yes? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 017: Yes, ma'am.

 

	

18 	 THE COURT: And you 
even have a daughte

r, right? You 

19 have a 15-year-
old daughter? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 017: Yes, ma'am.

 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Okay. Is
 -- is the wife you

're with, is 

22 that her mothe
r? Yes? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O, 017: Yes, ma'am.

 

	

24 	 THE COURT: Okay. So
 is there anything 

about what 

25 happened in 1995
 that would interfe

re with your abilit
y to be 

UNCERTIFIED ROUGH D
RAFT 

151 

476 



1 fair and impartia
l to the parties he

re today? 

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N
O. 017: No. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: Okay. T
hank you, sir. Any

one else? The 

4 record will refle
ct no further respo

nse from the panel.
 

Is there anyone on t
he panel who would h

ave a 

6 tendency to give 
more weight or cred

ence or less weight
 or 

7 credence to the t
estimony of a polic

e officer simply be
cause 

8 the witness is a
 police officer? O

kay. The record wi
ll 

9 reflect no respon
se from the panel. 

	

10 	 Is there anyone on t
he panel who believe

s they cannot 

11 wait in forming 
their opinion as to

 what the appropria
te 

12 result should be
 in this case until

 you have heard all
 of the 

13 evidence and aft
er you have been in

structed on the law
 by the 

14 Court? Anyone w
ho believes they c

annot do that? Oka
y. The 

15 record will refl
ect no further resp

onse from the panel
. 

	

16 	 At this time I'm goi
ng to turn the panel

 over to the 

17 State of Nevada.
 Both sides have an

 opportunity to que
stion 

18 the panel. We ju
st have one [inaudi

ble} goes pretty qu
ickly 

19 because neither 
side is permitted t

o ask you any quest
ions 

20 that I have alre
ady asked you. Stat

e of Nevada can add
ress 

21 the panel? 

	

22 	 MS. BOTELHO: Thank 
you, Your  Honor. May T use 

the 

23 

	

24 
	 THE COURT: Of cours

e, of course. 

	

25 
	 MS. BOTELHO: Thank 

you. 
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1 	 MS. BOTELHO: Good afternoon,
 everyone. [Inaudible] 

2 all raise your hand too qu
ickly for this first questio

n, but 

3 who's excited to be here?
 

4 	 THE COURT: Oh, come on. 

	

5 	 MS. BOTELHO: Who actually wan
ts to serve on this 

6 jury? Who's excited to do
 that? No one is raising th

eir 

7 hand. So what are some of 
the reasons why, besides all

 the, 

8 you know, the reasons that
 we've already discussed wit

h Judge 

9 Leavitt, what are some of 
the reasons why you're kind 

of 

10 hesitant to serve on a ju
ry? 

	

11 	 THE COURT: You know what? I'
m -- you know what? 

12 Excuse me. I don't know i
f I want to hear all this ag

ain. 

	

13 	 MS. BOTELHO: Okay. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: I think I've alrea
dy asked everybody all 

15 the reasons. But, sir, di
d you want to address the Co

urt? 

16 Your name and badge numb
er? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: It
's Phillip Jennings, 

	

18 	0006. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Okay. What did yo
u want to tell me? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: Th
e company I work for, 

21 they don't make up my pay
 difference and I'm a constr

uction 

22 worker, and I'm currently
 working now but, you know, 

I might 

23 be working this week and 
not working the next week th

e way the 

24 construction is now and I
 just can't afford not to ma

ke money 

25 when I have an opportunit
y to make money. 
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1 	 THE COURT: I underst
and that and it's pr

obably -- 

2 everybody in the c
ourtroom would proba

bly be able to say t
hat 

	

3 	too. 

	

4 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO

. 006:. Oh, I unders
tand that 

	

5 	too. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: So I just
 want to make sure, 

if you're 

7 required to be her
e for the next coupl

e of days, are you g
oing 

8 to be able to pay 
your bills or are yo

u going to be on the
 

9 streets? 

	

10 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO

. 006: I'll be able 
to pay them 

11 but. 

	

12 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Ju

st be tight? 

	

13 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO

. 006: Excuse me? 

	

14 
	 THE COURT: It would

 be tight? 

	

15 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO

. 006: Yes. 

	

16 
	 THE COURT: But you c

an be here? 

	

17 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO

. 006: Yes. 

	

18 
	 THE COURT: Okay. Th

ank you. 

	

19 
	 MS. BOTELHO: And I'l

l move on, Your Hono
r. 

	

20 
	 THE COURT: Thanks. 

	

21 
	 MS. BOIE.LHO: Judge 

Leavitt already aske
d everyone on 

22 the panel whether
 or not you or anyon

e close to you has e
ver 

23 been convicted o
f a crime. I want t

o focus a little bi
t more 

24 on something a l
ittle focused. Have

 you or anyone clos
e to 

25 you ever been th
e victim of domesti

c violence? And I s
ee Mr. 
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1 Whelchel, Juror No. 0001. 

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: As a marriage family 

3 therapist, not somebody close 
to me, but one of the things in 

4 my work, I'm on like a panel t
hat serves people who have been 

5 victims of violent crime and just in general in marriage 

	

6 	jinaudiblej therapy who ar
e often working with people who -

- 

7 where there's domestic violenc
e, so, you know, 10 to 20 

8 sessions with somebody who ha
s -- has been a victim. So not 

9 necessarily again that it's a 
personal relation or close but. 

	

10 	 MS. BOTELHO: So you're familiar with at least 

11 through your work victims of
 violent crime? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: Yes. 

	

13 	 MS. BOTELHO: In your work, sir, 
do you also deal 

14 with those that have been cha
rged with domestic violence or 

15 kind of on the opposite end 
of the spectrum? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: • Very
 rarely. I have, but 

17 not as often. 

	

18 	 MS. BOTELHO: Okay. Now does you
r contact or through 

19 your work -- my understanding
 is you're a marriage counselor.

 

20 Would your experience with d
omestic violence victims through 

21 your work, would that affect 
your ability to sit in on this 

22 particular type of case? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 001: No. 

	

24 	 MS. BOTELHO: Okay. So you could
 set aside your 

25 experience with other domestic violence victims 
and not use 
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1 that when you're
 deciding the evid

ence and whether w
e've met 

2 our burden in t
his case? 

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO, 001: Correct. 

MS. BOTELHO: Anyo
ne else? Yes, ma'

am. Ms.? 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 021: Karen Aug

spurger, 0021. 

	

6 	Yes. 

	

7 	 MS. BOTELHO: Yes, 
ma'am. 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 021: My first 

husband hit me. 

	

9 	 MS. BOTELHO: I nee
d to ask this, ma'

am. Would that 

10 experience with
 your ex-husband -

- first of all, ex
-husband; 

11 so how long hav
e you not been wit

h him? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 021: Thirty-fi

ve years. 

	

13 	 MS. BOTELHO: Your 
experience 35 year

s ago with your 

14 first husband, 
would that weigh i

n on your ability 
to decide 

15 the facts and c
ircumstances in th

is case, just base
d on that, 

16 the facts and e
vidence that we pr

esent to you? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 021: No. 

	

18 	 MS. BOTELHO: So ar
e you saying that 

you 

19 automatically s
ympathize with the

 victim simply bec
ause you 

20 are a victim y
ourself? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 021: Probably 

I would. 

	

22 	 MS. BOTELHO: Earli
er when Judge Leav

itt asked is 

23 there anything 
about your experie

nces that would pr
event you 

24 from being a fa
ir and impartial j

uror, I don't thin
k you 

25 raised your han
d, but did this ju

st kind of trigger
 a memory? 
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8 

9 
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11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Uh -huh. 

THE COURT: Okay. Is th
at a yes? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
21: Yes. 

THE COURT: Okay. Ms. A
ugspurger? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
21: Yes. 

THE COURT: Because agai
n, I questioned the pan

el at 

length. Is there somethi
ng about your past that'

s going to, 

interfere with your abil
ity to be fair and impar

tial? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
21: No. 

THE COURT: Okay. Becaus
e it kind of sounded li

ke 

you just told the Distr
ict Attorney that there

 was. So -- so 

what happened? You said 
something with your firs

t husband? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 02
1: Uh -huh. 

THE COURT: Okay. I'm s
orry. What happened? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 02
1: He was an alcoholic. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
21: And he would come h

ome 

and be angry and hit me 
and it wasn't to the poi

nt where I 

ever had to be hospitali
zed or anything like tha

t, but it was 

very scary. 

THE COURT: It was not a
ppropriate at all? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
21: Yeah. 

THE COURT: Okay. You go
t divorced, right? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 02
1: Yes. 

THE COURT: Did you ever
 call the police? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 021: No. 

	

2 	 THE COURT: Okay.
 Why not? 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR
 NO. 021: I hones

tly can't answer 

4 that. I don't 
know why. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: That'
s okay. 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 021: I was e

mbarrassed. 

	

7 	 THE COURT: That'
s perfectly -- y

eah, okay. So yo
u 

8 lived with it 
until you got di

vorced? 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 021: Uh-huh,

 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Is th
at a yes? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 021: Yes, it

 is. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay.
 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 021: And it 

wasn't all the 

	

14 	time. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Okay.
 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 021: It was 

probably three or
 

17 four times. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Okay.
 Did you have --

 were children 

19 involved? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 021: Yes, on

e [inaudible], my
 

21 oldest son. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: Okay.
 How long ago wa

s it? 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 021: 1970 --

 [inaudible] 1975
 

	

24 	to 1979. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Is the
re anything about

 your experiences
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1 with your former hus
band that would interf

ere with your 

2 ability to be fair a
nd impartial in this c

ase? 

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
21: I -- I'm going to s

ay 

4 	yes. 

5 	 THE COURT: Okay. What 
is it? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
21: I -- I wish I could

 -- I 

7 mean, I wish I could
 divorce myself from i

t, but I don't think 

8 I would be able to.
 

	

9 	 THE COURT: All right. 
Who are you not going 

to be 

10 able to be fair to
? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
21: Probably the Defend

ant. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. And d
oes that mean -- I'm t

rying 

13 to get at why do yo
u think you're not goi

ng to be fair? What 

14 are you going to do
 that's not going to b

e fair? Are you 

15 going to disregard 
the evidence and judge

 this case based upon 

16 what happened to y
ou? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
21: No. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 0
21: No, I think I could

 do 

20 that. All I know is
 there's just a feelin

g there and I can't 

21 explain, you know, 
whether it's going to 

change me or not. I 

22 think I could -- I 
mean, I would do my be

st to try to be fair 

23 and impartial about
 it, but I, you know, 

if I can't say 

24 positively that I w
ould, then maybe I sho

uldn't be on it. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Okay. This 
happened 30 plus years

 ago? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 021: Uh-huh. 

	

2 	 THE COURT: Is tha
t a yes? 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 021: Yes. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Okay. T
he only reason I'm

 correcting you 

5 is because Kerry
 has to remember t

o type this all do
wn -- 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 021: I'm sorry

, 

	

7 
	 THE COURT: -- at 

some point, so th
ank you. And 

8 again, I'll ask 
you what I've aske

d some of the -- y
our fellow 

9 jurors. Are you
 going to be able

 to listen to the
 evidence if 

10 you're selecte
d to be a juror? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE 	OR 
NO. 021: Yes. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. A
re you going to fo

llow the law as 

13 given to you b
y the Court? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 021: Yes. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Will yo
u judge this case 

based solely 

16 upon what you s
ee and hear in the

 courtroom and not
hing else? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 021: Yes. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Okay. B
ecause neither sid

e wants you to 

19 judge this case
 based solely upon

 what happened to 
you. 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 021: I know th

at. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Do you 
understand that? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 021: Yes, I do

. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Do we h
ave to worry about

 you saying, you 

24 know, This happ
ened to me in my f

irst marriage so I
'm going to 

25 stick it to so
mebody? 

UNCERTIFIED ROUGH 
DRAFT 

160 

485 



1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021:. Oh, n
o. 

THE COURT: And since I'm on a ju
ry now I'm going to 

3 stick it to this person? 

	

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: No, I
 wouldn't do that. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: Okay. Because all we
're looking for -- 

6 everybody has life experience
s. We're just looking for peopl

e 

7 that can set those aside and n
ot consider them as a part of 

8 your deliberations as a juror 
because you understand it would 

9 be very inappropriate to go ba
ck in the jury deliberation roam

 

10 and say, I don't need to deli
berate because I've made up my 

11 mind because of what happened
 to me, and so this person is 

12 going to have to pay because 
of what happened to me; do you 

13 understand that? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Yes, 

	

15 	 THE COURT: Or vice versa. The S
tate wouldn't want 

16 you to do that either, Well, 
I'm going to rule in favor of 

17 them because of what happened
 to me for whatever reason; do 

18 you understand that? 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Yes, 
I do. 

	

20 	 THE COURT: Are you a person that
 would do that? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: No, 

	

22 	 THE COURT: Okay. In your delibe
rations will you set 

23 aside what happened to you in
 your personal life and judge 

24 this case based solely on th
e evidence and the law? 

	

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021: Yes, I will. 
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I 	 THE COURT: Okay. Will you
 -- will you be able to b

e 

2 fair and impartial to b
oth sides? 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 021
: Yes. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Okay. State of
 Nevada can take over. 

MS. BOTELHO: Thank you, Y
our Honor. Thank you, 

6 ma'am. Anyone else has 
been the victim of domest

ic violence 

7 or anyone close to you 
a victim of domestic viol

ence? I see 

8 no more hands. 

	

9 	 I already asked another ju
ror this, but have you or 

10 anyone close to you ev
er been charged with dome

stic violence; 

11 not just convicted, bu
t charged? 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Your name and 
badge number? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006:
 Phillip Jennings, 0006. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Mr. Jennings, 
you were charged with -- 

15 what were you charged
 with? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006
: Domestic violence, I 

17 believe. 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Okay. So you w
ere accused of a crime at

 

19 some point? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006:
 I -- I don't know if I 

21 was accused of it, but
 I went to Court. 

	

22 	 THE COURT: If you were cha
rged, you were accused. 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006
: Okay. 

	

24 	 THE COURT: Okay. So you -
- did you get arrested? 

	

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006
: Yes. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Okay. And you had to go in front of a 

2 judge? 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: Yes. 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Okay. And somebody handed you a char
ging 

5 document and sai
d, We're charging 

you with a crime a
nd this is 

6 what it is? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 006: Not yet, 

I guess so, yes. 

	

8 	 THE COURT: Well, I
 don't know. I'm n

ot trying to 

9 talk you into i
t. I'm just tryin

g to figure out w
hat it was. 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 006: I pleaded

 not guilty, and 

11 they made me go
 to the -- some sc

hooling thing and 
that was 

	

12 	that. 

	

13 	 THE COURT: When di
d this -- because 

if you plead not 

14 guilty, I can't tell you to
 do anything as a j

udge. 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: No, I plead no contest, 

16 that's what it was. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Okay. S
o you entered a fo

rm of a guilty 

18 plea and you w
ere adjudicated g

uilty of a crime. What were 

19 you convicted 
of? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 006: Domestic 

violence. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Was it a misdemeanor? 

	

22 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: Yes. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Okay. When was this? 

	

24 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: Probably around 1992-ish. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: During -- and was it here in this 
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1 jurisdiction because yo
u've been here quite a Wh

ile? 

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006.
: Yes. 

	

3 	 THE COURT: Do you remember
 what courthouse you went 

4 to? Do you know if you 
went to -- did you go to 

City Hall? 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: I think so, yes. That's 

6 the one by the bus stat
ion there, used to be the

 bus station. 

7 	 THE COURT: Uh-huh. The ol
d City Hall? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006
: Yes. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay. The new 
City Hall, am I pointing 

10 in the right directio
n? Right? Okay. The new 

City Hall is 

11 really pretty and it's
 right over here -- 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006
: Yeah, it was in -- 

	

13 	 THE COURT: But -- 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: -- it was in '92 or so, 

15 so it was the old one
. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: Okay. And you 
went over there and you 

17 plead guilty to a mis
demeanor? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006
: Yeah. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: All right. Any
thing about that that 

20 would interfere with your ability to be fair a
nd impartial? 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006
: No, I just answered 

22 because they asked. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: Okay. Who was 
-- who made the 

24 accusations against y
ou? Who was the other person that it was 

25 alleged -- 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: My gi
rlfriend, we live 

2 together. 

3 	 THE COURT: Okay. And you knew --
 did she call the 

4 police on you? 

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: Oh, y
eah. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Okay. Were you there
 -- 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: Oh, y
eah. 

	

8 
	 THE COURT: -- when she called th

e police? 

	

9 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: Yes. 

	

10 
	 THE COURT: And the police came a

nd what happened? 

	

11 
	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: They arrested me. 

	

12 
	 THE COURT: All right. Do you th

ink you were treated 

13 fairly? 

	

14 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: Yeah
. Yes. 

	

15 	 THE COURT: All right. And you b
elieve you could be 

16 fair and impartial in this c
ase? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: Yes, 

	

18 	 THE COURT: Anything about that t
hat would interfere 

19 with your ability to sit as a
 juror on this particular case? 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 006: No. 

	

21 	 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, sir
. 

	

22 	 MS. BOTELHO: Thank you. Anyone 
else, anyone close 

23 to you or you yourself been c
harged with domestic violence? 

24 see no more hands, Your Hono
r. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Thank you. 

UNCERTIFIED ROUGH DRAFT 
165 

490 



	

1 	 MS. BOTELHO: Next 
question is: How m

any of you have 

2 ever witnessed a
 domestic violence

 incident, except 
for the 

	

3 	[inaudible]? 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Mr. Pry
or? 

	

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 037: Would tha

t be before or 

6 after? 

	

7 	 THE COURT: Can you
 please -- it's Mr

. Pryor. Will 

8 you state your b
adge number, Mr. P

ryor? 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 037: 0037. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: You wer
e -- do you mind s

tanding up? You 

11 were -- you wit
nessed domestic vi

olence? 

	

12 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 037: No, I hel

ped with the 

13 first aide and 
I was on a call. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Okay. 
Right. And you've

 already -- 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 037: A stabbin

g call. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: You've 
already told us ab

out all of that, 

17 correct? 

	

18 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR 
NO. 037: Right. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Okay. 
Thank you. 

	

20 	 MS. BOTELHO: Any o
ther hands? I see 

no more hands, 

21 Your Honor. 

	

22 	 All right. Judge L
eavitt already ask

ed you about 

23 whether or not 
you know someone, 

you know, close fr
iend or 

24 relative that w
orks for law enfor

cement. I'm going 
to kind of 

25 change the ques
tion a little bit.

 Do any of you hav
e or have 
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7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1 any of you had a positive
 or negative contact with l

aw 

2 enforcement? I see no ha
nds. 

3 	 How many of you or do any of
 you watch crime 

4 investigation shows like
 CSI? 

5 	 THE COURT: Are there any of
 you who don't watch 

6 them? 

MS. BOTELHO: That might be t
he better question. 

THE COURT: There's a few of
 you that don't watch 

them. Maybe one, two, three
, four, five, six. 

MS. BOTELHO: Don't watch. 
Okay, 

THE COURT: Maybe five or six
 that don't watch them. 

MS. BOTELHO: We seem to have
 a few on both sides, 

some watchers and non-watche
rs, To those of you who watc

h, I 

take it that you realize th
at those are TV shows? Crim

e is 

not necessarily solved in 45
 minutes with state of the a

rt, 

you know, satellite -- satel
lites zoom in and, you know,

 5,000 

percent to find a fabric or 
that hair follicle on carpet

 and 

that that solves the case? 
It doesn't work like that i

n real 

life, we all agree on that? 

There are other shows, thoug
h, not like CSI but 

they're more like reality cr
ime shows, like the First 48

 or 

Real Interrogations, anybody
 watch those kinds of shows?

 

Okay. I saw some hands go u
p. 

To those of you who watch th
ose shows, do you also 

realize that those shows kin
d of portray different types

 of 
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1 evidence and d
ifferent ways to

 solve a case? T
hat those 

2 pieces of evid
ence may not all

 be present in o
ne case? There 

3 are different t
ypes of evidence 

that are presente
d, will you 

all agree to that
? 

5 	 How many or do an
y of you know any

 attorneys, someo
ne 

6 close to you, c
lose friend you h

ang out with or f
amily member? 

	

7 	 THE COURT: Other 
than what's alrea

dy been disclosed
 

8 because we have
 some family -- w

e have some membe
rs of the 

9 panel that indi
cated they had fa

mily members that
 are 

10 attorneys. 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 005: [Inaudi

ble.] 

	

12 	 MS. BOTELHO: [In
audible.] Juror 

No. 0005. 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 005: Yes. 

	

14 	 MS. BOTELHO: She'
s the D.A. in New

 York? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 005: Yes. 

	

16 	 MS. BOTELHO: Oka
y. And, sir, you

 are? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 020: Anthony

 Martino, 080020.
 

	

18 	 MS. BOTELHO: Yes
, sir. 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 020: My brot

her-in-law is an 

20 attorney. And
 actually I forg

ot to mention th
is, that my 

21 cousin's wife
 in Arizona is a

n attorney. I th
ink she works 

22 for the State
. I really -- I'

m not close to h
er or anything 

23 like that, but
 I think she does

 something with t
he -- 

	

24 	 MS. BOTELHO: Oka
y. Your brother-

in-law, does he 

25 live here? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020: No. 

	

2 	 MS. BOTELHO: Okay. Are both of these lawyers in 

3 your family in Arizona? 

	

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020: One is in San Francisco. 

	

5 	 MS. BOTELHO: Okay. And yo
u said the one in Arizona

 

6 may practice for -- may
 work for the State, but 

you're not 

7 sure what? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020
: Yeah. I think she may b

e 

9 a prosecutor or somethi
ng for the county or the 

state or 

10 something like that. 

	

11 	 MS. BOTELHO: Do you speak
 to that family member 

12 regularly? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020
: Not that often. 

	

14 	 MS. BOTELHO: And you ever discuss her cases
? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020: Well, one time I was in 

16 Arizona, one time a fe
w years ago I was a witne

ss to a 

	

17 	[inaudible] and at Christmas dinner ment
ioned it, she was 

18 like, well, that might
 be an issue for me, so s

he disclosed it 

19 to whoever she was wo
rking with. 

	

20 	 NB. BOTELHO: Okay. 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020
; I haven't seen her in a

 

22 couple years so. 

	

23 	 MS. BOTELHO: Okay. What a
bout the brother-in-law, 

24 do you speak to him ab
out his work as an attorn

ey on his 

	

25 	cases? 
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1 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 020: 
Not really, but its 

2 corporate stuff. 

	

3 	 MS. BOTFLHO: Okay. 

	

4 	 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: What w
as the question? 

	

5 	 MS. BOTELHO: Do you have any
 close friends or 

6 relatives that are attor
neys? Yes. Mr. Sanford? 

	

V 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: Y
es. 

	

8 	 MS. BOTELHO: Juror No. 0026.
 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: Y
es. 

	

10 	 NB. BOTELHO: Who do you know
, sir? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: S
pecific names or -- 

	

12 	 MS. BOTELHO: How are they re
lated to you? 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: P
ersonal friendships and 

14 business; business-relat
ed generally. 

	

15 	 MS. BOTELHO: Is that here in
 Las Vegas? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: Y
es, it is. 

	

17 	 MS. BOTELHO: Do you talk to 
them about -- do any of 

18 them practice criminal l
aw? 

	

19 	 THE COURT: Do you have any c
lose friends -- 

	

20 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: N
o, I don't believe they 

21 

	

22 	 THE COURT: Mr. -- 

	

23 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: T
hey -- they -- but they 

24 run practices here [inau
dible]. 

	

25 	 THE COURT: Mt. Sanford, do y
ou have close friends 
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1 that are attor
neys? 

2 	 - PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 026: Yes. 

3 	 THE COURT: Okay.
 -How many? 

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 026: Probabl

y half a dozen? 

	

5 	 THE COURT: So si
x? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 026: Yeah. 

	

7 	 THE COURT: That y
ou socialize on a

 consistent basis
? 

	

8 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 026: Yes. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Okay.
 What are their 

names? 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 026: Greg Ga

rman [phonetic], 

11 Gordon and Si
lver. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Greg?
 

	

13 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 ND. 026: Garman.

 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Garma
n. Okay. What di

d you say? Did 

15 you say Gordo
n and Silver? 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 026: Gordon 

and Silver. 

	

17 	 THE COURT: That'
s the name of a 

law firm. Which 

18 one? Gordon o
r Silver do you 

know? 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 026: It's bo

th, it's the name
 

20 of the law fi
rm. 

	

21 	 MR. HILLMAN: I th
ink he said that'

s who Mt. Carmen 

22 works for. 

	

23 	 THE COURT: That'
s where he works

. Okay. I'm sorr
y. 

	

24 	I'm sorry. 
Okay. 

	

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR
 NO. 026: [Inaudi

ble.] 
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1 	 THE COURT: I'm sorry. T th
ought you said Gordon and 

2 Silver. Nevermind. Go 
ahead. 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: 
Sharon Green, 

	

4 	 THE COURT: Sharon Green. 

	

5 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: 
Kim Sinatra. 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Kim Sinatra. 

	

7 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: 
Barry Conbraco 

	

8 	[phonetic]. 

	

9 	 THE COURT: Barry Conbraco.
 

	

10 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: 
There were some others, 

11 I'm just drawing a blan
k. 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. But the n
ames you've given us, and 

13 Gordon -- well, I don't
 know. They might do some 

-- they do 

14 do some criminal becaus
e Dominic Gentile is there

. 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: 
Yes, [inaudible]. 

	

16 	 THE COURT: I'm sorry? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: 
I met Dominic on several 

18 occasions. He's in soc
ial service. 

	

19 	 THE COURT: All right. You 
understand I told some of 

20 the other jurors that w
hile if you're selected to

 be a juror 

21 on this panel you won't
 be permitted to discuss t

his case with 

22 anyone, including your 
fellow jurors until you've

 been asked 

23 to go back and delibera
te upon your verdict, do y

ou understand 

24 that? 

	

25 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: 
I do. 
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1 	 THE COURT: Okay. So you unde
rstand you can't call 

2 up any of these lawyers an
d ask them any questions abo

ut this 

3 case? 

	

4 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: Y
es, ma'am. 

	

5 	 THE COURT: And that if you s
ee them within the next 

6 few days while you're impa
neled, the only thing you ca

n tell 

7 them is that you're a juro
r on a criminal case, you're

 not 

8 permitted to tell them any
thing else; do you understan

d that? 

	

9 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: Y
es. 

	

10 	 THE COURT: Would you comply 
with that order? 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 026: Y
es, 

	

12 	 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
 

	

13 	 MS. BOTELHO: Anyone else hav
e an answer to that 

14 question? 

	

15 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: I
 know [inaudible]. I 

16 work for -- 

	

17 	 THE COURT: Okay. Wait just 
a minute. That's Mt. 

18 Schettino? 

	

19 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: Y
es. 

	

20 
	 THE COURT: Badge No. 0005. 

Go ahead. 

	

21 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: B
esides my niece being a 

22 D.A., I worked in a lega
l compliance department. I 

worked 

	

23 	[inaudible] 25 lawyers 
so 20 years [inaudible]. I u

sed to go 

	

24 	[inaudible]. 

	

25 	 MS. BOTELHO: Okay. And that
 was during your 
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1 employment as -- what was
 your position? 

2 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: I
 was associate director 

3 of [inaudible]. 

4 	 MS. BOTELHO: And so you work
ed with a lot of 

attorneys? 

	

6 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 005: Y
eah. 

	

7 	 MS. BOTELHO: Was this in a c
riminal -- 

	

3 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: N
o, it's mostly 

9 arbitrations. 

	

10 	 MS. BOTELHO: Okay. 

	

11 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: O
f course we had a clause 

12 in our thing you couldn't
 take us to court, you had t

o sign an 

13 arbitration agreement [in
audible] arbitration. 

	

14 	 MS. BOTELHO: Okay. Do you s
till maintain contact 

15 with these individuals?
 

	

16 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 005: N
o, not normally. 

	

17 	 MS. BOTELHO: Okay. So you w
ouldn't be talking to 

18 them at all through the c
ase even though the judge as

ked you 

19 not to. Any other potent
ial jurors who know attorne

ys? Okay. 

	

20 	 Court's indulgence? I just h
ave one more follow-up 

21 question for -- I believe
 it's Juror No. 00043, Danie

l 

22 Davenport. Hi, Mr. Daven
port. Sir, earlier Judge Le

avitt 

23 asked you or you indicate
d to us that you -- your bes

t friend 

24 had been murdered, [inaud
ible] your friend was involv

ed in a 

25 domestic kind of relation
ship, had to leave the home,

 was 
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I killed by a third party,
 and I think you said some

thing to the 

2 effect that nothing happ
ened to that first party b

ecause it 

3 was allegedly self defen
se or something like that.

 

4 	 Sir, do you harbor any -- I
 don't know how to phrase 

5 this -- ill feelings tow
ards maybe the police or t

he District 

6 Attorney's Office for no
t looking at the facts and

 

7 circumstances of your f
riend's death? 

	

6 	 THE COURT: Okay. Well, you
're assuming they didn't. 

	

9 	 MS. BOTELHO: I thought I h
eard him say earlier that 

10 he didn't know anythin
g about it. 

	

11 	 THE COURT: I never asked h
im if the D.A's Office was

 

12 involved. 

	

13 	 MS. BOTELHO: Okay. I can a
sk that, Your Honor. 

	

14 	 THE COURT: Okay. 

	

15 	 MS. BOTELHO: Did the D.A's
 Office or the police do 

16 anything as far as inve
stigating or following up 

on the case? 

	

17 	 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043:
 It was kind of like an 

18 open and shut, but I be
lieve otherwise happened. 

	

19 	 MS. BOTELHO: Okay. So do 
you harbor kind of some -

- 

20 I don't know -- bittern
ess or ill feelings toward

s the police 

21 for that reason or eith
er the District Attorney's

 Office for 

22 not filing charges or t
hings like that against th

at third 

23 party? 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 043:
 No. 

MS. BOTELHO: And so that e
xperience, of course, you 
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